
CLOSED SESSION 

Location: City Hall 
834 Main Street 
Ferndale CA 95536 

Date: November 7, 2013 
Time: 6:00 pm 

Posted: 10/31/13 

1. CALL CLOSED SESSION TO ORDER – Mayor
2. Pursuant to Government Code 54954.5, Public Employee Performance Evaluation, City Manager
3. ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION

CITY OF FERNDALE – HUMBOLDT COUNTY CALIFORNIA – U.S.A. 
AGENDA - REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Location: City Hall 
834 Main Street 
Ferndale CA 95536 

Date: November 7, 2013 
Time: 7:00 pm 

Posted: 10/31/13 

We welcome you to the meeting. Members of the Public may be heard on any business item on this Agenda before or 
during the City Council consideration of the item. The public may also directly address the City Council on any item of interest 
to the public that is not on the Agenda during the public comment time; however, the City Council generally cannot take action 
on an item not on the agenda. 

A person addressing the City Council will be limited to five (5) minutes unless the Mayor of the City Council grants a 
longer period of time. While not required, we would appreciate it if you would identify yourself with your name and address 
when addressing the Council. 

This City endeavors to be ADA compliant. Should you require assistance with written information or access to the 
facility, or a hearing amplification, please call 786-4224 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

TO SPEAK ON ANY ISSUE, BE ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE MAYOR BEFORE PROCEEDING TO THE PODIUM, STATE YOUR 
NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD (optional), AND DIRECT YOUR COMMENTS ONLY TO THE COUNCIL. 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – Mayor
2. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG
3. ROLL CALL –City Clerk: John Maxwell; Ken Mierzwa; Stuart Titus;

Michael Sweeney; Daniel Brown
4. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION
5. CEREMONIAL

a. Proclamation in Recognition and Support of The Great American
Smokeout ...........................................................................................................  Page 4 

b. Proclamation in Recognition of National Caregivers Month ............................. Page 5
6. MODIFICATIONS TO THE AGENDA
7. STUDY SESSIONS
8. PUBLIC COMMENT. (This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on

any matter not on this agenda and over which the Council has jurisdiction. Items
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda may be placed on the next
regular agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of
the Council that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an
urgent nature requiring immediate action. This portion of the meeting will be
approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each speaker given no
more than five minutes.) ................................................................................................  Page 7 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 1



9. CONSENT CALENDAR. (All matters listed under this category are considered to
be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. Unless a
specific request is made by a Councilmember, staff or the public, the Consent
Calendar will not be read. There will be no separate discussion of these items.
However, if discussion is required, that item will be removed from the Consent
Calendar and considered separately under “Call Items.”)

a. Acceptance of Accounts Payable ....................................................................... Page 8
b. Approval of previous minutes:

i. October 3, 2013 Regular City Council Meeting  .................................... Page 19
ii. October 17, 2013 Special City Council Meeting  ................................... Page 21

10. CALL ITEMS
11. PRESENTATION / Community Forum
12. BUSINESS

a. Annual Tractor Parade Route and Staging Area  ............................................... Page 24
b. 580 Main Street Update....................................................................................
c. 2nd Reading of Ordinance 2013-02, Sign Ordinance .......................................... Page 26
d. 2nd Reading of Ordinance 2013-03, Medical Marijuana Dispensary and

Cultivation Ordinance ........................................................................................  Page 50 
e. City Manager Contract Review .......................................................................... Page 56
f. Deputy City Clerk Transition and Recruitment Update ..................................... Page 57
g. Resolution 2013-38 Authorizing City Attorney and City Planner Time and

Materials to Update Nuisance Ordinance 06-04 ...............................................  Page 62 
h. Changes to Housing Element Update Process & Schedule ................................ Page 64
i. Resolution 2013-39 Authorizing Planner Time and Materials to

Complete Part 1 of the Housing Element Implementation Plan .......................  Page 65 

13. CORRESPONDENCE  ........................................................................................................ Page 70
14. REPORTS

a. Commissions / Committees and others ............................................................. None
i. Design Review ....................................................................................... None

ii. Drainage Committee ............................................................................. None 
iii. Planning Commission ............................................................................ None

b. Council Reports and Comment
i. HCAOG  Minutes  .................................................................................. None

ii. HMRA Minutes  ..................................................................................... None
iii. HWMA Abstract  ................................................................................... Page 106
iv. RCEA Minutes  ....................................................................................... None
v. RREDC Minutes ..................................................................................... None

15. ADJOURN

This notice is posted in compliance with Government Code §54954.2. 
The next Regular Meeting of the Ferndale City Council will be held on December 5, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 2

Page 25



Section 1 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Section 2 
PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE 

Section 3 
ROLL CALL 

Section 4 
CLOSED SESSION REPORT 

Section 5 
CEREMONIAL 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 3



PROCLAMATION 

In Recognition and Support of  
THE GREAT AMERICAN SMOKEOUT 

November 17, 2011 

Whereas, the American Cancer Society encourages all tobacco users to join the Great 

American Smokeout and quit for at least one day; and 

Whereas, smoking one pack a day will cost the smoker an average of $1800 per year in 

Humboldt County; and  

Whereas, more people in Humboldt County die every year from tobacco-related diseases than 

die from AIDS, alcohol, car crashes, fires, illegal drugs, murders, and suicides combined; and 

Whereas, exposure to secondhand smoke is known to cause heart disease, lung cancer, asthma 

attacks, and ear infections; and  

Whereas, efforts to reduce smoking and exposure to secondhand smoke in California have 

saved Californians’ more than $86 billion in health care expenditures; and 

Whereas, studies show that smoke-free policies help smokers quit, and fewer youth start 

smoking in communities with smoke-free policies; and 

Whereas, eighty-percent of smokers in Humboldt County started before they were 18 years 

old; and  

Whereas, in Humboldt County 8 out of 10 smokers want to quit tobacco, and there are several 

free resources available to assist them. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that the City Council of the City of Ferndale 

hereby recognizes and supports the American Cancer Society’s GREAT AMERICAN 

SMOKEOUT, on November 17, 2011 in the City of Ferndale and encourages all citizens who 

smoke, or use chew/dip tobacco, to demonstrate to themselves and their children that they can 

quit using tobacco by joining the American Cancer Society’s Great American Smokeout.   

Dated:________________________________________________ 

Signed:_______________________________________________ 

Mayor, Stuart Titus 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 4



Proclamation in Recognition of 

National Caregivers Month, November 2013 

WHEREAS, family members, friends, and professional homecare workers devote themselves to 

providing in-home care to their relatives, loved ones, and clients. During National Caregivers 

Month, we recognize and thank the humble heroes who do so much to keep our families and 

communities strong; and 

WHEREAS, in-home caregivers are a vital pillar of our nation’s long-term care system, 

enabling millions of seniors and people with disabilities to continue living with dignity and self-

determination in their own homes. The work of these caregivers requires immense compassion, 

attentiveness, understanding, and a deep commitment to the wellbeing of others; and 

WHEREAS, California’s In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) program serves nearly 500,000 

clients. IHSS workers preserve quality-of-life for these individuals, save taxpayer dollars and 

prevent more costly hospitalization or institutionalization; and 

WHEREAS, in-home caregivers have an immeasurable impact on the lives of those they care 

for, but their hours are long and their work is hard. Many caregivers are unpaid and most 

homecare professionals receive modest compensation. They often put their own lives on hold, 

sometimes sacrificing more lucrative careers and other life opportunities because they are 

dedicated to lifting up those in need; and 

WHEREAS, National Caregivers Month is a time to reflect on the compassion and dedication 

that in-home caregivers embody every day. As we offer our appreciation and admiration for their 

difficult work, let us also extend our own offers of support to them, their loved ones, and their 

clients. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale that 

November 2013 is National Caregivers Month in the City of Ferndale. The City honors and 

supports the work of in-home caregivers in our community and encourages all residents of the 

Ferndale to pay tribute to them for their exemplary service to our community. 

Date: ___________ 

Signed:________________________ 

  Mayor, Stuart Titus 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 5



Section 6 
MODIFICATIONS TO THE AGENDA 

Section 7 
STUDY SESSION 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 6



Section 8 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and 
over which the Council has jurisdiction. 

Items requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next regular 
agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rd of the Council (three of the 
five members) that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgent nature 
requiring immediate action. 

This portion of the meeting will be approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each 
speaker given no more than five minutes. Please state your name and address for the record. 
(This is optional.) 

Section 9

CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under this category are considered to be routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion.  

Is there anyone on the Council, Staff or the public that would like to pull an item off the 
Consent Agenda for scrutiny? Those items will be considered separately under “Call Items.” 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 7



Checkbook Register 
General Checking 

From 09/21/13 To 10/20/13 - By Check Number 

Checks \ Deposits \
Number Date Payee\Description BalancePayments AdditionsVendor Name

Beginning balance  490,577.60 

Deposit 09/26/13 AR Deposit  18,612.66  509,190.26 

Deposit 09/26/13 AR Deposit  8,356.06  517,546.32 

Deposit 10/16/13 AR Deposit  27,066.58  544,612.90 

Deposit 10/16/13 AR Deposit  16,502.07  561,114.97 

 100 09/30/13 EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT 

D
 560,454.80  660.17 

 100 09/30/13 NORTH VALLEY BANK  556,053.22  4,401.58 

 100 10/14/13 EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT 

D
 554,830.83  1,222.39 

 100 10/14/13 NORTH VALLEY BANK  548,009.80  6,821.03 

 46822 09/23/13 CRYSTAL SPRINGS BOTTLED 

WA
 548,003.05  6.75 

 46823 09/23/13 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE  547,898.05  105.00 

 46824 09/23/13 JEFF FOURNIER  547,881.92  16.13 

 46825 09/23/13 NORTH VALLEY BANK NORTH VALLEY 

B
 545,933.56  1,948.36 

 46826 09/23/13 V&C CONSTRUCTION  530,013.94  15,919.62 

Void  46827 09/23/13 WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL LEA  530,013.94 

 46828 09/24/13 AYCOCK & EDGMON  527,921.94  2,092.00 

 46829 09/24/13 BLUE ROCK ENVIROMENTAL, I  522,887.59  5,034.35 

 46830 09/24/13 BRET SMITH  522,387.59  500.00 

 46831 09/24/13 COMPUTER ASSISTANCE  522,322.59  65.00 

 46832 09/24/13 DEL ORO WATER CO., FDLE. DI  521,621.67  700.92 

 46833 09/24/13 EEL RIVER DISPOSAL  521,346.47  275.20 

 46834 09/24/13 FRONTIER  520,415.18  931.29 

 46835 09/24/13 H.B. Environmental Consultants, FPC  519,940.08  475.10 

 46836 09/24/13 HUMBOLDT LAND TITLE COMP  519,540.08  400.00 

 46837 09/24/13 NORTH COAST LABORATORIES 

L
 519,505.08  35.00 

 46838 09/24/13 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC  518,148.65  1,356.43 

 46839 09/24/13 REDWOOD ELECTRICAL SERVI  513,033.07  5,115.58 

 46840 09/24/13 RESTIF CLEANING SERVICES  512,933.07  100.00 

 46841 09/24/13 THE FERNDALE ENTERPRISE  512,846.81  86.26 

 46842 09/24/13 UNITED OFFICE SUPPLY  512,346.96  499.85 

Void  46843 10/01/13 MARY ELLEN BOYNTON  512,346.96 

Void  46844 10/01/13 WILLIAM O. BRIGGS  512,346.96 

 46845 10/01/13 STEVE L. COPPINI  510,727.72  1,619.24 

 46846 10/01/13 LINDSEY D. FRANK  509,604.74  1,122.98 

 46847 10/01/13 DMITRIY GAVRYUSH  508,759.34  845.40 

 46848 10/01/13 JOHNNY F. HOPPIS  507,926.36  832.98 

 46849 10/01/13 IAN E. IVEY  507,707.66  218.70 

 46850 10/01/13 TIMOTHY W. MIRANDA  506,632.95  1,074.71 

 46851 10/01/13 JAY D. PARRISH  504,174.16  2,458.79 

 46852 10/01/13 LACY L. PEDROTTI  503,347.19  826.97 

 46853 10/01/13 DIANNA L. RICHARDSON  503,310.21  36.98 

 46854 10/01/13 MARIA A. ROSA  503,064.73  245.48 

 46855 10/01/13 BRET A. SMITH  501,675.82  1,388.91 

 46856 10/01/13 ADAM D. STRICKER  500,529.73  1,146.09 

 46857 10/01/13 STEVE A. THRAP  499,385.71  1,144.02 

Page 1 10/22/2013  8 : 41 am 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8



 

Checkbook Register 
General Checking 

From 09/21/13 To 10/20/13 - By Check Number 

Checks \ Deposits \
Number Date Payee\Description BalancePayments AdditionsVendor Name

 46858 10/01/13 Christopher D. Williams  498,474.41  911.30 

 46859 10/01/13 MARY ELLEN BOYNTON  498,344.99  129.42 

 46860 10/01/13 WILLIAM O. BRIGGS  498,225.89  119.10 

 46861 09/30/13 ACCESS HUMBOLDT  498,045.89  180.00 

 46862 09/30/13 AFLAC - REMIT. PROCESSING SE  497,967.25  78.64 

 46863 09/30/13 ARNOLD C. KEMP  492,924.77  5,042.48 

 46864 09/30/13 BAKER & TAYLOR  492,895.98  28.79 

 46865 09/30/13 CALIFORNIA STATE 

DISBURSEM 
 492,756.60  139.38 

46866 09/30/13 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  487,213.51  5,543.09 

 46867 09/30/13 CITY OF FORTUNA  486,196.85  1,016.66 

 46868 09/30/13 DAVE LENARDO  485,916.85  280.00 

 46869 09/30/13 EDWARD JONES & COMPANY  480,058.93  5,857.92 

 46870 09/30/13 HORIZON BUSINESS SERVICES  479,900.41  158.52 

 46871 09/30/13 JAY PARRISH  479,500.41  400.00 

 46872 09/30/13 MIRANDA'S RESCUE  479,050.41  450.00 

 46873 09/30/13 NORTH COAST LABORATORIES 

L
 478,890.41  160.00 

 46874 09/30/13 NORTH VALLEY BANK NORTH VALLEY 

B
 477,516.37  1,374.04 

 46875 09/30/13 PLANWEST PARTNERS, INC.  466,675.34  10,841.03 

 46876 09/30/13 ROBIN SMITH  466,521.87  153.47 

 46877 09/30/13 SCOUTS  466,071.87  450.00 

 46878 09/30/13 U.S. BANK CORPORATE 

PAYMEN 
 465,496.87  575.00 

46879 10/03/13 JAY D. PARRISH  461,040.01  4,456.86 

 46880 10/09/13 BAY WEST SUPPLY, INC.  460,233.69  806.32 

 46881 10/09/13 CALIFORNIA RURAL WATER AS  459,883.69  350.00 

 46882 10/09/13 HUMBOLDT COUNTY TAX COL  459,748.73  134.96 

 46883 10/09/13 MANHARD CONSULTING LTD  445,748.69  14,000.04 

 46884 10/09/13 MITCHELL, BRISSO. DELANEY &  441,935.26  3,813.43 

 46885 10/09/13 SEQUOIA GAS COMPANY  441,505.67  429.59 

 46907 10/09/13 ACCESS HUMBOLDT  441,325.67  180.00 

 46908 10/09/13 BRET SMITH  441,026.19  299.48 

 46909 10/09/13 DESIGN AIR  440,726.19  300.00 

 46910 10/09/13 ELIAS SOUSA  438,026.19  2,700.00 

 46911 10/09/13 FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES 

COM 
 437,926.19  100.00 

46912 10/09/13 GE CAPITAL  437,704.85  221.34 

 46913 10/09/13 HUMBOLDT CO SHERIFF DEPT  437,454.95  249.90 

 46914 10/09/13 HUMBOLDT LAND TITLE COMP  436,904.95  550.00 

 46915 10/09/13 HUMBOLDT TERMITE & PEST  436,790.95  114.00 

 46916 10/09/13 L & M RENNER, INC.  435,378.89  1,412.06 

 46917 10/09/13 MERCER FRASER COMPANY  435,193.64  185.25 

 46918 10/09/13 MISSION UNIFORM & LINEN  435,125.72  67.92 

 46919 10/09/13 NILSEN COMPANY  434,810.30  315.42 

 46920 10/09/13 POSTMASTER  434,626.30  184.00 

 46921 10/09/13 RESTIF CLEANING SERVICES  434,424.30  202.00 

 46922 10/09/13 SIX RIVERS COMMUNICATIONS  434,124.30  300.00 

 46923 10/09/13 SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK 

MANAGE
 428,514.16  5,610.14 

Page 2 10/22/2013  8 : 41 am 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 9



 

Checkbook Register 
General Checking 

From 09/21/13 To 10/20/13 - By Check Number 

Checks \ Deposits \
Number Date Payee\Description BalancePayments AdditionsVendor Name

 46924 10/09/13 THE FERNDALE ENTERPRISE  428,475.49  38.67 

 46925 10/09/13 TIMES STANDARD  428,414.99  60.50 

 46926 10/09/13 VERIZON  428,142.72  272.27 

 46927 10/09/13 WYCKOFF'S  428,067.36  75.36 

 46946 10/15/13 MARY ELLEN BOYNTON  428,048.87  18.49 

 46947 10/15/13 WILLIAM O. BRIGGS  427,929.78  119.09 

 46948 10/15/13 STEVE L. COPPINI  426,310.54  1,619.24 

 46949 10/15/13 LINDSEY D. FRANK  425,212.71  1,097.83 

 46950 10/15/13 DMITRIY GAVRYUSH  424,252.19  960.52 

 46951 10/15/13 JOHNNY F. HOPPIS  423,369.72  882.47 

 46952 10/15/13 IAN E. IVEY  423,085.94  283.78 

 46953 10/15/13 TIMOTHY W. MIRANDA  422,011.24  1,074.70 

 46954 10/15/13 JAY D. PARRISH  419,552.44  2,458.80 

 46955 10/15/13 LACY L. PEDROTTI  418,706.42  846.02 

 46956 10/15/13 DIANNA L. RICHARDSON  418,558.67  147.75 

 46957 10/15/13 BRET A. SMITH  417,169.75  1,388.92 

 46958 10/15/13 ADAM D. STRICKER  416,023.67  1,146.08 

 46959 10/15/13 STEVE A. THRAP  414,879.65  1,144.02 

 46960 10/15/13 BONNIE K. VON BRAUN  414,853.12  26.53 

 46961 10/15/13 Christopher D. Williams  413,862.54  990.58 

 46964 10/14/13 BRET SMITH  413,755.06  107.48 

 46965 10/14/13 CALIFORNIA STATE 

DISBURSEM 
 413,615.68  139.38 

46966 10/14/13 COLANTUONO & LEVIN, PC  413,453.18  162.50 

 46967 10/14/13 DAVE LENARDO  413,173.18  280.00 

 46968 10/14/13 DOCUSTATION DOCUSTATION I  413,060.90  112.28 

 46969 10/14/13 HEALTHSMART BENEFIT SOLUT  412,904.96  155.94 

 46970 10/14/13 MANHARD CONSULTING LTD  403,357.06  9,547.90 

 46971 10/14/13 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC  397,459.90  5,897.16 

 46972 10/14/13 VALLEY LUMBER  396,584.32  875.58 

 46977 10/14/13 AYCOCK & EDGMON  395,734.32  850.00 

 46978 10/14/13 BAKER & TAYLOR  395,354.11  380.21 

 46979 10/15/13 JAY D. PARRISH  395,234.33  119.78 

 46980 10/17/13 AFLAC - REMIT. PROCESSING SE  395,195.01  39.32 

 46981 10/17/13 AMERICAN RIVER COLLEGE  395,113.01  82.00 

 46982 10/17/13 BROESE'S UNIFORMS  395,090.66  22.35 

 46983 10/17/13 CHRISTOPHER WILLIAMS  394,706.66  384.00 

 46984 10/17/13 CITY OF FORTUNA  394,081.66  625.00 

 46985 10/17/13 CRYSTAL SPRINGS BOTTLED 

WA
 394,058.16  23.50 

 46986 10/17/13 EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT 

D
 393,482.62  575.54 

 46987 10/17/13 EUREKA READYMIX CONCRETE  392,529.63  952.99 

 46988 10/17/13 HACH COMPANY  390,352.63  2,177.00 

 46989 10/17/13 MERCER FRASER COMPANY  390,297.03  55.60 

 46990 10/17/13 THE FARM SHOP  390,271.50  25.53 

 46991 10/17/13 HUMBOLDT LODGING ALLIAN  383,305.43  6,966.07 

Page 3 10/22/2013  8 : 41 am 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 10



Printed Regular Checks

General Checking - Summary - From 09/21/13 To 10/20/13

 Check #: All - Vendor: All  - Payee Name: All - By Payee Name - AP Pmt Distribution

Chk No. Date Check Amount Vendor IDType Vendor Name \ Payee Name

Pay

09/30/13 46861  180.00 ACHUM ACCESS HUMBOLDT

10/09/13 46907  180.00 ACHUM ACCESS HUMBOLDT

Total for ACCESS HUMBOLDT  360.00 

09/30/13 46862  78.64 AFLAC AFLAC - REMIT. PROCESSING SE

10/17/13 46980  39.32 AFLAC AFLAC - REMIT. PROCESSING SE

Total for AFLAC - REMIT. PROCESSING SERV.  117.96 

10/17/13 46981  82.00 SRPST AMERICAN RIVER COLLEGE

Total for AMERICAN RIVER COLLEGE  82.00 

09/30/13 46863  5,042.48 ARNKE ARNOLD C. KEMP

Total for ARNOLD C. KEMP  5,042.48 

09/24/13 46828  2,092.00 PHIAY AYCOCK & EDGMON

10/14/13 46977  850.00 PHIAY AYCOCK & EDGMON

Total for AYCOCK & EDGMON  2,942.00 

09/30/13 46864  28.79 BAKTA BAKER & TAYLOR

10/14/13 46978  380.21 BAKTA BAKER & TAYLOR

Total for BAKER & TAYLOR  409.00 

10/09/13 46880  806.32 BAYWE BAY WEST SUPPLY, INC.

Total for BAY WEST SUPPLY, INC.  806.32 

09/24/13 46829  5,034.35 BLUE BLUE ROCK ENVIROMENTAL, IN

Total for BLUE ROCK ENVIROMENTAL, INC.  5,034.35 

09/24/13 46830  500.00 BRSMT BRET SMITH

10/09/13 46908  299.48 BRSMT BRET SMITH

10/14/13 46964  107.48 BRSMT BRET SMITH

Total for BRET SMITH  906.96 

10/17/13 46982  22.35 BROUN BROESE'S UNIFORMS

Total for BROESE'S UNIFORMS  22.35 

10/09/13 46881  350.00 CRWA CALIFORNIA RURAL WATER AS

Total for CALIFORNIA RURAL WATER ASSOCIATI  350.00 

09/30/13 46865  139.38 CALST CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEM

10/14/13 46965  139.38 CALST CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEM

Total for CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNI  278.76 

09/30/13 46866  5,543.09 CHACO CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

Total for CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  5,543.09 

10/17/13 46983  384.00 CHWILL CHRISTOPHER WILLIAMS

Total for CHRISTOPHER WILLIAMS  384.00 

09/30/13 46867  1,016.66 CITFO CITY OF FORTUNA

10/17/13 46984  625.00 CITFO CITY OF FORTUNA

Page 110/22/2013  8 : 43 am

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 11

Debbie
Typewritten Text
POLICE TRAINING

Debbie
Typewritten Text
LIBRARY

Debbie
Typewritten Text
OLD NILSEN PROP

Debbie
Typewritten Text
POLICE UNIFORM REIMB

Debbie
Typewritten Text
VACUUM REPLACE REIMB

Debbie
Typewritten Text
POLICE SUPPLIES

Debbie
Typewritten Text
POLICE

Debbie
Typewritten Text
POLICE TRAINING

Debbie
Typewritten Text
MONTHLY POLICE DISPATCH

Debbie
Typewritten Text
SEWER TESTING

Debbie
Typewritten Text

Debbie
Typewritten Text

Debbie
Typewritten Text
SEWER TRAINING



Printed Regular Checks

General Checking - Summary - From 09/21/13 To 10/20/13

 Check #: All - Vendor: All  - Payee Name: All - By Payee Name - AP Pmt Distribution

Chk No. Date Check Amount Vendor IDType Vendor Name \ Payee Name

Pay

Total for CITY OF FORTUNA  1,641.66 

10/14/13 46966  162.50 COLLEV COLANTUONO & LEVIN, PC

Total for COLANTUONO & LEVIN, PC  162.50 

09/24/13 46831  65.00 COMAS COMPUTER ASSISTANCE

Total for COMPUTER ASSISTANCE  65.00 

09/23/13 46822  6.75 CRYST CRYSTAL SPRINGS BOTTLED WA

10/17/13 46985  23.50 CRYST CRYSTAL SPRINGS BOTTLED WA

Total for CRYSTAL SPRINGS BOTTLED WATER CO.  30.25 

09/30/13 46868  280.00 DVLNO DAVE LENARDO

10/14/13 46967  280.00 DVLNO DAVE LENARDO

Total for DAVE LENARDO  560.00 

09/24/13 46832  700.92 DELOR DEL ORO WATER CO., FDLE. DIS

Total for DEL ORO WATER CO., FDLE. DIST.  700.92 

09/23/13 46823  105.00 DEPJU DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Total for DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE  105.00 

10/09/13 46909  300.00 DESAI DESIGN AIR

Total for DESIGN AIR  300.00 

10/14/13 46968  112.28 DOCST DOCUSTATION INC. \ DOCUSTAT

Total for DOCUSTATION  112.28 

09/30/13 46869  5,857.92 EDWJO EDWARD JONES & COMPANY

Total for EDWARD JONES & COMPANY  5,857.92 

09/24/13 46833  275.20 EELRI EEL RIVER DISPOSAL

Total for EEL RIVER DISPOSAL  275.20 

10/09/13 46910  2,700.00 ELISO ELIAS SOUSA

Total for ELIAS SOUSA  2,700.00 

09/30/13 100  660.17 EMPDEEFT EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT D

10/14/13 100  1,222.39 EMPDEEFT EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT D

10/17/13 46986  575.54 EMPDE EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT D

Total for EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPART  2,458.10 

10/17/13 46987  952.99 EURRE EUREKA READYMIX CONCRETE C

Total for EUREKA READYMIX CONCRETE CO., INC.  952.99 

10/09/13 46911  100.00 FPPC FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COM

Total for FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSIO  100.00 

09/24/13 46834  931.29 FRONT FRONTIER

Total for FRONTIER  931.29 

10/09/13 46912  221.34 GECAP GE CAPITAL

Page 210/22/2013  8 : 43 am

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 12

Debbie
Typewritten Text
POLICE TRAINING

Debbie
Typewritten Text
CITY HALL TECH

Debbie
Typewritten Text
POLICE 

Debbie
Typewritten Text
POLICE

Debbie
Typewritten Text
SEWER

Debbie
Typewritten Text

Debbie
Typewritten Text
POLICE

Debbie
Typewritten Text
LENS STORAGE

Debbie
Typewritten Text
SEWER

Debbie
Typewritten Text
SEWER

Debbie
Typewritten Text
CITY HALL



C

Printed Regular Checks

General Checking - Summary - From 09/21/13 To 10/20/13

 Check #: All - Vendor: All  - Payee Name: All - By Payee Name - AP Pmt Distribution

Chk No. Date Check Amount Vendor IDType Vendor Name \ Payee Name

Pay

Total for GE CAPITAL  221.34 

09/24/13 46835  475.10 HBECFPC H.B. Environmental Consultants, FPC

Total for H.B. Environmental Consultants, FPC  475.10 

10/17/13 46988  2,177.00 HACCO HACH COMPANY

Total for HACH COMPANY  2,177.00 

10/14/13 46969  155.94 HSBS HEALTHSMART BENEFIT SOLUT

Total for HEALTHSMART BENEFIT SOLUTIONS, IN  155.94 

09/30/13 46870  158.52 HORBU HORIZON BUSINESS SERVICES

Total for HORIZON BUSINESS SERVICES  158.52 

10/09/13 46913  249.90 HUMSH HUMBOLDT CO SHERIFF DEPT

Total for HUMBOLDT CO SHERIFF DEPT  249.90 

10/09/13 46882  134.96 TAXCO HUMBOLDT COUNTY TAX COL

Total for HUMBOLDT COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR  134.96 

09/24/13 46836  400.00 HUMLT HUMBOLDT LAND TITLE COMP

10/09/13 46914  550.00 HUMLT HUMBOLDT LAND TITLE COMP

Total for HUMBOLDT LAND TITLE COMPANY  950.00 

10/17/13 46991  6,966.07 HUMLOD HUMBOLDT LODGING ALLIAN

Total for HUMBOLDT LODGING ALLIANCE, INC.  6,966.07 

10/09/13 46915  114.00 HUMTE HUMBOLDT TERMITE & PEST

Total for HUMBOLDT TERMITE & PEST  114.00 

09/30/13 46871  400.00 JAYPA JAY PARRISH

Total for JAY PARRISH  400.00 

09/23/13 46824  16.13 JEFFO JEFF FOURNIER

Total for JEFF FOURNIER  16.13 

10/09/13 46916  1,412.06 LMREN L & M RENNER, INC.

Total for L & M RENNER, INC.  1,412.06 

10/09/13 46883  14,000.04 MANHD MANHARD CONSULTING LTD

10/14/13 46970  9,547.90 MANHD MANHARD CONSULTING LTD

Total for MANHARD CONSULTING LTD  23,547.94 

10/09/13 46917  185.25 MERFR MERCER FRASER COMPANY

10/17/13 46989  55.60 MERFR MERCER FRASER COMPANY

Total for MERCER FRASER COMPANY  240.85 

09/30/13 46872  450.00 MIRRE MIRANDA'S RESCUE

Total for MIRANDA'S RESCUE  450.00 

10/09/13 46918  67.92 MISSN MISSION UNIFORM & LINEN

Page 310/22/2013  8 : 43 am

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 13

Debbie
Typewritten Text
SEWER

Debbie
Typewritten Text
SEWER 

Debbie
Typewritten Text

Debbie
Typewritten Text
CITY HALL

Debbie
Typewritten Text
POLICE

Debbie
Typewritten Text
VISION

Debbie
Typewritten Text
OLD NILSEN PROP

Debbie
Typewritten Text
REPLACEMENT KEYS

Debbie
Typewritten Text
PUBLIC WORKS

Debbie
Typewritten Text
SEWER



Printed Regular Checks

General Checking - Summary - From 09/21/13 To 10/20/13

 Check #: All - Vendor: All  - Payee Name: All - By Payee Name - AP Pmt Distribution

Chk No. Date Check Amount Vendor IDType Vendor Name \ Payee Name

Pay

Total for MISSION UNIFORM & LINEN  67.92 

10/09/13 46884  3,813.43 MBDVZ MITCHELL, BRISSO. DELANEY & V

Total for MITCHELL, BRISSO. DELANEY & VRIEZE  3,813.43 

10/09/13 46919  315.42 NILCO NILSEN COMPANY

Total for NILSEN COMPANY  315.42 

09/24/13 46837  35.00 NORCO NORTH COAST LABORATORIES L

09/30/13 46873  160.00 NORCO NORTH COAST LABORATORIES L

Total for NORTH COAST LABORATORIES LTD.  195.00 

09/30/13 100  4,401.58 NORVAEFT NORTH VALLEY BANK

10/14/13 100  6,821.03 NORVAEFT NORTH VALLEY BANK

09/23/13 46825  1,948.36 NORVL NORTH VALLEY BANK (1) \ NOR

09/30/13 46874  1,374.04 NORVL NORTH VALLEY BANK (1) \ NOR

Total for NORTH VALLEY BANK  14,545.01 

09/24/13 46838  1,356.43 PACGA PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

10/14/13 46971  5,897.16 PACGA PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

Total for PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC  7,253.59 

09/30/13 46875  10,841.03 PLANW PLANWEST PARTNERS, INC.

Total for PLANWEST PARTNERS, INC.  10,841.03 

10/09/13 46920  184.00 POSTM POSTMASTER

Total for POSTMASTER  184.00 

09/24/13 46839  5,115.58 REDES REDWOOD ELECTRICAL SERVI

Total for REDWOOD ELECTRICAL SERVICES  5,115.58 

09/24/13 46840  100.00 RESTIF RESTIF CLEANING SERVICES

10/09/13 46921  202.00 RESTIF RESTIF CLEANING SERVICES

Total for RESTIF CLEANING SERVICES  302.00 

09/30/13 46876  153.47 ROBSM ROBIN SMITH

Total for ROBIN SMITH  153.47 

09/30/13 46877  450.00 SCOUTS SCOUTS

Total for SCOUTS  450.00 

10/09/13 46885  429.59 SEQGA SEQUOIA GAS COMPANY

Total for SEQUOIA GAS COMPANY  429.59 

10/09/13 46922  300.00 SIXRC SIX RIVERS COMMUNICATIONS

Total for SIX RIVERS COMMUNICATIONS  300.00 

10/09/13 46923  5,610.14 SDRMA SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEM

Total for SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT A  5,610.14 

10/17/13 46990  25.53 FARSH THE FARM SHOP

Page 410/22/2013  8 : 43 am

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 14

Debbie
Typewritten Text
SEWER

Debbie
Typewritten Text
SEWER

Debbie
Typewritten Text
PUBLIC WORKS

Debbie
Typewritten Text
SEWER



Printed Regular Checks

General Checking - Summary - From 09/21/13 To 10/20/13

 Check #: All - Vendor: All  - Payee Name: All - By Payee Name - AP Pmt Distribution

Chk No. Date Check Amount Vendor IDType Vendor Name \ Payee Name

Pay

Total for THE FARM SHOP  25.53 

09/24/13 46841  86.26 FEREN THE FERNDALE ENTERPRISE

10/09/13 46924  38.67 FEREN THE FERNDALE ENTERPRISE

Total for THE FERNDALE ENTERPRISE  124.93 

10/09/13 46925  60.50 TIMST TIMES STANDARD

Total for TIMES STANDARD  60.50 

09/30/13 46878  575.00 USBNK U.S. BANK CORPORATE PAYMEN

Total for U.S. BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTE  575.00 

09/24/13 46842  499.85 UNOFSU UNITED OFFICE SUPPLY

Total for UNITED OFFICE SUPPLY  499.85 

09/23/13 46826  15,919.62 VCCON V&C CONSTRUCTION

Total for V&C CONSTRUCTION  15,919.62 

10/14/13 46972  875.58 VALLU VALLEY LUMBER

Total for VALLEY LUMBER  875.58 

10/09/13 46926  272.27 VERZN VERIZON

Total for VERIZON  272.27 

09/23/13 46827 VoidWELF WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL LEAS

Total for WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL LEASING  0.00 

10/09/13 46927  75.36 WYCKO WYCKOFF'S

Total for WYCKOFF'S  75.36 

Total for the 93 checks  144,907.01 

Page 510/22/2013  8 : 43 am

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 15

Debbie
Typewritten Text
RETIRE/PLANC/UNDERGROUND

Debbie
Typewritten Text
DESIGNR/SIGNORD

Debbie
Typewritten Text
PLANC PUBLIC NOTICE

Debbie
Typewritten Text
TONER FOR CITY HALL

Debbie
Typewritten Text
5TH STREET

Debbie
Typewritten Text
PUBLIC WORKS



Printed Regular Checks

General Checking - Summary - From 09/21/13 To 10/20/13

 Check #: All - Vendor: All  - Payee Name: All - By Payee Name - AP Pmt Distribution

Account Distributions

AmountAccount No. Account Description

Garnishments payable  278.76 10012250

Health insurance payable  1,092.56 10012260

Federal P/R Tax Deposits  11,222.61 10012301

State P/R Tax Deposits  1,882.56 10012302

Medical insurance  564.57 10105007

Deferred comp  574.90 10105010

Advertising - Council  86.26 10115013

Insurance Med/Den/Vis (516.47)10125007

Deferred retirement  673.31 10125010

Office expense  1,066.36 10125012

Contract Services  4,574.11 10125063

Professional services  3,813.43 10145052

Building and ground maint.  555.10 10155020

Trash service  30.55 10155030

Water  212.40 10155031

Utilities electric  294.48 10155032

Utilities gas  156.60 10155033

Telephone  671.60 10155034

Audit and accounting  2,092.00 10165054

ACCOUNTING SERVICES  850.00 10165054.1

Contractual services  360.00 10165055

Copy machine expense  333.62 10165078

Car Allowance  400.00 10165096

Miscellaneous  1,224.71 10165099

Supplies - public restroom  466.24 10175024

Water - public restroom  111.85 10175031

Electric - public restroom  31.17 10175032

Chamber of Commerce  5,543.09 10175072

Donation - Visitors & Conv.  6,966.07 10175072.1

Employee appreciation  28.48 10175072.2

Medical insurance  1,127.59 10215007

Deferred retirement  1,343.30 10215010

Fuel  748.39 10215016

Page 610/22/2013  8 : 43 am

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 16



Printed Regular Checks

General Checking - Summary - From 09/21/13 To 10/20/13

 Check #: All - Vendor: All  - Payee Name: All - By Payee Name - AP Pmt Distribution

Building and gounds maint.  156.48 10215020

Special department supply  352.08 10215024

Uniform expense  500.00 10215026

Water  71.50 10215029

Utilities electric  140.26 10215032

Telephone  418.23 10215034

Dispatch service  1,016.66 10215035

Training  466.00 10215048

Professional services  105.00 10215052

Contract Services  57.90 10215063

Booking fees  249.90 10215086

Animal control  450.00 10225096

Professional services  153.47 10245052

Medical insurance  177.36 10315007

Deferred retirement  182.89 10315010

General planning services  2,293.60 10415052

Reimbursable fees  580.92 10415053

Special Planning Projects  2,176.50 10415058

General engineering  5,498.24 10425052

Developer engineering  3,760.30 10425053

Building regulation/inspectio  5,042.48 10435052

Books  409.00 10615024

Utilities  137.58 10615032

Water  25.60 10615033

Telephone  143.98 10615034

Building and ground maint.  237.58 10625020

Utilities - electric  67.54 10625032

Water  121.01 10625033

Medical insurance  127.83 10635007

Deferred retirement  163.29 10635010

Buildings and grounds maintenance  292.73 10635020

Water  65.86 10635031

Utilities  263.99 10635032

Gas  272.99 10635033

Contractual Services  475.70 10635055

Building and grounds maint  6,984.85 21625020

Page 710/22/2013  8 : 43 am

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 17



Printed Regular Checks

General Checking - Summary - From 09/21/13 To 10/20/13

 Check #: All - Vendor: All  - Payee Name: All - By Payee Name - AP Pmt Distribution

Medical insurance  279.61 22315007

Deferred retirement  203.21 22315010

Street lighting  1,225.74 22315058

Contract Services  57.90 22315063

Transportation devel. act  15,919.62 24314231

Medical insurance  203.90 24315007

Deferred retirement  207.84 24315010

Fuel  494.22 24315016

Building & ground maintenance  3.84 24315020

Street maintenance  580.00 24315021

Street project  1,399.65 24315022

Special department  300.00 24315024

Utilities  121.12 24315032

Water  35.79 24315033

Telephone  75.98 24315034

Miscellaneous  775.95 24315099

Medical insurance  100.29 25315007

Medical insurance  112.31 26315007

Deferred compensation  192.88 26315010.1

Supplies  14.16 26315024

Contract Services  57.90 26315063

Interest-Six Rivers loan  3,322.40 26315194

Medical insurance  2,614.49 30515007

Deferred retirement  2,316.30 30515010

Vehicle gas  169.45 30515016

Garbage/sludge  1,281.37 30515030

Utilities - electric - plant  5,028.62 30515032

Telephone  281.30 30515034

Training  350.00 30515048

Contractual services  4,128.50 30515055

Capital outlay  946.05 30515095

Sewer plant maintenance  6,280.37 30515121

Testing and monitoring  2,997.00 30515157

Plans, specs & estimates  6,365.25 40315052

Construction  3,964.50 48515095

 144,907.01 

Page 810/22/2013  8 : 43 am

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 18



City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
City Council Minutes for October 3, 2013 

P a g e  | 1 

Study Session:  Mayor Stuart Titus called the Sign Ordinance Study Session to order at 6:25PM.    City 
Planner George Williamson presented background information and gave a brief overview of the Sign 
Ordinance.  The Sign Ordinance Committee and City Planner Melanie Rheaume were publicly thanked 
for the hard work that went into drafting the ordinance.  Small changes to the Zoning Ordinance may be 
necessary in the future.  Councilman Maxwell asked if lumens would be a better measure of light 
intensity than watts.  No other changes were suggested.   

Mayor Stuart Titus called the Regular City Council Meeting to order at 7:02PM. Present were 
Councilmen John Maxwell, Ken Mierzwa, Michael Sweeney and Daniel Brown along with staff City 
Manager Jay Parrish, Deputy City Clerk Christina Wile, Contract City Planner George Williamson, Chief of 
Police Bret Smith, and City Engineer Praj White.  

Roll Call & Pledge Allegiance:  Those present pledged allegiance to the flag.  
There was no action to Report out of Closed Session. 
There were no Ceremonial Items or Modifications to the Agenda.   

Study Session:  City Manager Jay Parrish briefly summarized the comments made during the Study 
Session.  

Public Comment:  David Erickson, Preserve Manager from Eel River Estuary Preserve for the Wildlands 
Conservancy invited the Council and City Staff to join him for a tour sometime in the future.   

Consent Calendar:  Accept Accounts Payable.  Approve the minutes as presented from the September 5, 
2013 Regular and Special City Council Meetings, and the September 23, 2013 Special City Council 
Meeting (note: John Maxwell was not present for September 23, 2013 Special City Council Meeting).  
MOTION: (Titus/Mierzwa) Unanimous. 

No Call Items or Presentations. 

PUBLIC HEARING Continuation PG&E Undergrounding: Mayor Stuart Titus recused himself from the 
meeting at 7:09PM.  Vice Mayor Ken Mierzwa reopened the public hearing at 7:09PM.  The City 
Manager presented background information.  The City Engineer reported on a recent meeting with 
PG&E representatives to determine potential project boundary lines.  PG&E’s Environmental Division 
will be collecting data and potential project areas.  Vice Mayor Mierzwa opened the hearing for public 
comments.  On behalf of Willis Hadley, Attorney Tom Herman urged the City to consider areas other 
than the end of Francis Street for the undergrounding project.  Willis Hadley is concerned that PG&E 
may be partial to the Francis Street project because it will be less expensive to maintain over the years. 
Vice Mayor Mierzwa closed the public hearing at 7:24PM. 

Councilman Maxwell pointed out the action indicates that staff will be working on continuing the Francis 
Street project.   City Engineer Praj White informed the Council that the Francis Street project may 
require conduits and risers near the bridge to protect lines from high flow events.  The City may have to 
bear the costs of conduits, risers and bridge alterations.  The City Engineer suggested setting aside the 
issue while additional data is collected and other project areas are analyzed.  Vice Mayor Mierzwa 
suggested changing the language of the action item to include other possible project areas.  John 
Maxwell made a motion to approve the action requested as per Business Item 12a with the elimination 
of the words “said area as”.  MOTION(Maxwell/Sweeney).  Unanimous (Titus Recused).   

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 19



City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
City Council Minutes for October 3, 2013 

P a g e  | 2 

Mayor Titus returned to the meeting at 7:34PM.  

First Reading of Ordinance 2013-02, Sign Ordinance.  Contract City Planner presented background 
information.  Public Comment: Nancy Trujillo wanted reassurance that the Ferndale Art & Cultural 
Center sign would be in compliance with the new ordinance.   The Sign Ordinance Committee, Contract 
City Planner Melanie Rheaume, and everyone else who contributed to the Sign Ordinance were publicly 
thanked for three years of hard work and dedication. MOTION to approve the first reading of Ordinance 
2013-02, Sign Ordinance (Sweeney/Brown).  Unanimous.   

General Plan Update – Noise and Air Quality Element Scope of Work:  Contract City Planner George 
Williamson presented the topic and informed the Council that the scope of work received favorable 
action from the Planning Commission at their last meeting.  There will be opportunities to use air quality 
benchmarking information from a recent RCEA study. MOTION to direct Staff to move ahead with the 
General Plan Update as described in Business Item 12c (Maxwell/Sweeney).  Unanimous.   

First Reading of Ordinance 2013-03, Medical Marijuana Dispensary and Cultivation Ordinance:  Chief of 
Police Bret Smith gave a background presentation.  Council fully supported prohibiting medical 
marijuana dispensaries and regulating indoor cultivation for licensed users.  MOTION to approve the 
first reading of Ordinance 2013-03, Medical Marijuana and Dispensary Ordinance (Titus/Maxwell) 
Unanimous.  

Update on the Property Acquisition of the “Old Nilsen Barn Property”:  City Manager Jay Parrish gave 
background information.  Jay would like to set up a public, community meeting to receive input on the 
best use of the property.  Public Comment :    Bruce Keller from Artisan Alley would like to see a non-
profit group take possession, but not ownership of the Old Nilsen Barn located on the property.  
Ultimately, he would like to see a restored barn that could act as an activity center for the Artisan Alley 
cultural district.   

Design Review Committee Appointment:  Deputy City Clerk Christina Wile introduced the topic and 
presented the Planning Committee’s rankings of the three Design Review Committee Applicants.  Public 
Comment: Caroline Titus asked why the Commissioners did not include their names with the rankings.  
Section 6.05.4 of Zoning Ordinance 02-02 does not require Commissioners to submit their names with 
the rankings.  Councilman Sweeney thanked all of the applicants.  MOTION (Maxwell/Sweeney) 
Unanimous. 

Reports:  The City Manager publically thanked Mr. Martin Tubb for volunteering to paint City Hall.  Jay 
also thanked the Rotary Club for their generous donation, which covered most of the paint cost.  Praj 
White updated the Council on outcome of the bid for the Rose Avenue Project.  V&C Construction has 
agreed to honor their bid price until the project begins next summer.   

The meeting was adjourned at 8:17PM. The next regular Council Meeting is scheduled for November 7, 
2013 at 7:00PM. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Christina Wile, Deputy City Clerk 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 20



City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
Special City Council Meeting Minutes for October 17, 2013

P a g e  | 1 

Mayor Stuart Titus called the Special City Council Meeting to order at 5:00 PM. Present were 
Councilmen Michael Sweeney, John Maxwell, Ken Mierzwa and Daniel Brown along with staff City 
Manager Jay Parrish, contract City Planners George Williamson and Melanie Rheaume and City Attorney 
Russ Gans.  Those present pledged allegiance to the flag and the City Clerk called roll. 

There were no Modifications to the Agenda, or Ceremonial Items. 

Public Comment: Nancy Trujillo commented on behalf of Gable Properties, LLC.  Ms. Trujillo explained 
why the building at 580 Main Street remains without siding, raised questions about the Design Review 
Use Permit and related CEQA process, and stated that she has yet to receive certain documents she has 
requested from the City.  Ms. Trujillo stated that she wants all documentation related to her application 
in order to complete processing the property title transfer from Sylvia Sterling Trust to Gable Property, 
LLC.  She also commented on the existing Tyvek, acknowledging that it would be replaced prior to 
application of siding, and that Gable will not be putting siding on the building until after this coming 
winter due to wet weather conditions.   

No Consent Calendar Items, Call Items or Presentations. 

MOTION made by Council Member Mierzwa, Seconded by Council Member Sweeney. 

MOTION:  "Instruct City Attorney and Staff to contact the attorney for Gable Properties, LLC, and seek 
an amicable schedule for prosecution of a building permit to install siding on the Main Street property 
prior to initiation of litigation to abate the nuisance.  Staff and/or the City Attorney are to report to the 
Council regarding the results of these efforts at the November 7, 2013, Council Meeting." 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:29 PM. The next regular Council Meeting is scheduled for November 7, 
2013 at 7PM. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jay Parrish, City Manager/City Clerk  
Transcribed by Christina Wile, Deputy City Clerk 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 21



Section 10

CALL ITEMS 

These are items pulled from the consent agenda 
for discussion and a separate motion. 

Section 11 

  PRESENTATIONS

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 22



Section 12 

BUSINESS 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 23



Meeting Date: November 7, 2013 Agenda Item Number 12a 
Agenda Item Title: Annual Tractor Parade Route and Staging Area  

Presented By: City Manager, Jay Parrish  
Type of Item: X Action Discussion Information 
Action Required: Confirm Annual Tractor Parade Route and Staging Area 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Have a discussion with the Tractor Parade Committee to determine whether changes should be made to 
the Tractor Parade Route and Staging Area that was approved last January with the Annual Road Closure 
Resolution number 2013-03.   

BACKGROUND: 

In past years, the Annual Christmas Lighted Tractor Parade route ran from the intersection of Ocean and 
Main Street to the intersection of Lewis and Main Street.   On January 03, 2013 City Council adopted 
Resolution 2013-03, which approved a road closure for the following modified parade route:  
Lineup/Staging on the west side of Fifth Street just north of A Street, going back to the Fairgrounds. The 
parade starting point is Ocean and Main. Parade may advance from staging area to starting point at 
6:45pm. Route from staging is south on Fifth Street, left (southeast) on Ocean and a left (northeast) on 
Main to left (west) on Arlington and back to starting point for disassembly.   

The Fire Chief and Chief of Police requested that the parade route be changed for public safety reasons. 
The old route was out of compliance with fire codes, and would prevent emergency response vehicles 
from accessing residences on Francis Street in the event of an emergency.  The Fire Chief and Chief of 
Police support the modified route that was adopted with Resolution 2013-03.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 24



Meeting Date: November 7, 2013 
Agenda Item Number 

12b 

Agenda Item Title: Update on 580 Main Street 
Presented By: City Manager 
Type of Item: Action Discussion x Information 
Action Required: Receive and File 

RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file.  

BACKGROUND: City Council held a Special Closed Session Meeting on October 17, 2013 to consider 
initiation of litigation against Gable Properties, LLC, regarding the property located at 580 Main Street, 
Ferndale, California (noncompliance with Building Code and Public Nuisance). Council directed the City 
Attorney to discuss the matter with counsel for Gable Properties and to provide an update at the 
November 7th Council Meeting.    

FISCAL IMPACT: None.  

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 25



Meeting Date: November 7, 2013 Agenda Item Number 
Agenda Item Title: Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2013-02 Sign Ordinance 
Presented By: Contract City Planner 
Type of Item: x Action  Discussion Information 
Action Required: Approve Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2013-02 Sign Ordinance 

RECOMMENDATION:  Accept changes to, approve the second reading of, and adopt Ordinance 2013-02 
Sign Ordinance.    

BACKGROUND: The City Council approved the first reading of the Sign Ordinance during its October 
meeting and directed staff to bring it back to the November meeting for a second reading and possible 
adoption.  During a study session prior to the regular Council meeting, some questions and issues were 
raised.  In response, City staff has revised the attached proposed Ordinance.  The proposed Ordinance 
has also undergone legal review.  Changes are marked, with additions in red underline and deletions in 
red strikeout.   

DISCUSSION:  During the October 3rd Sign Ordinance study session and regular meeting, Council 
members and public raised questions and suggested revisions to the draft Ordinance.  The following 
discussion addresses considerations and revisions made in response to the issues raised. 

Council member Maxwell requested that regulations for sign lighting use lumens as a standard measure 
rather than watts.  Staff incorporated maximum allowance for lumens in §7.2 and §8.9.  

Council member Maxwell also raised the question of how the new Ordinance would affect the Nilsen 
Feed Store parcel, which is zoned CAGDQ. The current sign regulations, embedded in the Zoning 
Ordinance, contain the following section regulating signage in the CAGDQ zone:  

7.23.3 Other Regulations (§7.23.3 amended by Ordinance 06-05) 

c. In the CAGDQ zone:

i. All signage shall be non-illuminated and non-plastic

ii. No more than 400 sq. ft. in total square footage

iii. No single sign may exceed 32 sq. ft.

iv. All faces of a multi-faced sign shall be included except for double-faced signs
that shall count as a single-faced sign. 

v. With the exception of signs directly painted onto the wall surface, the area of
a sign shall include the board or other material of which the sign is a part, 
including the framing which surrounds the sign, but excluding the brackets, 
posts or any other structure from which the sign is hung or covered. (end of 
§7.23.3 which was amended by Ordinance 06-05)

The proposed Sign Ordinance would allow external illumination of signs in the zone, but internally 
illuminated signs (except product signs) are prohibited in all zones.  Plastic signs are not prohibited, but 
signs must be made of durable material and, in the Design Review Combining Zone, must be consistent 
in appearance to the materials of surrounding historic structures.  The proposed Ordinance would 
further limit the aggregate square footage allowed for the building, to a maximum of 175 feet or less 

12c

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 26



depending on the frontage of the building.  Single signs may be larger under the proposed Ordinance 
(see discussion below). Subsections iv and v would still apply to the parcel.   

Nancy Trujillo requested that a specific definition be added to the proposed Ordinance allowing for signs 
containing only building names to be allowed and not count towards aggregate area allowances.  The 
definitions for Nameplates and Historic Significant Plaques were modified to allow for signs identifying 
buildings.  The Historic Signs provision also allows for historically significant building identification signs.   

In considering building identification signs as requested by Ms. Trujillo, City staff determined that the 
maximum sign sizes in the draft Ordinance did not reflect Ferndale’s existing signage. Direction from the 
Sign Ordinance Committee and Planning Commission has been to produce an Ordinance that takes into 
account the unique needs of Ferndale’s business community in the Historic District.  Maximum sign 
allowances were increased accordingly.  Maximum single sign size was increased to 60 square feet, 
maximum projecting sign size was increased to 33 square feet, maximum aggregate signage was 
increased to 175 square feet, and the formula for calculating signage was increased as follows: 

Aggregate sign area per building frontage shall not exceed the lesser of the following: 175 
square feet or 0.75 square feet for each foot of frontage on a public way, plus 0.25 square feet 
for each foot of building façade height.  

The City Attorney conducted a legal review of the Ordinance. Changes include adding definitions of City 
Manager, City Staff, and Design Review Committee, Permit, and Zone to Article 4 and changing the time 
limits on political signs in §6.3.4.5. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The adoption of the proposed ordinance is not a project subject to CEQA 
pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations, Sections 15060(c)(2) and 15060(c)(3), as the activity 
will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Staff time and materials authorized on June 6, 2013. 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 27



ORDINANCE NO 2013-02 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE STATE OF CALIFORNIA REGULATING THE USE, LOCATIONS, 
DIMENSIONS, TYPE, AND CONTENT OF SIGNS; SPECIFYING MAXIMUM DIMENSIONS AND TYPES OF SIGNS 
FOR VARIOUS LAND USES AND ZONES; DEFINING WORDS AND TERMS; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF 
USE PERMITS AND FOR RELATED STANDARDS AND CONDITIONS; SPECIFYING PROCEDURES FOR THE 
ADMINISTRATION AND AMENDMENT OF, AND PRESCRIBING PENALTIES FOR THE VIOLATION OF, ANY OF 
THESE PROVISIONS; AND REPEALING ORDINANCE 02-02 §3.66, §5.10.1f, §7.23 AND §7.27.47.23.  
 
Table of Contents  
 
Article 1 Adoption, Short Title, Purpose and Repeal ............................................................................... 1 

Article 2 Statutory Authority / Enforcement Authority .......................................................................... 2 

Article 3 Applicability ............................................................................................................................... 3 

Article 4 Definitions ................................................................................................................................. 4 

Article 5 Sign Permits .............................................................................................................................. 7 

Article 6 Exemptions from Sign Permit Requirements ............................................................................ 9 

Article 7 Prohibited Signs ...................................................................................................................... 12 

Article 8 General Requirements for All Signs ........................................................................................ 13 

Article 9 Sign Standards by Zone ........................................................................................................... 17 

Article 10 Standards for Specific Sign Types ............................................................................................ 17 

Article 11 Exceptions ............................................................................................................................... 20 

Article 12 Nonconforming Signs .............................................................................................................. 20 

Article 13 Abatement and Removal ........................................................................................................ 20 

Article 14 Amendment ............................................................................................................................ 21 

Article 15 Enactment ............................................................................................................................... 21 
 
Figures 
 
Ferndale Zoning Map……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..22 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Article 1  ADOPT ION,  SHO RT TI TLE,   A N D PU RPO SE  A ND  REPE AL  

§1.1 Adoption: There is hereby adopted a Sign Ordinance for the City of Ferndale, State of California, 
pursuant to California Government Code §65000 et seq., §65850(b), §38774, §38775, Business 
and Professions Code §5200 et seq. and §5490 et seq., Civil Code §713, and other applicable State 
laws. This Ordinance constitutes a precise plan for the regulation of signs and sign structures in 
conformity with the General Plan and General Plan Standards. The provisions of this Ordinance 
shall apply to all lands and all landowners within the incorporated areas of the City of Ferndale. 

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 1 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 28



§1.2 Short Title: This Ordinance shall be known and cited as the “Sign Ordinance.” In any administrative 
action taken by any public official under the Authority set forth in the Ordinance, the use of the 
term “Sign Ordinance,” unless further modified, shall also refer to and mean this Ordinance. 

§1.3 Purpose: This Ordinance is adopted to protect community safety and values through the 
regulation of signs and sign structures. The regulations established by this Ordinance are intended 
to appropriately limit the placement, type, size, and number of signs allowed within the City, and 
to require proper sign maintenance. The purposes of these limitations and requirements are to: 

1.3.1 Promote historic preservation of contributing structures and downtown Ferndale; 

1.3.2 Ensure that Ferndale signage conforms to the purposes and objectives of the Design 
Review Combining Zone as per Zoning Ordinance 02-02;   

1.3.3 Promote the community’s aesthetic and economic values by providing for signs that do 
not impair the attractiveness of the City as a place to live, work, shop, and visit;  

1.3.4 Provide for signs as an effective channel of communication, while ensuring that signs are 
designed in a manner consistent with Ferndale’s historical styles and aesthetically 
proportioned to the structures to which they are associated;  

1.3.5 Safeguard and protect the public health, safety and general welfare by allowing safe and 
effective signage while avoiding visual clutter, distractions and obstructions; and 

1.3.6 Defend and preserve the rights of freedom of association, speech and expression in all 
matters pertaining to signage. 

§1.4 Repeal: The adoption of this ordinance shall repeal Ordinance 02-02 §3.66, §5.10.1f, §7.23 and 
§7.27.4. 

Article 2  ST AT UTO RY AUT HOR ITY  /  EN FORCEME NT  AUT HO RI TY  

§2.1 The statutory authority for this Ordinance is California Government Code §65000 et seq., 
§65850(b), §38774, §38775, Business and Professions Code §5200 et seq. and §5490 et seq., Civil 
Code §713, and other applicable State laws. 

§2.2 All departments, officers and public employees vested with the duty or authority to issue permits 
shall issue no sign permit within the City in conflict with these regulations, and any such permit 
issued in conflict with these regulations shall be null and void. 

§2.3 Any person whether principal, agent, employee or otherwise, violating or causing or permitting 
the violation of any one of the provisions of these regulations shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, 
and upon conviction thereof shall be punishable by a fine of not more than $500.00 per violation 
or by imprisonment for not more than 6 months or by both such fine and imprisonment. 

§2.4 Any sign installed or maintained contrary to the provisions of these regulations shall be a public 
nuisance subject to injunction and abatement. 

§2.5 The remedies provided herein shall be cumulative and not exclusive. 

§2.6 The City Manager (or in his/her absence the Mayor), or his/her designee shall be responsible for 
the enforcement of the provisions of these regulations.  

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 2 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 29



§2.7 In the event that any fee or charge is not paid within the time period specified by the City, the City 
shall retain the right to seek enforcement and/or collection in court, at the expense of the 
responsible party. Expenses shall be recoverable by the City whether by assessment by the City 
Council following a hearing at a regularly scheduled City Council meeting or by a court of 
competent jurisdiction and shall further include the actual costs of collection such as staff time, 
administrative costs, court costs, attorneys’ fees and penalties. 

Article 3  APPLIC ABIL ITY   

§3.1 Signs Regulated. Any alteration to the structure, area, height, or placement of an existing 
regulated sign, shall require that the existing sign be modified to comply with all applicable 
provisions of this Ordinance. The requirements of this Ordinance shall apply to all new signs and 
all changes to existing signs in all zones except the following: 

3.1.1 Art and Decorations. A display designed and intended as a decorative or ornamental 
feature that does not contain advertising text or identifying symbols such as numbers, 
address, registered trademarks, or registered logos. 

3.1.2 Government and Required Signs. Signs required and/or installed by a Federal or State 
governmental agency, the City, County, or local agency, including but not limited to the 
following. Such signs shall not require a Design Review Use Permit.   

3.1.2.1 Emergency and warning signs necessary for public safety or homeland 
security;  

3.1.2.2 Traffic control, directional, and street name signs erected and maintained by 
an authorized public agency;  

3.1.2.3 Signs showing the location of public facilities (e.g., civic buildings and facilities, 
public telephones, restrooms, and underground utilities);  

3.1.2.4 Any sign, posting, public notice, or similar sign placed by or required by a 
governmental agency in carrying out its responsibility to protect public health, 
safety, and general welfare;  

3.1.2.5 Notices, licenses, permits, and other signs required by law; and   

3.1.2.6 Service station fuel price signs no larger than required by State law. 

3.1.3 Historical Signs. An existing sign shown by an applicant to be older than 50 years or 
found to be of historical significance by the Planning Commission is exempt from the 
provisions of this Ordinance. The applicant for this exemption shall incur a fee to cover 
the costs of staff time and materials. Changes to such signs, including relocation but not 
including nonstructural modifications and nonstructural maintenance (e.g., painting, 
rust removal), shall nullify this exemption.  

3.1.4 Sign Content. The provisions of this Ordinance do not regulate the message content of 
signs (sign copy), regardless of whether the message content is commercial or 
noncommercial. Nothing contained in this Ordinance is intended to favor commercial 
speech over noncommercial speech. Notwithstanding anything else contained in this 
Ordinance, protected noncommercial speech shall be permitted on any sign on which 
commercial speech is allowed under this Ordinance and any sign containing protected 
noncommercial speech shall be deemed to be an on-site sign. 

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 3 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 30



3.1.5 Sign Location. Signs located on the interior of buildings or structures are not regulated 
by this Ordinance, unless such signs are located within five feet of a street facing window 
and oriented towards the window and not primarily designed for the information of 
persons within the structure or building. This exemption includes scoreboard signs, signs 
on the inside of ball field fences and signs located within the site of a special event such 
as a fair, festival or carnival. 

Article 4  DEFI NI TIO N S   
Unless defined below, words or phrases used in this Ordinance shall be interpreted so as to give them the 
meaning they have in common usage and to give this Ordinance its most reasonable application. 

§4.1 ABANDONED OR OBSOLETE SIGN:  A sign that no longer advertises a business, lessor, owner, 
product, service or activity on the premises where the sign is displayed.   

§4.2 AFFILIATION SIGN:  A sign identifying membership in an association or network.  

§4.3 ANIMATED SIGN:   A sign which uses movement, blinking, flashing, change or fluctuation of 
lighting intensity, color, motion or sense of motion, or sound to depict action or create a special 
effect, including programmable displays and rotating signs.   

§4.4 AWNING, CANOPY OR MARQUEE SIGN:  A sign displayed on or attached flat against the surface 
or surfaces of an awning, canopy, or marquee. 

§4.5 BANNER, FLAG OR PENNANT:   Cloth, bunting, plastic, paper, or similar non-rigid material used 
for advertising purposes attached to a structure, staff, pole, line, framing, or vehicle, not including 
official flags of the United States, the State of California, and other states of the nation, counties, 
municipalities, official flags of foreign nations and nationally or internationally recognized 
organizations. 

§4.6 BILLBOARD:  Any freestanding off-site outdoor advertising sign and or panel independent of a 
building to attract the attention of those passing by.   

§4.7 BULLETIN BOARD: A permanent sign with posted messages that relay community information. 

§4.8 CITY MANAGER: The City Manager for the City of Ferndale. 

§4.9 CITY STAFF:  The City Manager for the City of Ferndale or his/her designee. 

§4.10 CONSTRUCTION SIGN:  A sign advertising or identifying the persons or firms associated with a 
construction or development project.  

§4.11 COPY: The graphic content of a sign surface in either permanent or removable letters, images, 
symbols, figures or message format. 

§4.12 DERELICT SIGN:  A sign that is dilapidated or in such condition as to create a hazard or nuisance, 
or to be unsafe or fail to comply with the applicable Building or Electrical Codes.  

§4.13 DESIGN CONTROL COMBINING ZONE: “Design Control Combining Zone” is defined in Article VI, 
§6.05 of Zoning Ordinance 02-02. 

§4.14 DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE: That Committee which is appointed pursuant to Article VI, §6.05.4 
of Zoning Ordinance 02-02. 

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 4 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 31



§4.15 DESIGN REVIEW USE PERMIT: Shall mean those permits issued pursuant to Article VI, §6.05.4 of 
Zoning Ordinance 02-02. 

§4.16 DIRECTIONAL SIGN:   A sign designed and erected solely for the purpose of directing those passing 
by. 

§4.17 FLASHING SIGN:  A sign having a conspicuous and intermittent variation in lighting; a sign 
incorporating intermittent electrical impulses from a source of light or a light revolving in a 
manner which creates the illusion of flashing.  

§4.18 FREESTANDING SIGN:  A sign permanently attached to the ground which is supported by one or 
more uprights, braces, poles or other similar structural components that is not attached to a 
building or buildings, nor has a building as its primary structural support. This includes ground 
signs, pole signs and monument signs. 

§4.19 GARAGE AND YARD SALE SIGNS:  A sign with a message advertising the resale of personal 
property. 

§4.20 GASOLINE PRICE SIGN:  A sign that announces the price of fuel to those passing by. 

§4.21 HISTORIC SIGNIFICANCE PLAQUE:  A sign announcing the location of a feature, place or building 
found to be historically significant and authorized or erected by a state or nationally recognized 
historical preservation society, the City Council, or a federal or state authority. 

§4.22 ILLUMINATED SIGN: A sign with an artificial light source for the purpose of lighting the sign. 

4.22.1 INDIRECTLY ILLUMINATED SIGN:  A sign whose light source is exterior to the sign and 
which casts light onto the sign from some distance.  

4.22.2 INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED SIGN:  A sign that houses an internal lighting system.  

§4.23 INCIDENTAL SIGN: A small sign, emblem, or decal providing only information to those passing by 
regarding aspects of service available on the premises, such as credit cards accepted or open 
hours. 

§4.24 INFLATABLE SIGN:  Any sign that is or can be enlarged with three cubic feet or more of air, liquid 
or gas. 

§4.25 LOGO: An established identifying trademark or symbol of an organization, business or business 
entity. 

§4.26 MOVING SIGN: Any sign or device which has any visible moving part, visible revolving part, or 
visible mechanical movement, including wind-driven signs but not including banners, flags, or 
pennants. 

§4.27 MULTI-FACED SIGN:  A sign that has two or more sign faces. 

§4.28 MURAL:  A display painted directly on a wall which is designed and intended as a decorative or 
ornamental feature. Murals do not contain advertising text, numbers, address, registered 
trademarks, or registered logos. A mural is generally not considered a sign.   

§4.29 NAMEPLATE: An on-site wall sign which gives only the name of the building or the name, contact 
information, address and/or occupation of an occupant or group of occupants. 

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 5 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 32



§4.30 OFF-SITE SIGN:  A sign which directs attention to a business, product, service, industry or other
activity not sold, offered or conducted on the premises upon which the sign is located. 

§4.31 ON-SITE SIGN:  A sign which directs attention to a business, product, service, industry or other
activity sold, offered or conducted on the premises upon which the sign is located. 

§4.32 OPINION SIGN:  A temporary sign that directly relates to a candidate for public office or to a ballot
issue, proposition, or a party in an election conducted by a governmental entity or a sign 
expressing political, social, religious, or other ideological sentiments that does not advertise a 
product or service.  

§4.33 PORTABLE SIGN:  A sign located on or off a business premises which is intended to be moved or
capable of being moved, whether or not on a motor vehicle, wheels or other special supports, 
including, but not limited to, "A-frame" type signs, placards and banners.  

§4.34 PRODUCT SIGN: A sign using logos, icons, shapes, or symbols to inform the public that a particular
product or brand is sold at that location. 

§4.35 PROJECTING SIGN:  A sign other than a wall sign that is suspended from, attached to, or projects
more than 12 inches from a building face or wall or from a structure whose primary purpose is 
other than the support of the sign. 

§4.36 REAL ESTATE SIGN:  A temporary sign announcing the offer to build on, sell, lease or rent real
property and identifying the entity handling such sale, lease or rental. Includes signs announcing 
an open house for the property. 

§4.37 ROOF SIGN:  A sign that is mounted on the roof of a building or which is wholly dependent upon
a building for support and which projects above the point of a building with a flat roof, the eave 
line of a building with a gambrel, gable or hip roof . 

§4.38 SANDWICH BOARD SIGN:  A temporary portable A-Frame sign placed outside a business.

§4.39 SEASONAL SIGNS AND DECORATIONS:  Temporary seasonal, holiday and cultural observance
decorations which do not include commercial advertising messages. 

§4.40 SIGN: Any device, structure, fixture, or placard displaying graphics, symbols, and/or written copy
for the primary purpose of communicating with the public, when such image is visible from any 
public right-of-way, except the following: 

4.40.1 Personal appearance. Items or devices of personal apparel, decoration or appearance, 
including tattoos, makeup, wigs, costumes, masks, etc.; 

4.40.2 Manufacturers’ marks. Marks on tangible products, which identify the maker, seller, 
provider or product, and which customarily remain attached to the product even after 
sale; 

4.40.3 Mass transit graphics. Graphic images mounted on duly licensed mass transit vehicles 
that legally pass through the City; 

4.40.4 Vehicle and vessel insignia. On street legal vehicles and properly licensed watercraft: 
license plates, license plate frames, registration insignia, non-commercial messages, 
messages relating to the business of which the vehicle or vessel is an instrument or tool 

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 6 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 33



(not including general advertising) and messages relating to the proposed sale, lease or 
exchange of the vehicle or vessel; 

4.40.5 Grave stones and grave markers; 

4.40.6 News racks and newsstands; 

4.40.7 Shopping carts, golf carts, and horse drawn carriages; and 

4.40.8 Vending machines which do not display off-site commercial messages or general 
advertising messages. 

§4.41 SPECIAL EVENT SIGN: A temporary sign used to announce community wide events which are not 
conducted in connection with the operation of a commercial enterprise. 

§4.42 STREET ADDRESS:   Any series of numbers and/or letters used for describing the location of a 
building, apartment, or other structure or a plot of land on a street. 

§4.43 SUBDIVISION SIGN:  A temporary sign advertising a subdivision and providing travel directions to 
properties therein offered for sale or lease.  

§4.44 TEMPORARY SIGN:  A sign intended to display either commercial or noncommercial messages of 
a transitory or temporary nature.  

§4.45 TIME AND/OR TEMPERATURE SIGN:  Any sign or portion of a sign which displays only the current 
time and/or temperature that carries no other copy. 

§4.46 WALL SIGN:  A sign which is attached to or painted on the exterior wall of a structure with the 
display surface of the sign approximately parallel to the building wall.  

§4.47 WIND-DRIVEN SIGN:  A sign that moves freely in the wind.  

§4.48 WINDOW SIGN:  A sign which is attached to or painted on a window or door.   

§4.49 ZONE: A distinct and separate district within which certain uniform regulations and requirements 
or combinations thereof apply under the provisions of Ordinance 02-02. 

Article 5  SIG N PE RMIT S   

§5.1 Sign Permit Required:  No sign shall be constructed, installed, or modified, unless a sign permit is 
first obtained in compliance with this Section, or the sign is allowed without a sign permit by 
Article 6 (Exemptions from Sign Permit Requirements).  

5.1.1 Criteria for Approval:  No sign permit shall be approved for an existing or proposed sign 
unless the sign is in compliance with all applicable requirements of this Ordinance.  

5.1.2 Effect of Approval:  An approved sign shall be installed and maintained only in 
compliance with its sign permit.  

5.1.3 Design Review Use Permit:  A proposed sign may require a Design Review Use Permit in 
addition to a sign permit. 

5.1.4 Building Permit:  A proposed sign may require a Building Permit in addition to a sign 
permit.  

  

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 7 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 34



§5.2 Review Authority. 

5.2.1 City Staff: City Staff, as directed by the City Manager, shall review and decide sign permit 
applications in compliance with the findings required by §5.4 (Findings for approval), 
except as provided by §5.2.2. City Staff may, in its sole discretion, also refer any sign 
permit application to the Design Review Committee for review and decision.  

5.2.2 Design Review: In addition to signs within the Design Control Combining Zone, a Design 
Review Use Permit as provided for by Ordinance 02-02 shall be required for:  

5.2.2.1 Sign permit applications in any zone proposing signs over 20 square feet in 
area, or proposing a sign that will increase the total sign area on a site to over 
20 square feet; and  

5.2.2.2 All signs for nonresidential uses in residential zones unless exempt from sign 
permit requirements per Article 6. 

5.2.3 Conditions of Approval:  The review authority may require conditions of approval that 
it determines are necessary to achieve the purpose, intent, and objectives of this 
Ordinance.  

§5.3 Sign Permit Procedures.  

5.3.1 Application Requirements:  Each application shall include all of the following:  

5.3.1.1 A site plan and building elevations, drawn to scale, accurately showing the 
proposed location of each sign in relation to other signs on the site and 
building, including each present and planned sign of any type, whether or not 
requiring a permit;  

5.3.1.2 Plans for the sign, drawn to scale, accurately detailing the design and proposed 
appearance of the sign, including mounting and lighting details;  

5.3.1.3 A complete color scheme for the sign;  

5.3.1.4 Sufficient other details of the proposed sign to show that it complies with the 
provisions of this Ordinance;  

5.3.1.5 Written permission from the property owner for the placement of the 
proposed sign on the site;  

5.3.1.6 Computation of the total sign area, the area of each individual sign, the height 
of each sign, and the total number of existing and proposed signs on the 
parcel; and  

5.3.1.7 Other information as required by the review authority.  

§5.4 Findings for Approval. The approval of a sign permit shall require that the review authority make 
the following findings, as applicable: 

5.4.1 The proposed sign complies with the standards of this Ordinance and is in substantial 
conformance with the design criteria in §8.7 of this Ordinance.   

§5.5 Expiration and Extension of Sign Permit or Approval.  

5.5.1 Sign permit and sign plan approval shall expire 12 months from the date of approval 
unless the sign has been erected or a different expiration date is stipulated at the time 

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 8 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 35



of approval. Before the expiration of a sign permit, the applicant may apply for an 
extension of an additional 12 months from the original date of expiration. The review 
authority may make minor modifications, or may deny further extensions of the 
approved sign at the time of extension.  

5.5.2 The expiration date of the sign permit shall be automatically extended to concur with 
the expiration date of the companion Building Permit or other applicable permits.  

§5.6 Administrative Appeals. 

5.6.1 Administrative decisions, including determinations relative to application completeness, 
may be appealed to the City Council within 10 calendar days of City Staff’s determination, 
or, where referred by City Staff to the Design Review Committee for application review, 
within 10 calendar days of Design Review Committee action on the application, as set 
forth in Zoning Ordinance 02-02 Article XI. 

Article 6  EXEMPT ION S F ROM SIG N PERMIT  REQ UIREME NT S  
Unless otherwise specified in this Ordinance, the following signs and modifications are allowed in all zones 
without sign permit approval, provided they comply with Article 8 (General Requirements for All Signs), 
and any required Building Permit is obtained. No sign is allowed on a site if that sign, together with all 
other signs on the site, exceeds the maximum allowable sign area as specified in §8.4. 

§6.1 Nonstructural Modifications and Maintenance. Nonstructural modifications and maintenance of 
conforming signs, including modifications to sign copy or changes to the face or copy of 
changeable copy signs;  

§6.2 Permanent Signs.   

6.2.1 Historic Significance Plaque and Nameplate. Nameplates, building cornerstones when 
cut or carved into a masonry surface or when made of noncombustible material and 
made an integral part of the building or structure, and historic plaques erected and 
maintained by non-profit organizations, provided: 

6.2.1.1 Each building or structure shall bear only one such sign;  

6.2.1.2 Nameplates shall not exceed two square feet in area; 

6.2.1.3 Historic Significance Plaques shall not exceed four square feet in area;  

6.2.1.4 Signs shall be constructed of historically significant and durable materials; and 

6.2.1.5 The sign shall not be illuminated. 

6.2.2 Incidental and Affiliation. Incidental and Affiliation signs are allowed without a sign 
permit provided that the signs do not exceed one square foot each in area and are 
attached to a window pane, transom or door. These signs shall not be illuminated and 
are exempt from design review. 

6.2.3 Official Flags. Flags of national, State, or local governments, fraternal, or public service 
agencies, provided:  

6.2.3.1 Only one flag pole is permitted per parcel; 

6.2.3.2 A maximum of three flags shall be flown on one pole; 

6.2.3.3 The length of the flag shall not exceed one-third the height of the flag pole; 

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 9 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 36



6.2.3.4 The height to width ratio of the flag shall not exceed 1:1; 

6.2.3.5 The height of the flag pole shall not exceed 20 feet within a residential zone, 
and 30 feet within a nonresidential zone; and 

6.2.3.6 No private flag pole shall be located within a public right-of-way or required 
setback. 

6.2.4 Parking Information Signs. Signs identifying accessible parking spaces, tenant parking, 
customer parking only, etc., and/or noting that unauthorized vehicles may be towed or 
any other parking restriction, provided that:  

6.2.4.1 Such signs shall not be illuminated; 

6.2.4.2 A maximum of four signs shall be permitted per parcel; 

6.2.4.3 Each sign shall pertain to parking space(s) located on private property;  

6.2.4.4 No such sign shall exceed two square feet in area; and 

6.2.4.5 Such signs shall be exempt from Design Review. 

6.2.5 “No Trespassing” or similar signs regulating the use of property, provided the signs  do 
not exceed two square feet or a total aggregate area of four square feet.  

6.2.6 Street Address. As required by the California Building Code, all buildings must have 
street address numbers, building numbers or building identification placed in a position 
that is plainly legible and visible from the street or road fronting the property on 
buildings. Street address signs shall meet the following requirements: 

6.2.6.1 The address sign shall meet the requirements of the adopted California 
Building Code. 

6.2.6.2 The address numbers shall: 

6.2.6.2.1 Contrast with their background; 

6.2.6.2.2 Be Arabic numbers and/or alphabetical letters; 

6.2.6.2.3 Not exceed 12 inches in height; and 

6.2.6.2.4 Shall not be smaller than four inches in height nor have a stroke 
of less than one-half inch. 

6.2.6.3 Where access is by means of a private road and the building address cannot 
be viewed from the public way, a monument, pole, or other sign or means 
shall be used to identify the structure. 

6.2.7 Time and Temperature Signs and Barber Poles not exceeding 10 square feet in area. 

6.2.8 Window Signs. In all zones except residential zones, (R- zones), window signs in 
compliance with §10.10 of this Ordinance are allowed without a sign permit and are 
exempt from design review provided the signs do not exceed two square feet per sign 
and do not exceed the aggregate signage allowed for the window.   

  

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 10 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 37



§6.3 Temporary Signs. The following do not require a sign permit or Design Review: 

6.3.1 Banners and Pennants. Banners or pennants may be used for a period not to exceed 30 
days per year after submitting a signed and dated notice to City Hall including dates of 
use, business name and address, and applicant name and contact information. The 
banner or pennants shall have a maximum height of 4 feet and a maximum length of 50 
feet. See §10.8.1 for banners and pennants exceeding 30 days per year.   

6.3.2 Construction Signs. Construction signs, provided that the signs: 

6.3.2.1 Are erected no sooner than the date of Building Permit issuance and are 
removed within 30 days of Building Permit finalization; 

6.3.2.2 Shall not exceed a total aggregate area of ten square feet for individual lots or 
32 square feet for a subdivision frontage. Sign height shall not exceed six feet 
for a single lot or eight feet for a subdivision; 

6.3.2.3 Shall be placed at minimum ten feet from any public right-of-way or 15 feet of 
any intersection; 

6.3.2.4 One such sign shall be allowed per public entrance to the site or subdivision; 

6.3.2.5 Shall not advertise for employment or other services; and 

6.3.2.6 Shall not be illuminated. 

6.3.3 Garage and Yard Sale Signs. Garage and yard sale signs, provided that the signs: 

6.3.3.1 Shall not exceed five square feet in area and 48 inches in height; 

6.3.3.2 Shall not be illuminated; 

6.3.3.3 Shall not be placed on public property;  

6.3.3.4 No more than four off-site and one on-site sign shall be posted; and 

6.3.3.5  Garage and yard sale signs shall be allowed for up to 48 hours before and after 
the sale. 

6.3.4 Opinion and Special Event Signs. Opinion or special event signs shall not be prohibited 
by development restrictions (i.e., CC&R’s), provided that the signs:  

6.3.4.1 Shall not be illuminated; 

6.3.4.2 Shall be placed on private property with the property owner's consent;  

6.3.4.3 Shall not exceed a total aggregate area of 12 square feet on a site within a 
residential zone, and 32 square feet within a nonresidential zone;  

6.3.4.4 Shall not be placed within 15 feet of a fire hydrant, street sign, or traffic signal, 
or interfere with, confuse, obstruct, or mislead traffic; and 

6.3.4.5 Shall be placed no more than 60 120 days prior to the event or, if the event 
constitutes a regular or special election, upon official announcement of 
candidacy for a public office or announcement of a ballot 
initiative/proposition, and are removed within 48 hours after the conclusion 
of the political campaign, election or event to which they relate. A sign that is 
not removed may be removed by the City at the expense of the political 
candidate or organization involved. Opinion or social issue signs not related to 

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 11 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 38



an election, campaign or event that are intended to be posted for more than 
60120 days, will be regulated as permanent signs, require a sign permit, and 
are subject to design review. 

6.3.5 Real Estate Signs. Real estate signs in compliance with California Civil Code §713, subject 
to the following requirements:  

6.3.5.1 All Zones. Real estate signs shall not be illuminated and shall be removed upon 
sale or rental of the property and/or close of escrow. 

6.3.5.2 Commercial Zones. A site within a commercial zone (C- zone) shall be allowed 
one on-site freestanding real estate sign and one off-site freestanding real 
estate sign for each parcel frontage. Signs shall not exceed 32 square feet, with 
a maximum height of six feet. 

6.3.5.3 Residential Zones. A site within a residential zone (R- zone) shall be allowed 
one on-site freestanding real estate sign and one off-site freestanding real 
estate sign for each parcel frontage. Signs shall not exceed six square feet, with 
a maximum height of five feet. 

6.3.6 Seasonal Signs and Decorations.  Seasonal signs and decorations provided the signs are 
erected no sooner than 45 calendar days prior to the holiday and removed within 10 
days following the holiday. 

Article 7  PROH IBI TED  S IG NS   
All signs not expressly allowed by this Ordinance shall be prohibited, including the following:  

§7.1 Abandoned or derelict signs, sign structures or empty frames;  

§7.2 Animated and moving signs, including electronic message display signs, and variable intensity, 
blinking, or flashing signs, exposed illumination exceeding 15 watts or 1000 lumens, the use of 
flame as illumination or as a design feature, or signs that emit a varying intensity of light or color;   

§7.3 Signs that emit odor, noise, smoke, flame or visible matter other than light; 

§7.4 A sign attached to or suspended from a boat, vehicle, or other movable object that is parked 
within a public right-of-way, or located on private property but visible from a public right-of-way; 
except a sign painted directly upon, magnetically affixed to, or permanently affixed to the body 
or other integral part of a vehicle;  

§7.5 Signs containing obscene matter in violation of California Penal Code §311 et seq.; 

§7.6 Signs supported in whole or in part by cables or guy wires; 

§7.7 Billboards; 

§7.8 Inflatable signs;  

§7.9 Roof Signs;  

§7.10 Internally illuminated signs except product signs; 

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 12 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 39



§7.11 Signs that simulate in color, size, or design, any traffic control sign or signal, or that make use of 
words, symbols, or characters in a manner that interferes with, misleads, or confuses pedestrian 
or vehicular traffic, or creates a safety hazard;  

§7.12 Any sign not established and maintained in compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
in effect at the time of original installation; and 

§7.13 Temporary and portable signs, except as specifically allowed elsewhere in this Ordinance.   

Article 8  GENER AL  RE QUI REMEN T S FOR  ALL  SIG N S  

§8.1 Sign Height Measurement. The height of a sign shall be computed as the vertical distance from 
the lowest point of the base of the sign at normal grade, to the top of the highest attached 
component of the sign.  

8.1.1 Grade. Normal grade shall be construed to be the lower of either the:  

8.1.1.1 Existing grade before construction; or  

8.1.1.2 Newly established grade after construction, exclusive of any berming, filling, 
mounding, or excavating solely for the purpose of locating the sign.  

8.1.2 Where Normal Grade Cannot be Determined. If normal grade cannot reasonably be 
determined, sign height shall be computed on the assumptions that the elevation of the 
normal grade at the base of the sign is equal to the elevation of the nearest point of the 
street curb, or where there is no curb, the crown a public street, whichever is lower.  

§8.2 Sign Height Limits. Sign height shall not exceed the limit established for the applicable zone by 
Article 9 (Sign Standards by Zone), or as required for a specific sign type by Article 10 (Standards 
for Specific Sign Types). Where maximum height is not specified, the height of a sign shall not 
exceed 20 feet.  

§8.3 Sign Area Measurement. The measurement of sign area to determine compliance with the sign 
area limitations of this Ordinance shall occur as follows.  

8.3.1 Surface Area. The surface area of a sign shall be calculated by enclosing the extreme 
limits of all framing, emblem, logo, representation, writing, or other display within a 
single continuous perimeter composed of squares or rectangles with no more than eight 
lines.  

8.3.2 Sign Structure. Supporting bracing or framework that is clearly incidental to the display 
itself shall not be computed as sign area.  

8.3.3 Multi-faced Signs. The sign area for a sign with more than one face shall include only the 
area of the largest side. 

8.3.4 Three-dimensional Objects. Where a sign consists of one or more three-dimensional 
objects (e.g., balls, cubes, clusters of objects, sculpture, or statue-like trademarks), the 
sign area shall be measured as their maximum projection upon a vertical plane.  

§8.4 Sign Area and Quantity Limits. Sign area and quantity shall not exceed the limit established for 
the applicable zone by Article 9 (Sign Standards by Zone), or as required for a specific sign type by 
Article 10 (Standards for Specific Sign Types). Where maximum area is not specified, the area of a 
sign shall not exceed 32 60 square feet for a single sign, and aggregate sign area per building 

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 13 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 40



frontage shall not exceed the lesser of the following: 17590 square feet or 0.25 0.75 square feet 
for each foot of frontage on a public way, plus 0.1250.25 square feet for each foot of building 
façade height. 

8.4.1 Frontage. In the case of a building with frontage on more than one public way, each 
frontage shall be considered separately. For aggregate sign area, the total allowed per 
frontage may be distributed between the frontages (a building may use its combined 
area allowance on one side only, or may use some percentage on one side and the 
remainder on the other). Quantity limits pertain to each frontage (the total number of 
signs allowed cannot be combined and distributed between frontages).   

8.4.2 Unless otherwise specified in this Ordinance, signs exempt from permit requirements 
per Article 6 and Temporary signs per §10.8 of this Ordinance shall not be counted 
toward the aggregate area and quantity limit.  

8.4.3 Window signs shall not be counted toward aggregate area and quantity limits. 

8.4.4 A maximum of three permanent signs, one of which may be multi-faced, shall be allowed 
per business. 

8.4.5 A building with multiple businesses served by an interior mall shall be limited to one sign 
at each building entry identifying the building name and a directory not to exceed one 
square foot per business listed within the building. Individual businesses within the 
building shall be limited to one projecting sign not to exceed three square feet or one 
wall sign not to exceed six square feet. 

8.4.6 On any single parcel, temporary signs not including banners or pennants shall not exceed 
an aggregate area of 12 square feet within a residential zone or 32 square feet within a 
nonresidential zone. 

§8.5 Location Requirements. Each sign location shall meet the following requirements, and all other 
applicable provisions of this Ordinance.  

8.5.1 Each sign shall be located on the same site as the subject of the sign, except as otherwise 
allowed in this Ordinance;  

8.5.2 Each sign location shall comply with setback requirements of the applicable zone, except 
where a different requirement is established in this Ordinance; 

8.5.3 All signs shall comply with Americans with Disabilities Act restrictions for access; 

8.5.4 No sign shall be placed so as to interfere with the operation of or obscure a door, fire 
escape, stairway, standpipe, window, or building design element including a cornice or 
other decorative detail;  

8.5.5 Signs placed on private property shall have written permission from the property owner; 

8.5.6 No sign shall be marked on or affixed to a rock, tree, or other natural landscape feature;  

8.5.7 No sign shall be placed within 15 feet of a fire hydrant, on utility poles, traffic control 
signs or in the public right-of-way, except as allowed by this ordinance or government 
authority; and 

8.5.8 No sign shall be placed where it will interfere with visibility or safety.  

§8.6 Signs Placed Within the Public Right-of-Way.  

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 14 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 41



8.6.1 No sign shall be allowed in the public right-of-way, including sidewalks, except for:  

8.6.1.1 Signs with an encroachment permit from the appropriate agency. 

8.6.1.2 Signs on structures located within the right-of-way which by tradition or 
designation are used for the purpose of communication by the general public. 
Such structures shall include kiosks, bulletin boards, benches upon which 
advertisement is authorized, and newspaper racks, provided that such 
structures shall have either been placed in the right-of-way by the City or have 
an encroachment permit from the appropriate agency; 

8.6.1.3 Public signs erected by or on behalf of a governmental agency to convey public 
information, identify public property, post legal notices, or direct or regulate 
pedestrian or vehicular traffic;  

8.6.1.4 Bus stop signs installed by a public transit company;  

8.6.1.5 Informational signs of a public utility regarding lines, pipes, poles, or other 
facilities; or  

8.6.1.6 Emergency warning signs installed by a governmental agency, public utility 
company, or contractor doing authorized work within the public right-of-way.  

8.6.2 Any sign installed or placed within the public right-of-way other than in compliance with 
this Section shall be forfeited to the public and be subject to confiscation.  

8.6.3 In addition to other remedies identified in Article 13 (Abatement and Removal), the City 
shall have the right to recover from the owner, or person placing the sign, the full costs 
related to the removal and disposal of any sign not complying with this section.  

§8.7 Design Criteria. The following design criteria shall be used in reviewing the design of individual 
signs. Substantial conformance with each of the following design criteria shall be required before 
a sign permit can be approved.  

8.7.1 Design and Construction.  

8.7.1.1 A proposed permanent sign should be designed by a professional (e.g., 
architect, building designer, landscape architect, interior designer, or one 
whose principal business is the design, manufacture, or sale of signs), or others 
who are capable of producing professional results. The intent is to ensure 
public safety, to achieve signs of careful construction, neat and readable copy, 
and durability, to reduce maintenance costs and to prevent dilapidation.  

8.7.1.2 Signs that could potentially create a public hazard shall require plans signed by 
an engineer prior to permit approval, and may require inspection by the City 
Building Inspector.  

8.7.2 Materials and Structure.  

8.7.2.1 Materials for permanent signs shall be durable and capable of withstanding 
weathering over the life of the sign with reasonable maintenance.  

8.7.2.2 The size of the structural members (e.g. columns, crossbeams, and braces) 
shall be proportional to the sign panel they are supporting. In general, fewer 
larger supporting members are preferable to many smaller supports.  

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 15 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 42



8.7.2.3 Materials for signs within the Design Control Combining Zone shall be 
consistent in appearance to materials of surrounding historic structures. 

8.7.3 Color. Colors on signs and structural members should be harmonious with one another 
and relate to the dominant colors of the other structures on the site. Contrasting colors 
may be used if the overall effect of the sign is still compatible with the prevailing colors 
on the structure and in the surrounding neighborhood.  

§8.8 Copy and Typeface Guidelines. The City does not regulate the message content (copy) of signs; 
however, the basic principles of copy design and layout can enhance the readability and 
attractiveness of signs. Copy design and layout consistent with these principles is encouraged, but 
not required. 

8.8.1 For business signs, copy should relate only to the name and/or nature of the business or 
commercial center. 

8.8.2 Permanent signs that advertise continuous sales, special prices, make claims, or include 
phone numbers, etc. should be avoided. 

8.8.3 Information should be conveyed briefly or by logo, symbol, or other graphic manner. The 
intent should be to increase the readability of the sign and thereby enhance the identity 
of the business.   

§8.9 Lighting. Sign lighting shall be designed to minimize light and glare on surrounding rights-of-way 
and properties. Illuminated signs are allowed provided they comply with all other provisions of 
this Ordinance, including the following:  

8.9.1 External light sources shall be directed and shielded so that they do not produce glare 
on any object other than the sign. A maximum of 15 watts or 1000 lumens is allowed;  

8.9.2 Lighting from any sign shall not exceed one half (0.5) lumen per square foot measured 
at the nearest property line.Lighting shall not be of an intensity or brightness that will 
interfere with the reasonable enjoyment of residential properties;  

8.9.3 Lighting shall not blink, flash, flutter, or change intensity, brightness, or color;  

8.9.4 The use of mirrors or highly reflective surfaces that direct or reflect natural or artificial 
light onto a public right-of-way or adjoining property shall be prohibited;   

8.9.5 Neither the direct nor reflected light from primary light sources shall create hazards for 
pedestrians or operators of motor vehicles; and 

8.9.6 Indirect light sources shall utilize hard-wired fluorescent, LED, or compact fluorescent 
lamps, or other lighting technology that is of equal or greater energy efficiency. 
Incandescent, xenon, metal halide, mercury vapor, and sodium vapor lamps shall be 
prohibited. Timers and photoelectric cells are encouraged.    

§8.10 Sign Maintenance.  

8.10.1 Each sign and supporting hardware, including temporary signs, shall be maintained in 
good repair and functioning properly at all times.   

8.10.2 Any repair to a sign shall be of equal or better in the quality of materials and design as 
the original sign.  

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 16 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 43



8.10.3 A sign that is not properly maintained and is dilapidated shall be deemed a public 
nuisance, and may be abated in compliance with the Nuisance Ordinance.  

8.10.4 When an existing sign is removed or replaced, all brackets, poles, and other supports 
that are no longer required shall be removed, and unpainted areas shall be painted to 
match the adjacent portion of the structure.  

Article 9  SIG N ST A ND A RD S BY ZON E  
Each sign shall comply with the sign type, area, height, and other restrictions provided by the following 
table except as otherwise expressly provided in this Ordinance. Signs exempt from permit requirements 
per Article 6 and Temporary signs per §10.8 are not listed in this table, as they are generally allowed in all 
zones. For the purposes of the following table, the term “affixed” shall include all signs attached to or 
painted on a building, including but not limited to wall, awning, projecting, and window signs.  

Zone Use Allowed Sign Types Maximum  
Sign Height 

Maximum 
Aggregate 
Sign Area 

R-S, R-1, R-2 Uses permitted with a 
Use Permit 

One freestanding or one 
wall sign. 

Wall: Below Eave 
Freestanding: 4 ft.  

8 sq. 
ft./parcel 

R-3 Permitted non-
residential uses 

One freestanding or one 
wall sign. 

Wall: Below Eave 
Freestanding: 5 ft.  

8 sq. 
ft./parcel 

R-4 Permitted non-
residential uses 

One window sign and one 
freestanding or affixed sign. 

Wall: Below Eave 
Freestanding: 5 ft.  

8 sq. 
ft./parcel 

C-1, C-2, C-AG, C-H, 
M-L, M-H, F-W, F-P, 

P-D, A-E, P-F 

Permitted non-
residential uses 

Affixed, Freestanding, 
Sandwich Board 

Affixed: Below 
Eave 

Freestanding: 8 ft. 
See §8.4 

 

Article 10 ST A ND A RD S FO R SPECI FIC  SIG N TY PES   
Proposed signs shall comply with the following standards applicable to the specific sign type. Each sign 
type listed in this Section shall be subject to the zone location requirements and included in the calculation 
of the total sign area allowed on a parcel by Article 9 (Sign Standards by Zone), unless this Section explicitly 
provides otherwise. Each sign shall also comply with the sign area, height, and other requirements of 
Article 8, and all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance.  

§10.1 Awning, Canopy or Marquee Signs. These signs are limited to first or second story and shall not 
project beyond the face of the awning, canopy, or marquee.    

§10.2 Bulletin Board Signs. One bulletin board may be permitted on the site of an institution, subject 
to the following;  

10.2.1 Sign shall not exceed 20 square feet and not more than ten feet in height; and  

10.2.2 Sign content must relate to an activity conducted at or sponsored by the institution.  

§10.3 Directional Signs. Directional signs shall not be used for off-site advertising or advertising for hire 
and shall comply with all the following requirements:  

10.3.1 Content. Directional signs shall not contain advertising copy. Business name or logo shall 
not exceed 20 percent of the total sign area.   

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 17 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 44



10.3.2 Sign Area. Directional signs may not exceed an area of six square feet or height of 48 
inches.     

10.3.3 Off-site Directional Signs. An off-site directional sign may be approved only for sites 
where the review authority determines that a property owner has considered all 
permanent signs allowed by this Ordinance, and site visibility still remains impaired.    

10.3.3.1 A maximum of two such signs, limited one per street, shall be allowed per use.  

10.3.3.2 Such signs shall be placed only on private property.  

10.3.3.3 Sign content shall be limited to name and directional arrow.  

10.3.4 On-site Directional Signs. No more than two shall be permitted per public road entrance. 
Entities sharing an access may be permitted one on-site directional sign each along the 
access road.  

§10.4 Freestanding Signs.  

10.4.1 Location Requirements. A freestanding sign may be located within a required front or 
street side setback provided that it complies with the vision clearance area requirements 
of Ordinance 02-02 §7.08.1.  

10.4.2 Height Limit. A freestanding sign shall not exceed a height of eight feet. 

10.4.3 Sign Area. Sign area shall not exceed 24 square feet, with base structure area not 
exceeding 3/4 of the sign area.   

10.4.4 Other Requirements.   

10.4.4.1 The bottom edge of a freestanding sign shall be no more than three feet above 
ground level.   

10.4.4.2 Freestanding signs without a solid base shall be either hung from a bar 
cantilevered off one post or supported by two wood, metal, or granite posts 
that are generally square in cross section.   

§10.5 Product Signs. Businesses may be permitted a maximum of three Product signs, with a maximum 
of two per window, provided the signs: 

10.5.1 Shall be located in the building interior but not on doors or second story windows; 

10.5.2 Shall not exceed four square feet; and 

10.5.3 May be illuminated only during business hours. 

§10.6 Projecting Signs. 

10.6.1 Shall project perpendicularly from the building to which they are mounted;  

10.6.2 Shall have a ground clearance of no less than eight feet from the bottom of the sign to 
the finished grade below;  

10.6.3 Shall project no more than 48 inches from the building face nor closer than 12 inches to 
the vertical plane of the street curb line;  

10.6.4 Shall not exceed an area of 33nine square feet individually or 18 66 square feet per 
building in aggregate; 

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 18 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 45



10.6.5 Shall require an Encroachment Permit if projecting over a public right-of-way;  

10.6.6 Shall not extend higher than the lesser of 14 feet, eave height, parapet height, or sill 
height of a second floor window;  

10.6.7 Shall not be permitted on the same frontage as a freestanding sign; and  

10.6.8 Creative shapes, three-dimensional signs, and signs using icons, shapes, symbols 
uniquely suited to the business are encouraged. 

§10.7 Sandwich Board Signs. These signs may be permitted annually when necessary to direct traffic to 
a location and are not covered by the restrictions in §10.3 (Directional Signs). These signs are 
highly discouraged, but may be permitted subject to the following requirements:  

10.7.1 Such signs must be removed daily at the close of normal business hours; 

10.7.2 A renewal application for such signs shall be submitted with annual business license 
renewal; and 

10.7.3 A maximum of one such sign, not to exceed six square feet in area and 48 inches in 
height, may be allowed per business. 

§10.8 Temporary Signs. Temporary signs are allowed in all zones subject to the following: 

10.8.1 Banners and Pennants. A licensed business may be permitted to use a banner or 
pennants subject to the following requirements (see also Article 6 for exemption):   

10.8.1.1 The use of a banner or pennants may be allowed for up to 120 days; 

10.8.1.2 Horizontally oriented banners or pennants shall have a maximum height of 
four feet and a maximum length of 50 feet. Vertically oriented banners shall 
have a maximum size as determined by the Design Review Committee.   

10.8.1.3 The application for a sign permit for banners or pennants shall include the 
dates proposed by the applicant for scheduled use. 

10.8.2 Subdivision Signs. Subdivision signs may be allowed subject to the following: 

10.8.2.1 A maximum of two off-site signs per subdivision may be located on private 
property; 

10.8.2.2 One on-site sign per street frontage, with a maximum of two separated by a 
minimum of 75 feet, may be located within a subdivision; 

10.8.2.3 The area of each sign shall not exceed 24 square feet for an on-site sign and 
12 square feet for an off-site sign;   

10.8.2.4 The height of each sign shall not exceed six feet;  

10.8.2.5 The signs shall not be illuminated; and 

10.8.2.6 The signs may be displayed only 12 months following recordation of the final 
map, or until all of the units have been sold, whichever occurs first. 

§10.9 Wall Signs.  

10.9.1 A maximum of two wall signs per building frontage shall be permitted.   

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 19 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 46



10.9.2 Wall signs shall not exceed the lesser of 32 60 square feet or 0.250.75 square feet for 
each foot of frontage plus 0.1250.25 square feet for each foot of building façade height.  

10.9.3 The aggregate area of all wall signs on a building shall not exceed 80 175 square feet.  

10.9.4 Wall signs shall not project more than six inches from the wall.  

§10.10 Window Signs.  

10.10.1 Maximum Sign Area. Window signs shall not exceed 24 square feet individually or an 
aggregate area of 25 percent of the total window area. Window panels separated by 
muntins or mullions shall be considered as one continuous window area. 

10.10.2 Sign Location. Signs shall be allowed only on windows located on the ground level and 
second story of a structure frontage.  

10.10.3 Second Story Window Signs. The number of second story window signs shall not exceed 
50 percent of the number of second story windows fronting on the same street (i.e., a 
building with six windows on a side may have three of those windows with a sign for 
three separate occupants). No second story window sign shall occupy more than 10 
percent of the individual window area. Second story signs shall consist only of individual 
letters or symbols applied to, stenciled on or etched into the glass surface not exceeding 
six inches in height, and shall not contain logos or artwork.  

Article 11 EXCEPT IO NS 
A variance from the strict application of the terms of these regulations, provided that such exceptions are 
not prohibited elsewhere in this Ordinance, may be granted pursuant to Ordinance 02-02 Article IX. 

Article 12 NONCON FO RMI NG SIG N S  
A nonconforming sign is any permanent or temporary sign that was legally established and maintained in 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws in effect at the time of original installation but that 
does not now comply with the provisions of this Ordinance.   

§12.1 General Requirements. A nonconforming sign shall not be:  

12.1.1 Changed to another nonconforming sign with a greater degree of nonconformity;  

12.1.2 Structurally altered;  

12.1.3 Reestablished after on-premises business operations are discontinued for six months; or  

12.1.4 Reestablished after damage or destruction to more than 50 percent of the replacement 
cost of the sign or components as determined by the Building Official.  

§12.2 Maintenance and Changes. Nonstructural modifications and maintenance (e.g., painting, rust 
removal) of nonconforming signs are allowed without a sign permit. Changes shall not exceed 50 
percent of the replacement cost as determined by the Building Official.  

Article 13 ABA TEMENT  AN D REMO V AL  
If a sign is declared hazardous, dilapidated, derelict, abandoned, or is determined by the City Manager or 
review authority to be in violation of this ordinance, the sign shall be abated in compliance with Ordinance 
06-04 (Nuisance Ordinance), except that, in the case of a hazardous sign, the sign is considered a 
"structure" with respect to the "Uniform Code for the Abatement of Dangerous Buildings" and shall be 
abated in compliance with that code.  

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 20 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 47



Article 14 AMENDME NT 
This Ordinance may be amended pursuant to Ordinance 02-02 §8.02 et seq.  

Article 15 EN ACTME NT 

§15.1 Severability. If any section, sub-section, paragraph, sentence, or word of this ordinance shall be 
held to be invalid, either on its face or as applied, the invalidity of such provision shall not affect 
the other sections, sub-sections, paragraphs, sentences and words of this Ordinance, and the 
applications thereof; and to that end the sections, sub-sections, paragraphs, sentences and words 
of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be severable 

§15.2 Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective 30 days after the date of its enactment.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED on this Xth day of XXXX 2013 by the following vote: 

AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:     
 

Attest: 
 

 
City Clerk / Deputy City Clerk

 

 
Stuart Titus, Mayor 

 
First Reading:  Amended:  
Second Reading:    
Enacted:    
Amended:     

 
 
  

Second Reading - Sign Ordinance 21 of 22 November 7, 2013 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 48



W
illiam

s
C

reek

Francis Creek
BERDIN

G S
T

DEWEY AVE

EM
ERSO

N L
N

EU
G

EN
E STCLEVELA

N
D

 ST H
ARRIS

O
N

 A
VE

Humboldt County 

Fairgrounds

P
R

IV
A

TE
 R

D

VANSTON AVE

SH
A

M
S

I C
T

TENNYSON AVEM
A

D
ISO

N
 ST

LIN
C

O
LN

 ST

·|}þ211

ROSE AVE

EUGENE ST

W
ASHINGTON ST

MILTON AVE

GRANT AVE

5T
H

 S
T

FR
AN

CIS
 S

T

JA
C

O
B

S
O

N
 W

A
Y

W
A

TS
O

N
 A

V
E

PIXLEY

3R
D

 S
T

4T
H

 S
T

BRO
W

N ST
M

A
IN

 S
T

CRAIG
 S

T

FERN AVE

VAN NESS AVE

M
A

R
K

E
T 

ST

BLUFF RD

M
C

K
IN

LE
Y

 A
V

E
CREAM CT

LI
N

C
O

LN 
ST

HOWARD ST

SHAW AVE

ARLINGTON AVE

SC
H

LE
Y

 A
V

E

W
ILLIAM

S 
CREEK 

RD

B
U

SH
 S

T

CROWLEY 

AV
E

A
M

B
R

O
SI

N
I L

N

R
A

SM
U

S
SE

N
 L

N

CENTERVILLE RD

TRIDENT LN

OCEAN 
AVE

FAIRVIEW 
D

R

H
ER

B
ER

T
 S

T

M
A

T
T

O
LE 

RD

C
A

M
ELO

T 

LN

R
O

SE
 A

V
E

W
IL

D
C

A
T 

R
D

C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 S

T

Map Compiled 6 September 2011
Source: Imagery - USDA NAIP 2009

  City Boundary, Roads, Water features - Humboldt County CDSD, 
  (http://co.humboldt.ca.us/planning/maps)

*edited by Planwest Partners Inc.
  Land Use/Zoning - Planwest Partners Inc.

0 2,0001,000 Feet°

PRINCIPAL ZONES:
A-E     Agricultural Exclusive
C-1     Neighborhood Commercial
C-2     Community Commercial
C-AG  Agricultural Services Commercial
P-F     Public Facility
R-1     Residential One-Family
R-2     Residential Two-Family
R-4     Residential Apartment-Professional
R-S     Residential Suburban

COMBINING ZONES:
B     Special Building Site Combining
D     Design Control Combining
Q     Qualified Combining

ZONING
A-E
C-1-D-Q
C-2-D
C-2-D-Q
C-AG-D-Q
P-F
P-F-D
R-1
R-1-B-1
R-1-B-2
R-1-B-3
R-1-D
R-2
R-2-D
R-4-D
R-S
R-S-B-5
City of Ferndale
Parcels

City of Ferndale Land Use/Zoning MapNovember 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 49



CC Meeting Date: November 7, 2013 Agenda Item Number 
Agenda Item Title: Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2013-03 Medical Marijuana Dispensary 

and Cultivation Ordinance       
Presented By: Chief of Police Bret Smith 
Type of Item: x Action  Discussion Information 
Action Required: Approve Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2013-03 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the second reading of and adopt Ordinance 2013-03 Medical Marijuana 
Dispensary and Cultivation Ordinance (attached).   

BACKGROUND: The City Council approved the first reading of the Medical Marijuana Dispensary and 
Cultivation Ordinance during its October meeting and directed staff to bring it back to the November 
meeting for a second reading and possible adoption.  No changes have been made since the first 
reading.  

The adoption of the proposed ordinance is not a project subject to CEQA pursuant to Title 14, California 
Code of Regulations, Sections 15060(c)(2) and 15060(c)(3), as the activity will not result in a direct or 
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

12d

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 50



ORDINANCE NO 2013-03 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE PROHIBITING THE ESTABLISHMENT AND OPERATION OF 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES AND OUTDOOR CULTIVATION AND REGULATING INDOOR 

CULTIVATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA WITHIN THE CITY OF FERNDALE. 

Table of Contents 

Article 1. Short Title, Findings, and Purpose ............................................................................................ 1 

Article 2. Statutory Authority ................................................................................................................... 2 

Article 3. Applicability ............................................................................................................................... 2 

Article 4. Administration and Enforcement ............................................................................................. 2 

Article 5. Definitions ................................................................................................................................. 3 

Article 6. Medical Marijuana Requirements and Regulations .................................................................. 3 

Article 7. Non-Medical Use ....................................................................................................................... 5 

Article 8. Amendment .............................................................................................................................. 5 

Article 9. Enactment and Effective Date .................................................................................................. 5 

Article 10. Posting Requirement ................................................................................................................ 5 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

ARTICLE  1.  SHO RT  TITLE,  FI N DI NG S,  A ND PUR PO SE 

§1.1 Short Title. This Ordinance shall be known and cited as the “Medical Marijuana Dispensary and
Cultivation Ordinance” (hereinafter this “Ordinance”).  

§1.2 Findings.

1.2.1 The City Council of the City of Ferndale, based on evidence presented to it in the 
proceedings leading to the adoption of this Ordinance hereby finds that the cultivation, 
processing and distribution of medical cannabis has the potential to cause ongoing 
impacts to the community. Potential impacts include damage to buildings containing 
indoor grows, including improper and dangerous electrical alterations and use, 
inadequate ventilation leading to mold and mildew, increased frequency of home-
invasion robberies and similar crimes. Impacts associated with outdoor cultivation 
include increased crime rates, noxious odors and environmental concerns associated 
with water quality violations and use of herbicides and rodenticides. Many of these 
impacts may fall disproportionately on residential neighborhoods. These impacts may 
create an increase in response costs, including code enforcement, building, land use, 
fire, and police staff time and expenses.   

1.2.2 The City Council of the City of Ferndale also acknowledges that the voters of the State 
of California have provided a criminal defense to the cultivation, possession and use of 
cannabis for medical purposes under the Compassionate Use Act, but that the 
Compassionate Use Act does not address land use or building code impacts or issues 
arising from the resulting increase in cannabis cultivation within the City. 

1 of 5 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 51



§1.3 Purpose. The purpose and intent of this Ordinance is to regulate the cultivation and dispensing
of medical marijuana in a manner that protects the health, safety and welfare of the 
community. This Ordinance is not intended to interfere with a patient’s right to medical 
marijuana, as provided for in California Health & Safety Code Section 11362, nor does it 
criminalize medical marijuana possession or cultivation by specifically defined classifications of 
persons, pursuant to state law. 

ARTICLE  2.  ST AT UTO RY AUT HOR ITY  

§2.1 The statutory authority for this Ordinance is California Health and Safety Code Section 
§11362.5 et seq., and California law recognizing the authority of municipalities to regulate
land uses within its jurisdiction in order to protect the health, safety and welfare of the 
community. 

ARTICLE  3.  APPLIC ABIL ITY  

§3.1 The provisions adopted in this Ordinance shall not be exclusive but shall be cumulative and
complementary to any other provisions of City of Ferndale regulations and State and Federal 
laws. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be read, interpreted or construed so as to limit any existing 
right or power of the City. 

§3.2 No part of this Ordinance shall be deemed to conflict with federal law as contained in the
Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. Section 800 et seq., nor to otherwise permit any activity 
that is prohibited under that Act or any other local, state or federal law, statute, rule or 
regulation. The cultivation, processing and distribution of medical cannabis in the City of 
Ferndale is controlled by the provisions of this Ordinance. Accessory uses and home 
occupations, where medical cannabis is involved shall be governed by the provisions of this 
Ordinance. 

§3.3 Nothing in this Ordinance is intended, nor shall it be construed, to burden any defense to
criminal prosecution otherwise afforded by California law. 

§3.4 Nothing in this Ordinance is intended, nor shall it be construed, to preclude a landlord from
limiting or prohibiting cannabis cultivation, smoking or other related activities by tenants. 

§3.5 Nothing in this Ordinance is intended, nor shall it be construed, to exempt any cannabis related
activity from any and all applicable local and state construction, electrical, plumbing, land use, 
or any other building or land use standards or permitting requirements. 

§3.6 Nothing is this Ordinance is intended, nor shall it be construed, to make legal any cultivation,
transportation, sale, or other use of cannabis that is otherwise prohibited under California law. 

§3.7 All cultivation, processing and distribution of medical cannabis within city limits shall be subject
to the provisions of this Ordinance and its subparts, regardless if the cultivation, processing or 
distribution existed or occurred prior to adoption of this Ordinance. 

ARTICLE  4.  ADMIN I ST RA TIO N A ND  EN FORCEME NT 

§4.1 The Chief of Police of the City of Ferndale, or his/her designee, shall be responsible for the
administration and enforcement of the provisions of this Ordinance. 

2 of 5 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 52



§4.2 Any violation of this Ordinance is subject to administrative, civil, or criminal penalties, in
addition to being subject to other remedies provided by law, including but not limited to, 
injunctive relief, a nuisance abatement action, summary abatement of immediately hazardous 
conditions, and all other applicable fines, penalties and remedies. 

§4.3 This is an Ordinance adopted to address public health and safety issues, and as such, carries
with it an express legislative intent to be interpreted and enforced with an emphasis on public 
and community safety, and enforced rigorously in a manner such as to deter further violations. 

ARTICLE  5.  DEFI NI TIO N S  

As used in this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the definitions assigned: 

§5.1 Medical Marijuana Cultivation: The planting, growing, harvesting, drying, or processing of
marijuana plants, or any part thereof. 

§5.2 Medical Marijuana Dispensary (“Dispensary”): Any profit or not-for-profit facility or location,
whether permanent or temporary, where the owner(s) or operator(s) intends to or does possess 
and distribute marijuana for any purpose. A Dispensary includes a marijuana club as describe in 
People v. Peron, (1997) 59 Cal. App. 4th 1383, facilities of the type and nature described in City 
of Riverside v. Inland Empire Patients Health and Wellness Center, (2013) 56 Cal. 4th 729,  and 
further includes medical marijuana cooperatives. A Dispensary shall not include the following 
uses, as long as the location of such uses are otherwise regulated by the City’s Municipal Code: 
a clinic licensed pursuant to Chapter 1 of Division 2 of the California Health and Safety Code; a 
health care facility licensed pursuant to Chapter 2 of Division 2 of the California Health and 
Safety Code; a residential care facility for persons with chronic life-threatening illness licensed 
pursuant to Chapter 3.01 of Division 2 of the California Health and Safety Code; a residential 
care facility for the elderly licensed pursuant to Chapter 3.2 of Division 2 of the California Health 
and Safety Code; a residential hospice; or a home health agency licensed pursuant to Chapter 8 
of the California Health and Safety Code, as long as such use complies strictly with applicable 
law including, but not limited to, California Health and Safety Code section 11362.5 et seq. 

ARTICLE  6.  MEDIC AL  MAR IJU A NA  RE QUI REMEN T S A ND REG UL AT ION S 

§6.1 Medical Marijuana Dispensaries and outdoor Medical Marijuana Cultivation shall be prohibited
in any zoning district of the City, even if located within an otherwise permitted use. 

§6.2 An individual qualified patient shall be allowed to cultivate medical marijuana within his/her
private residence. A primary caregiver shall only cultivate medical marijuana at the residence of 
a qualified patient for whom he/she is the primary caregiver. Medical marijuana for personal 
use shall be in conformance with the following standards: 

§6.2.1 Cultivation of medical cannabis for personal use shall occur only on the parcel either
within the residence occupied by the qualified patient, or in a self-contained accessory 
building that is secured, locked, and fully enclosed and which is for the exclusive use of 
the qualified patient; 

§6.2.2 Cultivation of medical cannabis for personal use shall not displace required off-street
parking; 

§6.2.3 The Medical Marijuana Cultivation area shall not exceed thirty-two (32) square feet
measured by the canopy and not exceed ten feet (10') in height per residence. This 

3 of 5 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 53



limit applies regardless of the number of qualified patients or persons with an 
identification card residing in the residence. The cultivation area shall be a single 
designated area; 

§6.2.4 Medical Marijuana Cultivation lighting shall not exceed one thousand two hundred
(1,200) watts; 

§6.2.5 The use of gas products (CO2, butane, etc.) for medical marijuana cultivation or
processing is prohibited; 

§6.2.6 Medical Marijuana Cultivation and sale shall be prohibited as a home occupation;

§6.2.7 Medical Marijuana Cultivation and sales shall not be considered a permitted accessory
use of property; 

§6.2.8 The sale or dispensing of medical marijuana for personal use shall be prohibited;

§6.2.9 From a public right of way, there shall be no exterior evidence of Medical Marijuana
Cultivation either within or outside the residence; 

§6.2.10 The qualified patient shall not participate in Medical Marijuana Cultivation at any other
location within the City of Ferndale; 

§6.2.11 The residence shall maintain kitchen, bathrooms, and primary bedrooms for their
intended use and not be used primarily for Medical Marijuana Cultivation; 

§6.2.12 A copy of a qualified patient physician recommendation or identification card shall be
posted in a conspicuous place in the cultivation area for each patient residing in the 
residence that is cultivating medical marijuana. For rental properties, a copy of the 
owner’s written authorization to cultivate marijuana shall be posted in the same 
manner (assuming cultivation is not precluded by the Landlord or property owner); 

§6.1.13 The Medical Marijuana Cultivation area shall be in compliance with the current,
adopted edition of the California Building Code § 1203.4 Natural Ventilation or § 402.3 
Mechanical Ventilation (or its equivalent(s)); and 

§6.2.14 The Medical Marijuana Cultivation area shall not adversely affect the health or safety
of the nearby residents by creating dust, glare, heat, noise, noxious gasses, odor, 
smoke, traffic, vibration, or other impacts,  or be hazardous due to use or storage 
of materials, processes, products or wastes. 

§6.3 Any proposed Medical Marijuana Cultivation by an individual qualified patient or primary
caregiver that does not meet the grow area standard of Section 6.2.3 shall require a Variance 
pursuant to this Section 6.3. Documentation, such as a physician’s recommendation or 
verification of more than one qualified patient living in the residence, shall be submitted with 
the Variance application showing why the cultivation area standard is not feasible. The 
application shall include written permission from the property owner, if the property owner is 
not the applicant. The Building Official may require additional specific standards to meet the 
California Building Code and Fire Code, including but not limited to installation of fire 
suppression sprinklers. An approved Variance for Medical Marijuana Cultivation for personal use 
that exceeds thirty-two (32) square feet shall conform to the following standards: 

§6.3.1 The Medical Marijuana Cultivation area shall not exceed an additional fifty (50) square
feet for the total of eighty-two square feet (82’) and not exceed ten feet (10’) in height 
per residence; and 

4 of 5 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 54



§6.3.2 At a minimum, the Medical Marijuana Cultivation area shall be constructed with a 1-
hour firewall assembly of green board; and 

§6.3.3 Cultivation of medical marijuana for personal use is limited to detached single family
residential properties, or the Medical Marijuana Cultivation area shall be limited to a 
garage or self-contained outside accessory building that is secured, locked, and fully 
enclosed. 

ARTICLE  7.  NON-ME DIC AL  USE  

§7.1 Personal use cultivation, processing, and distributing. The personal cultivation, processing
and distributing of cannabis or marijuana for non-medical purposes, to the extent provided 
by law, shall comply with the Requirements and Regulations prescribed in this Ordinance. 

ARTICLE  8.  AMENDME NT 

§8.1 This Ordinance may be amended from time to time by duly authorized action by the City Council
for the City of Ferndale.   

ARTICLE  9.  EN ACTME NT A N D EFFEC TI VE  DATE  

§9.1 Enactment. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this ordinance is for
any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the final decision of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such a decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 
ordinance.   

§9.2 Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective 30 days after the date of its enactment.

ARTICLE  10.  POST I NG RE QUI REMEN T 

§10.1 The City Clerk shall cause publication of this ordinance within 15 days after passage in a
newspaper of general circulation published and circulated in the city, and posted in at least 
three public places in the city. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 7th day of November 2013 by the following vote: 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:  

Attest: 

Christina Wile / Deputy City Clerk Stuart Titus, Mayor 

First Reading: Amended: 
Second Reading: 
Enacted: 

5 of 5 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 55



Meeting Date: November 7, 2013 Agenda Item Number 12e 
Agenda Item Title: City Manager Contract Review 
Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager  
Type of Item: X Action Discussion Information 
Action Required: Approve City Manager Contract 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Authorize staff to memorialize council direction regarding the City Manager Contract and salary 
adjustment in a Resolution to be signed by the Mayor. 

BACKGROUND: 

The City Council met in closed session (pursuant to GC 54954.5) to complete the Public Employee 
Performance Evaluation of the City Manager.  The City Manager’s contract requires an annual 
performance review by the Council.  This evaluation process is an opportunity for the Council to 
consider salary adjustment and/or extension of the City Manager Contract. The evaluation began 
October 3, 2013 and was continued to the closed session preceding this meeting.   

FISCAL IMPACT: Unknown. 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 56



Meeting Date: November 7, 2013 Agenda Item Number 12f 
Agenda Item Title: Deputy City Clerk Transition and Recruitment Update 
Presented By: Contract City Planner  
Type of Item: Action Discussion x Information 
Action Required: Review and File 

RECOMMENDATION:  Review and file.  

BACKGROUND:  On July 8, 2013, the City Council authorized a temporary transition and recruitment 
services augment to Planwest Partners professional services contract.  This allowed for Planwest staff to 
work with the retiring City Clerk during remainder of her employment (transition) and perform duties 
during a 90 day period for advertising (recruitment) for and selecting a permanent replacement.  

During the transition period Planwest staff worked with the current City Clerk, in a contract Deputy City 
Clerk capacity and prepared a Deputy City Clerk / City Clerk job description based on duties that was 
used to advertise during the recruitment period.  Job Listing ads were published in the Times-Standard 
and Ferndale Enterprise, and posted on the City Website.  The transition period ended on August 20th. 

The subsequent recruitment period (August 20 – November 20) was intended to allow the City sufficient 
time to explore the most efficient and cost effective staffing/ contract services options. The City 
received over a dozen applications and has interviewed 4 candidates as of posting of this staff report.  
Planwest did not submit an application for this position. 

The transition and recruitment arrangement has allowed Planwest to help staff at City Hall, review 
Deputy City Clerk / City Clerk job requirements and develop some administrative recommendations that 
can be implemented, with the City Manager’s approval, both during the transition period and after a 
new person is hired for the position.   

DISCUSSION:  The transition and recruitment services augment included developing a schedule for 
updating the City filing system and demonstrating how the GIS Inventory can be used by City staff and 
the public, to search for parcel information during the trial period.  This is in progress and projected to 
be completed on or about November 20th, when Planwest contract Deputy City Clerk services conclude.  

GIS Modernization. One of the most cost effective improvements has been the ability to use the City GIS 
for property owner notifications. Previously, paper Assessor Parcel Maps were assembled and 
concentric circles added to determine which property owners were to be notified of pending 
applications and hearings. The GIS tools now at City Hall can determine affected property owners and 
produce an assessor parcel address for mailing labels.  A computer terminal has been added to the front 
counter for public viewing GIS data.  Updated aerial imagery has also been added to the database. 

File Organization.  Building Permits, Business License and other annual licensing has been updated using 
spreadsheets and is now more accessible on City server. Correspondence is now being recorded 
electronically. These measures allow better tracking and organization. Data query function to be added. 

Scheduling. Commission, committee and Council packets are an important Deputy City Clerk function in 
service to the City Manager. A monthly schedule has been developed for these packets, noting early 
agenda item listings and cover sheet/staff report dates (see attached sample).  This has been done to 
aid the departments in getting materials City Manager in a timely manner, so he has sufficient time to 
review and initial all items prior to distribution to the Council and public. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Contract staff time and materials authorized on July 8, 2013. 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 57



Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
City of Ferndale 

DEFINITION 

A Geographic Information System (GIS) manages, displays and organizes data in a digital 
format that can be easily queried and updated.    Geographic data are attributed and 
combined within the GIS to create maps and answer questions about space and place.  
Using a GIS can improve communication, clarify boundaries, automate workflows, and 
increase efficiency and accuracy.  Keeping public records in a well organized GIS database 
saves time and money by decreasing search time and by having data available to multiple 
users in an electronic format. 

IMPLEMENTATION 

The first step in implementing a GIS is assessing system requirements.  There are many GIS 
software packages on the market today.  When considering software packages for the City 
of Ferndale, low cost and ease of use are the most important elements.  Based on this 
criteria, Planwest Partners recommends using  ArcGIS Explorer.  Ferndale’s computers 
have already been checked to see if the following system requirements are met: 

SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS: 

Windows XP Professional (32 bit) or newer version of Windows 
Microsoft .NET Framework 3.5 Service Pack 1 
CPU Speed of 2.2 GHz or higher 
Intel Pentium 4, Intel Core Duo, or Xeon Processors, or greater 

  Memory/RAM:  at least 2 GB 
Disk Space: at least 198 MB 
Bandwidth Connection Speed: at least 380 Kbps, 1500 Kbps recommended 

After system requirements have been assessed and updated if necessary, the next step is to 
load ArcGIS Explorer software and the geodatabase compiled by Planwest Partners onto 
the computer(s).  At this point, it is important to create and document best practices for 
common workflows.  A basic user’s guide should also be created to teach staff how to 
properly use and store geographic data.   

FEATURES 

Once the software and geodatabase are uploaded, city staff will be able to accomplish the 
following tasks with increased efficiency and accuracy:   

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 58



Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
City of Ferndale 

 Quickly create site maps for City Council, Planning Commission or Design Review 
agenda packets.  

 Determine if a parcel is in the Design Review or Historic District 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 59



Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
City of Ferndale 

 Gather parcel information to complete building permits or answer questions from 
property owners or the general public.  

 Search for parcels that meet certain criteria (i.e. in the 100 year flood zone, or within 
300 feet of another parcel).  

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 60



CALENDAR MONTH NOVEMBER

CALENDAR YEAR 2013

1ST DAY OF WEEK MONDAY

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday
28 29 30 31 1 2 3

City Hall Closed

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

City Hall Closed

City Council Mtg
11 12 13 14 15 16 17

PC Agenda Posted City Hall Closed

CC Public Notice Due

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

DRC Agenda Posted City Hall Closed
Staff Reports Due

Planning Commission Mtg
25 26 27 28 29 30 1

CC Agenda Posted City Hall Closed

PC Public Notice Due
Design Review Committee Mtg

2 3 Notes

NOVEMBER
REMINDER: Update calendar if 

meeting dates change!2013

DC Agenda Set; Reports, Cover 
Sheets, Attachments Due

DRC Agenda Set; Reports, Cover 
Sheets, Attachments Due

PC Agenda Set; Reports, Cover 
Sheets, Attachments Due

CC Agenda Set; Reports, Cover 
Sheets, Attachments Due

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 61



Meeting Date: November 7, 2013 Agenda Item Number 
Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2013-38 Authorization of City Attorney and City Planner Time 

and Materials to Update Nuisance Ordinance 06-04 
Presented By: Contract City Planner         
Type of Item: x Action Discussion x Information 
Action Required: Adopt Resolution 2013-38 

RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 2013-38 Authorization of City Attorney and City Planner Time 
and Materials to Update Nuisance Ordinance 06-04.   

DISCUSSION:    The City of Ferndale’s Nuisance Ordinance was last updated in 2006.  After discussing the 
existing Ordinance with the City’s retained consultants and the City Attorney, Staff recommends that the 
Nuisance Ordinance be revised and updated for numerous reasons, including, but not limited to, the 
following: (i) consistency and integration with current City Ordinances regarding design review, aesthetic 
preservation and historical structure preservation; (ii) consistency and integration with current City 
Ordinances relating to criminal activity, including, without limitation, the City’s Ordinance regulating 
marijuana cultivation and prohibiting dispensaries within City limits; (iii) consistency and integration 
with aspects of the City’s Sign Ordinance (as amended); (iv) consistency and integration with aspects of 
the City’s Building Code; and (v) evaluation of the Nuisance Ordinance’s enforcement provisions and the 
City’s ability to abate and deter nuisances. 

FISCAL IMPACT: City Attorney and City Planner time and materials not to exceed $2,500.00. 

12g

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 62



Resolution Number 2013 - 38 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE 

RESOLUTION 2013-38 AUTHORIZATION OF CITY ATTORNEY AND CITY PLANNER TIME AND MATERIALS TO 
UPDATE NUISANCE ORDINANCE 06-04. 

WHEREAS, The City of Ferndale enacted Ordinance 06-04 Nuisance Ordinance on November 16, 2006; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Nuisance Ordinance is to provide a comprehensive method for identification 
of public nuisances within the City of Ferndale, encourage compliance where a public nuisance violation 
exists, and to establish the authority to abate and recover costs of abatement when the responsible party 
fails to comply; and 

WHEREAS, the Nuisance Ordinance may from time to time be amended to achieve that purpose; and 

WHEREAS, City staff and the City Attorney have recommended that the Nuisance Ordinance be amended 
for the following reasons:  

(i) consistency and integration with current City Ordinances regarding design review, aesthetic 
preservation and historical structure preservation;  

(ii) consistency and integration with current City Ordinances relating to criminal activity, including, 
without limitation, the City’s Ordinance regulating marijuana cultivation and prohibiting 
dispensaries within City limits;  

(iii) consistency and integration with aspects of the City’s Sign Ordinance (as amended);  
(iv) consistency and integration with aspects of the City’s Building Code; and  
(v) evaluation of the Nuisance Ordinance’s enforcement provisions and the City’s ability to abate and 

deter nuisances; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Ferndale authorizes City Attorney 
and City Planner time and materials not to exceed $2,500.00 to Update Nuisance Ordinance 06-04. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 7th day of November 2013 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Attest: 

City Clerk / Deputy City Clerk Stuart Titus, Mayor 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 63



Meeting Date: November 7, 2013 Agenda Item Number 12h 
Agenda Item Title: Changes to Housing Element Update Process & Schedule 
Presented By: Contract City Planner  
Type of Item: Action Discussion x Information 
Action Required: Receive and File 

RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file.  

BACKGROUND: The Housing Element is one of the seven mandated General Plan elements.  Housing 
Element law requires that local governments plan to meet the existing and projected housing needs of 
all economic segments of the community.  The Regional Housing Need Allocation (RHNA) Plan quantifies 
each jurisdiction’s share of this regional housing need.  The RHNA is a minimum projection of additional 
housing units needed to accommodate projected household growth of all income levels by the end of 
the housing element’s planning period.  The 2014-2019 RHNA Plan containing fair share housing 
allocations for all cities and the County by income level is currently being prepared by Humboldt County 
Association of Governments (HCAOG); the final document will be considered for adoption at the 
December HCAOG Board meeting. 

The Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) reviews local housing elements for 
compliance with State law, including RHNA requirements.  On October 2, 2012, HCD released a technical 
assistance memorandum on Senate Bill 375 (SB 375), also known as the Sustainable Communities and 
Climate Protection Act of 2008.  The memo explains specific SB 375 amendments and changes to RHNA 
and Housing Element update processes, schedules, and element adoption due dates.  HCD’s updated 
schedule lists June 30, 2014 as the due date for Ferndale’s next Housing Element Update adoption. 

DISCUSSION: A compliant Housing Element allows the City to apply for various housing program grants 
(CDBG, HOME, etc.); is an effective way to implement regional housing goals; and provides an 
opportunity to build support for, and review, local housing goals and to analyze housing in relation to 
job growth and decline. 

Ferndale began updating its current Housing Element in 2009 and adopted the updated Element in early 
2012.  Because the City put considerable effort into preparing the 2009-2014 update to HCD’s standards, 
staff does not anticipate the 2014 update taking as long to complete.   

FISCAL IMPACT: None.  

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 64



Meeting Date: November 7, 2013 Agenda Item Number 
Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2013-39 Authorization of City Planner Time and Materials to 

Complete Part 1 of the Housing Element Implementation Plan 
Presented By: Contract City Planner         
Type of Item: x Action Discussion Information 
Action Required: Adopt Resolution 2013-39 

RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 2013-39 Authorization of City Planner Time and Materials to 
Complete Part 1 of the Housing Element Implementation Plan for Housing Element and State housing 
regulation compliance.   

BACKGROUND: The certified General Plan Housing Element Update contains programs for a balanced 
supply of housing, serving all socioeconomic groups and household types . At their April 4th meeting, the 
City Council approved Resolution 2013-09 authorizing Planning staff to prepare the attached General 
Plan Housing Element Implementation Plan to organize Housing Element policies and measures into 
manageable phases.  At their May 15th meeting, the Planning Commission reviewed the Implementation 
Plan and recommended it to the City Council.  At their June 6th meeting, the City Council approved the 
Plan. 

DISCUSSION: The General Plan Housing Element Implementation Plan 2013 organizes Housing Element 
policies and programs into three phases.  The first phase encompasses all Zoning Ordinance 
amendments, the second contains City actions, and the third outlines ongoing actions required for 
compliance.  Staff recommends completing the phases in order, starting with Zoning Ordinance 
amendments for State housing regulation compliance.  This would have the added benefit of proactively 
addressing the Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD)’s requirements for 
certification of the next Housing Element update cycle, which begins mid-2014.      

FISCAL IMPACT: City Planner time and materials not to exceed $2,000 

12i

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 65



CITY OF FERNDALE GENERAL PLAN HOUSING ELEMENT 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 2013 

PA RT 1:  AME ND THE ZONIN G ORDIN AN CE OF TH E CITY OF FE RN DA LE  

The City of Ferndale Housing Element policies and programs include several Zoning Ordinance 
amendments to ensure City compliance with State housing regulations. 

Task 1.1 Prepare Zoning Ordinance Amendments  

City staff will conduct research and seek Planning Commission guidance to prepare the following 
Zoning Ordinance (ZO) amendments: 

a) Permit more than four units of multi-family housing by right in R3 and R4 zones.

b) Include definitions of an emergency shelter, transitional housing, and supportive housing and
allow for emergency shelters by right in specific land use designations/zones.  Consider the
Public Facility (PF) land use designation/zone where emergency shelters could be allowed
without discretionary approval for SB2 compliance.

c) Establish reasonable accommodation procedures for persons with disabilities to ensure equal
access to housing.

d) Redefine ‘family’ to ensure that equal access to housing is provided.

e) Address use of “manufactured housing” vs. “mobile home” terms.

f) Permit manufactured homes in certain residential zones.

Task 1.2 Propose and Adopt Zoning Ordinance Amendments 

City staff will make an environmental determination as required by CEQA.  City staff will propose the 
amendments and required CEQA document to the Planning Commission at a regularly scheduled 
meeting.  Public and Commission input will be incorporated.  The Planning Commission will then 
conduct a Public Hearing to consider recommending the proposed amendments to the City Council, 
who will then consider the ZO amendments.   

PA RT 2:  CITY  ACTIONS  

This phase includes short-term actions required of the City for compliance with Housing Element 
policies and programs and with State housing regulations.   

Task 2.1 Identify Adequate Sites 

The following steps will further the City’s goal of providing adequate sites for all types of residential 
dwellings:  

City  Of  F ern da le  Ge nera l  P la n H ous i ng  E leme nt  
Imp lem ent at i on P l an  20 1 3 

Page  |  1  

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 66



a) City staff will research small lot development methods and identify small lots appropriate for
consolidation.  Staff will present identified lots to the Planning Commission.  Lots approved
by the Planning Commission will become target sites for consolidation.

b) City staff will research incentives for consolidation of small lots, including priority processing,
parking reductions, modification of development standards and ministerial lot line
adjustments, as well as the feasibility of providing or assisting with applying for financial
resources to facilitate lot consolidation.  Staff will present findings to the Planning
Commission.  Staff will process selected incentives for adoption as appropriate.

c) Staff will develop a GIS database that reflects all vacant and underutilized parcels in the City
and provide a link to the database on the City’s website.

Task 2.2:  Develop Incentives for Affordability and Accessibility 

The following steps will further the City’s goal of addressing accessibility to safe, sanitary, and 
affordable permanent housing for all City residents: 

a) City staff will research and analyze governmental and non-governmental constraints to
affordable housing.  Staff will present findings to the Planning Commission.

b) City staff will research and evaluate effectiveness of incentives for development of lower-
income housing, including ELI households, and determine aspects of development that
should be incentivized.  Staff will consider prioritizing Single Room Occupancy units, Family
Room Occupancy Units, and other affordable units; providing density bonuses, streamlining
permitting processes, and reducing or waiving permit fees.  Staff will present findings to the
Planning Commission and process selected incentives for implementation as appropriate.

c) City staff will research funding opportunities, including CDBG and Federal HOME first time
homebuyers’ assistance programs, and present findings to the Planning Commission.

d) City staff will research fair housing information, including tenant and landlord rights and
responsibilities, mediation, and fair housing services.  Staff will disseminate the information
and resources to the public, including posting fliers at in public places and posting links on
the City’s website.

Task 2.3: Explore Incentives & Assistance for Preservation, Rehabilitation, and Energy Efficiency.   

The following steps will further the City’s goal of supporting and encouraging housing preservation, 
rehabilitation, and energy efficiency in new and existing housing.  

a) City staff will research funding sources for preservation, rehabilitation, and energy efficiency
in new and existing housing and develop a referral list of public and private grant/loan
assistance programs.  Staff will consider applying for Federal and State grants to address
housing rehabilitation needs.  City staff will coordinate with RCAA to take advantage of their
Housing Rehabilitation program.

b) City staff will research and compile information on how to incorporate energy saving
features and materials and energy efficient systems and designs into residential
development.  Staff will disseminate the information and resources to the public, including
posting fliers at in public places and posting links on the City’s website.

City  Of  F ern da le  Ge nera l  P la n H ous i ng  E leme nt  
Imp lem ent at i on P l an  20 1 3 

Page  |  2  

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 67



c) City staff will research and analyze conservation incentives, including services offered by
local organizations, and present findings to the Planning Commission.

PA RT 3:  ON GOIN G ACTIVIT IES 

Some Housing Element programs include ongoing City responsibilities.  Completion of Part 1 and Part 
2 of this Implementation Plan will likely add to the following list of ongoing actions.   

Ongoing Task 3.1 Maintain Adequate Sites 

d) Once the City has identified small lots suited for consolidation (Phase 2 Task 1a), City staff
will annually contact property owners and developers, including affordable developers, to
encourage development and consolidation on identified target sites.

e) Staff will maintain and update the GIS database that reflects all vacant and underutilized
parcels in the City (Phase 2 Task 1c).

f) City staff will assist prospective developers with site identification for lower-income housing,
including ELI households, and assist with entitlement processing and funding applications.

Ongoing Task 3.2 Maintain Equal Access 

g) City staff will maintain State fair housing complaint forms and refer complaints to
appropriate agencies such as California Department of Fair Employment and Housing.

Ongoing Task 3.3 Promote Preservation, Restoration, and Energy Efficiency 

h) Staff will promote energy conservation educational programs and sustainable building
techniques, including supporting RCEA efforts to provide community education on energy
issues.

City  Of  F ern da le  Ge nera l  P la n H ous i ng  E leme nt  
Imp lem ent at i on P l an  20 1 3 

Page  |  3  

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 68



Resolution Number 2013 - 39 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE 

RESOLUTION 2013-39 AUTHORIZATION OF CITY PLANNER TIME AND MATERIALS TO COMPLETE PART 1 
OF THE HOUSING ELEMENT IMPLEMENTATION PLAN. 

WHEREAS, the City adopted an updated General Plan Housing Element in February 2012; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Housing and Community Development certified the City of Ferndale General 
Plan Housing Element in March 2012; and 

WHEREAS, the Housing Element contains policies and programs that reflect City’s goals and responsibilities; 
and 

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 65400 requires that the City’s Planning Department 
investigate and make recommendations to the City Council regarding reasonable and practical means for 
implementing the General Plan so that it will serve as an effective guide for orderly growth and 
development; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council directed the City Planner to prepare an Implementation Plan to organize the 
policies and measures contained in the Housing Element into manageable phases, with actions required to 
complete each phase clearly defined and assigned; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed the Plan on May 15, 2013 and recommended it to the City 
Council; and 

WHEREAS, the authorization to complete Part 1 is exempt from California Environmental Quality Act per 
Section 15306 of Article 19 Categorical Exemptions, although environmental review will be required prior 
to adoption of any Zoning Ordinance amendments; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Ferndale authorizes City Planner 
time and materials not to exceed $2,000 to complete Part 1 of the Housing Element Implementation Plan 
for Housing Element and State housing regulation compliance. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 7th day of November 2013 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Attest: 

City Clerk / Deputy City Clerk Stuart Titus, Mayor 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 69



Section 13

CORRESPONDENCE

Correspondence Files are available for review at City Hall during 
regular business hours, Monday through Thursday, 9am to 4pm. 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 70



PLAN WEST~ r ~
P A R T N E R S ~-~) OCT 3 0 2013

PLAN WEST~ BY:
PARTNERS, IN C.’~d

October 28, 2013
Mayor Stuart Titus
City of Ferndale
P.O. Box 1095
Ferndale, CA 95536

Mayor Titus,

I’m writing this letter of recommendation for Jay Parrish, Ferndale’s City Manager. I first
worked with Jay when he was Mayor of Rio Dell and have seen his dedication to City
government, as both an elected official and City Manager, for more than 10 years.

My first encounter with Jay was mernorablë..When I was assisting Miranda’s Rescue with
Coastal Development and County Use Permits for the rescue and shelter on Sandy Prairie
Road, Jay attended the County Planning Commission hearing in support. He took the time
from a very busy schedule, including full time employment and City Council duties, to do
this, demonstrating a community commitment that is still evident today.

Over the last seven years Planwest has prOvided contract planning services, and more
recently Deputy City Clerk services to Fer,ridale, under Jay’s direction. In this capacity we
have witnessed Jay’s ability to balance the~considerable workload of managing a city while
actively serving on numerous clubs, boards, and committees, including Kiwanis Club,
Redwood Coast Energy Authority, Hazard Mitigation Plan Steering Committee, and the Salt
River Watershed Council. He recognizes the importance Of serving the community and is
responsive to community needs and issues.~

Jay’s dedication to the City is demonstrated on a daily basis. This includes being available
for community functions and taking the lead on resolving challenges facing the City. Two
significant achievements stand out: the City Wastewater Treatment Facility upgrade and
the conversion of Navy Housing to the Ferndale Housing facility. In both Cases Jay went the
extra distance to guide these important projects through complex regulatory processes.

Our staff feels fortunate to be able to work with such a dedicated and capable City Manager.

Sii

TEL (707) 825 8260 P.O. Box 4581
FAX (707) 825 9181 Arcata, CA 95518

George
Principal Planner

planners@planwestpartners.com
www.planwestpartners.com

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 71



Planning and Building Department
Planning Division
COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT
3015 H Street
Eureka CA 95501

RETURN SERVICE REQUESTED

IIIIIIlIlI.IlllIIIlIIlIIlIlIII..IIIIIlllIIIIIlIIIIIIIIIIIlIIIlIII
CITY OF FERNDALE
P0 BOX 1095
FERNDALE CA 95536-1095

Important Public Heañng Notice

L~ OCT 2 8 2013

BY:

Please see reverse for Public Notice.

v/ Q~yT~’.
CM

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 72



PUBLIC NOTICE
HUMBOLDT COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

On Thursday, November 7, 2013 at 6:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as the matter can be heard,
the Humboldt County Planning Commission will hold a public hearing in the Board of Supervisors
Chamber, Humboldt County Courthouse, 825 Fifth Street, Eureka, California, to consider the
matter listed below. If you have specific questions regarding the proposed project contact the
Planning Division at (707) 445-7541.

JOHN VEVODA, Ferndale area. Case Nos. AGP-13-003 and ZR-13-004 (filed 09/23/2013); Assessor
Parcel Numbers (APNs) 106-101-030, 106-111-008. An application to add approximately 320
acres to an existing 234 acre Class C Agricultural preserve pursuant to the California Land
Conservation Act (otherwise known as the Williamson Act) and the Humboldt County
Agricultural Preserve Guidelines. In order to facilitate the establishment of the Preserve, a Zone
Reclassification of approximately 250 acres from Unclassified to Agriculture Exclusive with a
Special Building Site combining zone specifying a minimum lot size of 160 acres (AE B-5(1 60)) is
required. The project is located in Humboldt County, in the Ferndale area, on both sides of Price
Creek School Road, approximately 0.8 miles south from the intersection of Grizzly Bluff Road and
Price Creek School Road, on the property known as 700 Price Creek School Road and the
properties known to be in the Northeast Quarter of Section 21 and the South Half of the
Northwest Quarter of Section 22 Township 02 North Range 01 West.

Any person may appear and present testimony in regard to this matter at the hearing. If you
challenge the nature of the proposed action in court, you may be limited to raising only those
issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written
correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission at, or prior to, the public hearing. The
Planning Commission needs ONE ORIGINAL AND 14 COPIES of any materials submitted either
prior to or at the meeting. The Planning Commission’s decision will become effective if an
appeal is not filed within the appropriate tiling period. An appeal may be filed by any aggrieved
person who has testified in person or in writing on the project and must be submitted in writing
with the required fees to the Planning Division of the Humboldt County Planning and Building
Department before the end of the appeal period. If appealed, the decision will not become
effective until the appeal is resolved. If you challenge the nature of the proposed action in
court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public
hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning
Commission at or prior to the public hearing. The staff report for this project will be available on
our web site httix//www.co.humboldt.ca.us/i~lanninp on the Friday before the Planning
Commission meeting.

General questions regarding the Planning Commission, the permit process, submission of
materials, and other information not specific to this project may be obtained from the Planning
Division of the Humboldt County Planning and Building Department, 3015 H Street, Eureka,
California 95501 . Telephone (707) 445-7541.

Humboldt County Planning Commission
October 22, 2013

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 73



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

C O U N T Y  O F  H U M B O L D T
 

MAILING ADDRESS: 1106 SECOND STREET, EUREKA, CA 95501-0579 
AREA CODE 707 

ARCATA-EUREKA AIRPORT TERMINAL 
McKINLEYVILLE 

FAX 839-3596 

PUBLIC WORKS BUILDING 
SECOND & L ST., EUREKA 

FAX 445-7409 

CLARK COMPLEX 
HARRIS & H ST., EUREKA 

FAX 445-7388 
AVIATION 839-5401  ADMINISTRATION 445-7491 NATURAL RESOURCES 445-7741 LAND USE 445-7205 

 BUSINESS 445-7652 PARKS 445-7651  NATURAL RESOURCES  445-7205 
ENGINEERING 445-7377 ROADS & EQUIP. MAINT. 445-7421 PLANNING 

 FACILITY MAINTENANCE 445-7493

Media Release For Immediate Release October 28, 2013 

CONTACT:   Cybelle Immitt, Humboldt County Public Works, Natural Resources Planning 
Division, (707) 268-3736, cimmitt@co.humboldt.ca.us.  

Draft Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Available for Public Review 

Comment period runs from October 29, 2013 to November 12, 2013 

Humboldt County invites citizens to review and comment on the recently completed Humboldt 
Operational Area Hazard Mitigation Plan (Hazard Plan) update. The Hazard Plan will be 
available on the County’s website at: 

co.humboldt.ca.us/natural-resources/hazardmitigation/  

The website will provide a copy of the draft plan as well as information on how to submit 
comments.   

Upon its approval by the State and FEMA, the Hazard Plan will serve as a coordinating 
document for the risk reduction efforts of 32 planning partners for the next five years.  It includes 
an assessment of the planning area’s risks from naturally occurring events and includes a list of 
proposed initiatives designed to minimize future natural hazard-related damage. 

The public comment period begins on October 29, 2013 and ends at 5:00 p.m. on November 12, 
2013.  Please direct your comments and questions on the Hazard Plan to Cybelle Immitt, 
Humboldt County Department of Public Works, (707) 268-3736, cimmitt@co.humboldt.ca.us;  
Or 
Rob Flaner, Hazard Mitigation Program Manager, Tetra Tech, Inc., rob.flaner@tetratech.com 
(208) 939-4391 

# # #           (more) 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 74



Background: Humboldt Operational Area Hazard Mitigation Plan-Update  

The federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 established the requirement for local communities to 
have a current hazards mitigation plan as a condition for receiving certain types of non-
emergency disaster assistance, including funding for mitigation projects. To seek compliance 
with that directive, Humboldt County and 31 participating planning partners (which included 
local cities and special purpose districts) embarked on a planning process to update the Hazard 
Plan in December of 2012. This process was funded by a grant received by the County from the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). The planning process is now complete with 
the presentation of the draft plan for public comment. 

The Hazard Plan assesses risk for the eight natural hazards present in the county (Dam Failure, 
Drought, earthquake, flood, landslides, severe weather, tsunami, and wildfire).  It also includes 
proposed mitigation strategies addressing these hazards within the individual jurisdictions and 
throughout the county as a whole.  

This planning process was guided by a Steering Committee of fourteen representatives of the 
planning partnership and other stakeholders within the County. The planning process 
incorporated public involvement by bringing the draft risk assessments out into the community 
for scrutiny and maintaining an informational website.   

One of the most significant aspects of the plan is the inclusion of lists of proposed mitigation 
actions that could be implemented by each jurisdiction to reduce damage to property and impacts 
to people. As federal mitigation dollars become available, planning projects listed in an approved 
mitigation plan may be submitted to the FEMA for consideration for funding. 

After the updated Hazard Plan is approved by FEMA and adopted by the planning partners, 
funding for the “shovel ready” projects (proposed mitigation actions) will be sought as 
opportunities arise to reduce future damage from natural hazards. 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 75



City of Ferndale INCORPORATED 1893

TO: California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services
3650 Schriever Ave
Mather, CA 95655

FROM: City of Ferndale
Stuart Titus, Mayo
834 Main Street
Ferndale, CA 95536

DATE: October 28, 2013

SUBJECT: Consultation Request Invitation

PURPOSE: To invite agencies to participate in consultation with the City of Ferndale
regarding the General Plan Safety Element Update.

SUMMARY: The City of Ferndale is updating its General Plan Safety Element as
mandated by State law. General Plan Element Updates are subject to the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and therefore, environmental review.

Safety Element
The purpose of the Safety Element is to provide a policy basis for measures Ferndale can
take to reduce the potential risk of death, injuries, property damage, and economic and
social dislocation resulting from fires, floods, earthquakes, landslides, and other natural
and man-made hazards. The Element summarizes potential hazards including:
seismically induced surface rupture, ground shaking, and ground failure; slope instability
leading to landslides; subsidence, liquefaction and other seismic hazards; flooding; and
wildland and urban fires. The Safety Element also addresses evacuation routes, peak
load water supply requirements, and minimum road widths and clearances around
structures as those items relate to fire and geologic hazards. The Safety Element is one of
the seven mandated general plan elements listed in California Government Code §65302.

CONCLUSION: The City is sending this invitation to the Office of Emergency
Services to help identify issues and subjects to be addressed in the General Plan Safety
Element.

Please send your consultation request to: Melanie Rheaume, Contract Planner, City of
Ferndale, P.O. Box 1095 Ferndale, CA 95536, or Email melanier~planwestpartners.com.

834 Main Street * P.O. Box 1095 * Ferndale CA 95536
Phone 707-786-4224 * Fax 707-786-9314

Webpage www.ci.ferndale.ca.ciov

CONSULTATION REQUEST INVITATION

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 76



City of Ferndale INCORPORATED 1893

TO: California Geological Survey
Office of the State Geologist
801 K Street, MS 12-30
Sacramento, CA 95814

FROM: City of Ferndale
Stuart Titus, Mayor~
834 Main Street
Ferndale, CA 95536

DATE: October 28, 2013

SUBJECT: Consultation Request Invitation

PURPOSE: To invite agencies to participate in consultation with the City of Ferndale
regarding the General Plan Safety Element Update.

SUMMARY: The City of Ferndale is updating its General Plan Safety Element as
mandated by State law. General Plan Element Updates are subject to the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and therefore, environmental review.

Safety Element
The purpose of the Safety Element is to provide a policy basis for measures Ferndale can
take to reduce the potential risk of death, injuries, property damage, and economic and
social dislocation resulting from fires, floods, earthquakes, landslides, and other natural
and man-made hazards. The Element summarizes potential hazards including:
seismically induced surface rupture, ground shaking, and ground failure; slope instability
leading to landslides; subsidence, liquefaction and other seismic hazards; flooding; and
wildland and urban fires. The Safety Element also addresses evacuation routes, peak
load water supply requirements, and minimum road widths and clearances around
structures as those items relate to fire and geologic hazards. The Safety Element is one of
the seven mandated general plan elements listed in California Government Code §65302.

CONCLUSION: The City is sending this invitation to the California Geological Survey
to help identif,’ issues and subjects to be addressed in the General Plan Safety Element.

Please send your consultation request to: Melanie Rheaume, Contract Planner, City of
Ferndale, P.O. Box 1095 Ferndale, CA 95536, or Email melanier@planwestpartners.com.

834 Main Street * P.O. Box 1095 * Ferndale CA 95536
Phone 707-786-4224 * Fax 707-786-9314

Webpage www.ci.ferndale.ca.qov

CONSULTATION REQUEST INVITATION

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 77



City of Ferndale INCORPORATED 1893

TO: Bear River Band of Rohnerville Rancheria
William Sand, Chairperson
27 Bear River Drive
Loleta, CA 95551

Wiyot Tribe
Ted Hernandez, Chairperson
1000 Wiyot Drive
Loleta, CA 95551

FROM: City of Ferndale
Stuart Titus, Mayor
834 Main Street
Ferndale, CA 95536

DATE: October 28, 2013

SUBJECT: Consultation Request Invitation

PURPOSE: To invite local Native American Governments to participate in
consultation with the City of Femdale regarding the General Plan Safety Element Update.

SUMMARY: The City of Ferndale is updating its General Plan Safety Element as
mandated by State law. General Plan Element Updates are subject to the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and therefore, environmental review.

Safety Element
The purpose of the Safety Element is to provide a policy basis for measures Ferndale can
take to reduce the potential risk of death, injuries, property damage, and economic and
social dislocation resulting from fires, floods, earthquakes, landslides, and other natural
and man-made hazards. The Element summarizes potential hazards including:
seismically induced surface rupture, ground shaking, and ground failure; slope instability
leading to landslides; subsidence, liquefaction and other seismic hazards; flooding;
hazardous materials; and wildiand and urban fires. The Safety Element also addresses
evacuation routes, peak load water supply requirements, and minimum road widths and
clearances around structures as those items relate to fire and geologic hazards. The
Safety Element is one of the seven mandated general plan elements listed in California
Government Code §65302.

834 Main Street * P.O. Box 1095 * Ferndale CA 95536
Phone 707-786-4224 * Fax 707-786-9314

Webpage www.ci.fernclale.ca.gov

CONSULTATION REQUEST INVITATION

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 78



CONCLUSION: The City is sending this invitation to two Native American
Governments to participate in consultation pursuant to Government Code §65352.3, to
help identify issues and subjects to be addressed in the General Plan Safety Element. If
you believe other Native American Governments would wish to consult, please forward
this invitation or advise us so we can send an invitation.

Due to limits mandated by State law, your consultation request must be sent by the earliest
possible date, but not later than 90 days from the date of this notice. Please send your
consultation request to: Melanie Rheaume, Contract Planner, City of Ferndale, P.O. Box
1095 Ferndale, CA 95536, or Email melanier@planwestpartners.com

834 Main Street * P.O. Box 1095 * Ferndale CA 95536
Phone 707-786-4224 * Fax 707-786-9314

Webpage www.ci.ferndae.ca.gov

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 79



City of Ferndale INCORPORATED 1893

TO: Bear River Band of Rohnerville Rancheria
William Sand, Chairperson
27 Bear River Drive
Loleta, CA 95551

Wiyot Tribe
Ted Hernandez, Chairperson
1000 Wiyot Drive
Loleta, CA 95551

FROM: City of Femdale
Stuart Titus, Mayo~~
834 Main Street
Ferndale, CA 95536

DATE: October 28, 2013

SUBJECT: Consultation Request Invitation

PURPOSE: To invite local Native American Governments to participate in
consultation with the City of Ferndale regarding the General Plan Noise & Air Quality
Element Update.

SUMMARY: The City of Ferndale is updating its General Plan Noise Element as
mandated by State law. The Noise Element is one of the seven mandated general plan
elements listed in California Government Code §65302. Air Quality is considered an
optional element. The City currently has no Air Quality Element, but will be adding one
as part of a combined Noise & Air Quality Element. General Plan Element Updates are
subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and therefore,
environmental review.

Noise & Air Quality Element
The Noise & Air Quality Element will address ways to improve air quality and reduce
noise, especially for sensitive receptors such as: schools, medical facilities, and certain
residential uses.

The Noise component of the Element will defines types of noise including, but not
limited to, mobile sources (vehicle noise) and stationary sources (commercial and

834 Main Street * P.O. Box 1095 * Ferndale CA 95536
Phone 707-786-4224 * Fax 707-786-9314

Webpage www.ci.ferndale.ca.gov

CONSULTATION REQUEST INVITATION

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 80



industrial). This section includes a noise contour map for State Route 211 (Main Street)
through Ferndale.

The air quality data and analysis includes an Emissions Reduction Plan to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions. AB 32 calls for emission level rollbacks which can be
accomplished by reducing both stationary and mobile levels. While AB 32 doesn’t
require cities to complete Climate Action or Emissions Reduction Plans, the Attorney
General’s Office has confirmed that such plans constitute acceptable mitigation for cities
conducting General Plan Updates. When prepared in conjunction with a General Plan
Update and incorporated into each Element, Climate Action or Emission Reduction Plans
expedite CEQA review.

CONCLUSION: The City is sending this invitation to two Native American
Governments to participate in consultation pursuant to Government Code §65352.3, to
help identify issues and subjects to be addressed in the General Plan Noise & Air Quality
Element. If you believe other Native American Governments would wish to consult,
please forward this invitation or advise us so we can send an invitation.

Due to limits mandated by State law, your consultation request must be sent by the earliest
possible date, but not later than 90 days from the date of this notice. Please send your
consultation request to: Melanie Rheaume, Contract Planner, City of Ferndale, P.O. Box
1095 Ferndale, CA 95536, or Email melanier@planwestpartners.com

834 Main Street * P.O. Box 1095 * Ferndale CA 95536
Phone 707-786-4224 * Fax 707-786-9314

Webpage www.ci.ferndaIe.ca~ov

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 81



FERNDALE VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT
P.O. Box 485

Ferndale, California — 95536

Date: October 28, 2013

City of Ferndale
P.O. Box 1095
Ferndale, CA 95536

City Clerk:

The Fire Department has completed inspections on the following homes or
businesses, and has found that grease frying shall be a restricted use.
With the exception of grease frying, there are no safety issues or objections
for the following:

Name Address Use
Kathy Thorton 860 Herbert Street Commercial Kitchen

Signatuf~

Ferndale Fire Department

If Jc~Ci~7~

~2O ~
V (,~vrr~

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 82



FERNDALE VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT
P.O. Box 485

Ferndale, California — 95536

Date: October 28, 2013

City of Ferndale
P.O. Box 1095
Ferndale, CA 95536

City Clerk:

The Fire Department has completed inspections on the following homes or
businesses, and has found that grease frying shall be a restricted use.
With the exception of grease frying, there are no safety issues or objections
for the following:

Name Address Use
Kathy Thorton 860 Herbert Street Commercial Kitchen

Signatuf~

Ferndale Fire Department

If Jc~Ci~7~

~2O ~
V (,~vrr~

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 83



MITCHELL, BRISSO, DELANEY & VRIEZE, LLP
CLIFFORI) 13. MITCHELL (1927.20 10) TELEPHONE (707) 443-5643

NANCY K. DELANEY ATFORNEYS AT LAW FACSIMILE NUMBER:

PAUL A. IIRISSO 814 SEVENTH STREET (707) 444.9586

JOHN M. VRIEZE EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95501-1114
WILLIAM F. MITCHELL P.O. DRAWER 1008

RUSSELL S. cANS EUREKA, CA 95502

NICHOLAS K. KLOEPPEI,

EMERY F. MITCHELL (1896. 1991)
JAY M. HARRIS. Associate WALTER J. CARTER (1949— 1993)

VICTOR M. FERRO. of Counsel R.C. IJEDEKAM (1929.2011)

October 22, 2013 -

JJACPA Inc.~~!~ ELUZ ~ ~ 130
~

Re: City of Ferndale
Our File No: 12-22

To Whom it May Concern:

This law firm serves as the City Attorney for the City of Ferndale (the “City”). This
letter is in response to a letter from City Manager Jay Parrish dated October 15, 2013,
requesting a letter revealing the existence (or non-existence) of any pending or threatened
legal claims for use in your audit.

I am not aware of any material pending or threatened litigation, claims or assessments
asserted against the City of Ferndale. I am unaware of any unasserted possible claims or
assessments against the City which are probable of assertion.

Whenever, in the course of performing legal services for the City with respect to a
matter recognized to involve an unasserted possible claim or assessment that may call for
financial statement disclosure, if I have formed a professional conclusion that the City should
disclose or consider disclosure concerning such possible claim or assessment, as a matter of
professional responsibility to the City, I will so advise the City and will consult with the City
concerning the question of such disclosure and applicable requirements.

Should you have any further questions about the City’s legal matters for the purposes
of your audit, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Very truly yours,

MITCHELL, BRISSO, DELANEY & VRIEZE, LLP

Russell S. Gans

RS G/j g
cc: Jay Parrish, City Manager

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 84



SONOMA
Ic0UNTY

~ WATER

A G E N C Y

CF/0-0-1 General - Correspondence (ID 31)

OcT0BERI5,2013

DCI 2 1. 2Q13 U
City Hall
Attention: Jay Parrish
834 Main Street
P.O. Box 1095
Ferndale, Ca. 95536

RE: City of Ferndale Wastewater Treatment Plant

Thank you very much for taking the time to show me the City of Ferndale’s new wastewater
treatment plant. I have heard from people in Sonoma County that Ferndale’s system is working
well and represents a great example of new economical treatment plant designs. I was
impressed with the layout of the system and with the obvious care with which you and your
staff operate and maintain this plant.

Based on our conversations, I understand that you were able to entirely fund this project within
your existing rate structure, which is very impressive. Building a project of this magnitude is an
extremely difficult undertaking because obstacles are always encountered along the way. For
many, such obstacles are too great to overcome. However, as evidenced by Ferndale’s
completed plant, you and your staff found a way to work through obstacles and complete a
model project.

Thank you again for spending time with me and I hope that I will be able to repay the favor if
you are ever in Sonoma County.

Sincerely,

Michael 94hompson
Assistant General Manager

sr\\FILESERVER\Data\CL\pinks\week 10-14-1 3\Ferndale WWTP 10161 3MT.docx

404 Aviation Boulevard• Santa Rosa, CA 95403-9019~ (707) 526-5370 Fax (707) 544-6123 www.sonornacountywater.org\ j\~ (~J~J~

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 85



Construction Postponement Letter - Mailing List X
Name Project Address Mailing Address
Christopher and Lisa Keyes 727 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 714 Continental Way Missoula, MT 58803
Alieen Johnson 741 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 741 Rose Ave Ferndale, CA 95536
Anthony and Elizabeth Titus 757 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 938 Ferndale, CA 95536
Jack and Linda Russ 765 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 3592 Centerville Rd. Ferndale, CA 95536
David and Irene Blachly 827 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 185 Ferndale, CA 95536
Donald and Donna Coppini 861 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 661 Ferndale, CA 95536
Constance Ayers 909 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 275 Ferndale, CA 95536
John Filippini 1020 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 755 Ferndale, CA 95536
George and Karin King 583 Schley Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 7 Ferndale, CA 95536
Dennis & Sharon DeCarli 764 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 302 Ferndale, CA 95536
Robert & Kalynn Dolcini 760 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 65 Ferndale, CA 95536
Thomas Guyer 660 Berding st. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 323 Ferndale, CA 95536
Anthony & Amanda Gomes 550 Herbert St. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 1486 Ferndale, CA 95536
Dennis, Steve and Tern Branstetter 682 Berding St. Ferndale CA 95536 5842 Fairmont Dr. Redding, CA 96003
David and Mary Renner 657 Berding St. Ferndale CA 95536 1312 Pleasant Point Rd Ferndale, CA 95536
Peers Motor Sales 650 Herbert St. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 728 Ferndale, CA 95536

959 Dewey St. Ferndale CA 95536 &
Regina Byrd-Bass 909 Dewey St. Ferndale CA 95536 6288 San Diego Rd Corning, CA 96021
Gloria Dezordo 959 Rose St. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 904 Ferndale, CA 95536
Laura Hussey & Brian Morrison 1009 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 762 Ferndale, CA 95536
Robert and Janet Smith 1035 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 993 Ferndale, CA 95536
Kimball & Angela Jorgensen 1039 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 423 Ferndale, CA 95536
Bruce & Susan Brower 1077 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 1387 Ferndale, CA 95536
David and Bonnie Griffiths 1127 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 1103 Ferndale, CA 95536
Ralph and Linda Mathes 1110 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 276 Ferndale, CA 95536
Jack Russ 1078 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 391 Ferndale, CA 95536
Glenn & Kristie Martella 1060 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 1469 Amborsini Ln. Ferndale, CA 95536
Paul Cosentino 1040 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P.O. Box 1480 Ferndale, CA 95536
Sandra Siddall 960 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 4732 Driftwood Way Oceanside, CA 92057
Sean & Janet Webb 940 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 P0 BOX 919 Sebastopol, Ca 95473
Gary Renner 920 Rose Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 1994 Becker Ln, Ferndale, CA 95536
Sheila Wilma 580 Schley Ave. Ferndale CA 95536 9915 Quanah Ct. Spokane, WA 99208

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 86



City of Ferndale
834 Main Street, P. 0. Box 1095

Ferndale, California 95536
Phone: 707.786.4224, Fax: 707.786.9314

October 14, 2013

-~t9~ti6~J A’~’t~ir ~t1 Yii~’v~p~

TO: David and Mary Renner
1312 Pleasant Point Rd
Femdale, CA 95536

SUBJECT: Rose Ave. Pedestrian Improvement Project

Dear: David and Mary Renner

The City of Ferndale is in the process of executing a contract with V & Construction to
complete the Pedestrian Improvements along Rose Ave. Construction was expected to
begin in September however, due to the potential for conflicts in weather, the project was
placed on hold until the summer of 2014.

Once the schedule has been determined, a follow up letter will be mailed with the
expected start date. The contractor will make arrangements with the current occupant
prior to scheduling any work. Construction is expected to take 6 to 8 weeks and should
have little effect on the daily operation of the local residents.

Thank you and please feel free to contact me at (707) 444-3800, ext 7441, with any
questions.

Sincerely,

David Caisse, P.E.
Senior Project Manager

fr~1.

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 87



STATE OF CALIFORNIA—CALIFORNIA STATE TRANSPORTATTON AGENCY leflMT TND G TTPCWN T,’ Cnvo,’,v~,

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
DISTRICT 1, P.O. BOX 3700
EUREKA, CA 95502-3700
PHONE (707) 445-6399
FAX (707) 441-2048
TTY 711

October 17, 2013

© ~~~
ffi~ ~ 2 12013 IW
BY:.

Flex your power!
Be energy efficient!

Praj White
City Engineer, Ferndale
Manhard Consulting, LTD
6111 Street, Suite A
Eureka, CA 95501

Dear Mr. White,

The Office of Local Assistance has received the Quality Assurance Program (QAP) for
the City of Ferndale, dated September 18, 2013.

We have completed our review of your submittal, and verify that the contents of your
agency’s QAP conform to the guidelines contained in the Local Assistance Procedures
Manual dated January 9, 2009 and updated January 20, 2011.

If you have any questions or need further assistance, please contact the Local Assistance
Office at your convenience.

Sincerely,

SUZANNE TI-IEISS
District Local Assistance Engineer

C: Jay Parrish, City Manager, City of Femdale
David Caisse. Senior Project Manager, Manhard Consulting, LTD

“Caltrans improves mobility across California”
C/V\

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 88



!!1! OCT 112013 U
Humboldt Counly
D i~-~r~~fm ~to~ Environmental Health~1 I Melissa Martel, Director

Hecdth&Hurnan 100 H Street, Suite 100, Eureka, CA 95501
~ phone: (707) 445-6215 I fax: (707) 441-5699

Notice of Proposed No Further Action
Bar Ale

989 Milton, Ferndale LOP #12755

Initial Posting: October 4, 2013 End of Comment Period: December 4,2013

This notice of proposed no further action invites the public to review and comment on the
pending decision to use an engineered cap and environmental covenant for existing
contamination at 989 Milton in Ferndale, California.

Problem Description:
An underground storage tank, approximately 40 ft in diameter, was formerly used to store
heavy end oil. It was reportedly constructed in 1906. The bottom of the tank is
approximately nine feet below ground surface. It is estimated approximately six inches
of oil remain in the tank (4,700 gallons).

Subsurface investigations identified the presence of heavy-end oils outside the tank in an
area located southerly of the tank. Installation of borings and monitoring wells and
analysis of soil samples indicated the extent is limited to 10-15 feet southerly of the tank.

Remedial Action:
Remedial alternatives considered include excavation, vapor extraction, monitored natural
attenuation, a slurry wall, and an engineered cap with institutional controls. Because the
heavy-end petroleum hydrocarbon contamination is localized in extent, stationary, and is
not creating a significant dissolved phase plume, the selected remedial action is use of an
engineered cap and institutional controls in terms of an environmental covenant.

Findings
The distal extent of the groundwater plume and potential threat to sensitive receptors is
evaluated by groundwater monitoring data collected from borings and monitoring wells.
The heavy-end petroleum hydrocarbons were identified in groundwater samples collected
inside the tank (see TP-l and TP-2) and outside the tank (see MW-3), but are interpreted
to be localized in extent because other tested samples (MW-l, MW-2, and MW-4) did not
identify the presence of heavy-end petroleum hydrocarbons. Non-detect results of
groundwater samples from existing MW’s indicate the migration of the heavy-end
petroleum hydrocarbons in groundwater is likely not occurring.

A DMsion of Public Health DHHS Administratior~~~ Mi ~ lEO fl
phone: (707) 268-2121 phone: (707) 441-5400 (,~ VVfe~j ~/

fax: (707) 268-2126 fax: (707) 441-5412 V V

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 89



Humbo’dt_C~~nty Department of Heaith & HumanServ~es

The use of an engineered cap will reduce the potential for infiltration of surface water and
thereby reduce the potential for the movement of the heavy-end petroleum hydrocarbons
in groundwater. The risk of vapor intrusion to indoor and outdoor air is evaluated in a
model presented by Trans Tech Consultants.

Proposed Action
Humboldt County Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Environmental
Health intends to concur with the engineered cap and environmental covenant. We invite
the public to review and coniment on this project. Comments may be presented, prior to
the termination of this public comment period, to Mark Verhey, Humboldt County LOP,
by telephone at (707) 268-2208 or email at m.verhey~co.humboldt.ca.us. This notice is
available for review in our office located at 100 H Street, Ste 100, Eureka. and is posted
on the Geotracker website at: https ://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/.

1 2755.public notice

MAV:LL:cjl

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 90



Section 14

REPORTS 

Section 14a:  Staff Reports 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 91



CITY MANAGER/CITY CLERK: 

Meetings 

 Kiwanis meeting 1st  and 3rd Tuesday of the month at 4:30 pm
 City Council meeting –October 5th –Study session 6:00 pm- Regular meeting from 7:00 – 9:30 pm
 Special City Council meeting: October 17th- 5:00- 6:00 pm
 SRWC meeting- October 8th- 2:30-4:00 pm
 City Manager meeting October 17th - 3:00-5:00 pm. Cancelled
 HMP and the meeting November  6th-1:30- 3:30 pm
 I spent a significant amount of my time over the last month invested in reviewing applications and

analyzing the needs of the City as it relates to the position of the City Clerk/ Deputy Clerk. We are
looking for a person of high integrity and experience that understands the significance of the
position as it relates to community service as a non-political entity tasked with researching and
listing rules and regulations.

 Met with Tom Stephens on October 17th to go over a number of creek related items about drainage
and creek maintenance. I had previously called appropriate property owners to get approval to
access creek.  The engineering students did surveying of certain cross-sections on Francis Creek.
Tom began surveying cross sections of Francis Creek last month and they continued in October.

 Met with Tom Stephens on Oct 29th to discuss the Francis Creek cross section survey project
progress.  Most of the cross section sites are re-occupation of previous survey sites developed
for the FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant stream improvement project by Spencer Engineering
during 2000-2001.  The purpose of the surveys is to document (quantify) stream channel
sediment infilling as a result of accelerated sediment influx due to the March 2011 landslide and
other sediment sources.  The survey data is required by permitting agencies for future sediment
removal from the creek to reduce flooding potential.  HSU graduates and students are assisting
on this project which is anticipated to be an annual event, serving as a hands-on learning
experience as well as benefiting the City’s efforts to reduce flooding.  To date, 12 cross sections
have been sited and surveyed.   Several additional sites between Shaw and Ocean will be
completed prior to the winter storm season.

 Range Rider (ICMA) meeting with Pat Thompson October 3:00- 4:30 pm. Pat was City Manager in
Napa. I had a number of conversations with Pat regarding her role in the rehabilitation of the
Napa River through Napa. She has been very helpful as to how maintenance falls into their long
term financial planning.

 Numerous  conversations with Chamber of Commerce President Karen Pingitore and
Caltrans  representatives regarding the sidewalk replacement project and the upcoming 211 
overlay project that  will start the week of October 3rd  and go from Fernbridge to town, and
then next year all the way  through town. Construction signs were installed prior to the
grinding and paving operations  that commenced a couple of weeks ago. Although there
were delays of some significance the paving project went pretty smoothly, and next year
they will be paving through town.

 Numerous conversations with HWMA executive director Jill Duffy regarding solid waste
issues and  several meetings to discuss JPA issues.

 Annual meeting with CalRecycle representative Spenser Fine. I took Spenser around the City
and pointed out City recycling areas, business areas for recycling and what typical residential
recycling in the City looks like. We also spoke about various programs we have such as the
Hazardous materials event, the e-waste pickup and the pharmaceutical pickup event we

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 92



sponsor. Spenser was also very happy 
 The Mayor and I met with ERD representatives regarding solid waste issues and how we can

better help our community to comply with state regulated levels of service and recycling
goals. ERD has always been very helpful in our efforts to give the best service to the
community at the lowest cost possible. ERD may give a presentation at the Council meeting
that will review their franchise relationship with the City as well as a glimpse of what they
may be able to provide the community in the future. This presentation can be a stimulus for
the council to setup a study session in the near future.

 The Steering Committee for the HMP update continues and we are nearing the end of the
process. With 34 partners joining together for the final plan you can imagine the coordinating
problems that we have had to work through. We will be putting the plan out for public review any
day and are hoping to send the plan on to the state sometime around December. The first time
we went through this process it took us two-an-half years and this time only one year. All the
representatives of the partners and the steering committee have been great to work with. As
chairmen of the steering committee, I have to give my thanks to Cybelle Immitt of the County
Planning department, Rob Flanner of Tetra-Tech, and Pat Kaspari of GHD for guiding us through
the process. Remember that Cybelle Immitt who is a senior planner for the County, led the
coalition of cities and agencies back in 2008 through a process to develop Hazard Mitigation Plans
(HMP) for those agencies and the County. Those mitigation plans had a shelf life of 5 years and
now we are required to update our previous plans. The goal of this planning effort is to update
data for the natural hazards that could impact the planning area to determine the level of risk,
update the identification of actions and activities that can reduce any losses from those hazards,
and reinvigorate the coordinated process of implementing the plan. Back in October of last year
the Council approved a match of $2,500 dollars to continue our participation in this program to
update the HMP. The fiscal match was waived as a consequence of representation on the steering
committee. We have met every month since December and have made great progress. We have
our website up and running and have put out a survey that should help us in our efforts. I
participated in public meetings that were held in Fortuna and Arcata. I also gave an interview with
Channel 3 as part of my obligations as chairman of the HMP Steering Committee. The public
meetings went well and we had good turnouts for both meetings. The next meetings will be the
mandatory planning partner jurisdictional annex workshop. In these meetings we will get detailed
guidance from the consultant about how to complete our respective sections of the updated
hazard migration plan. Information will be provided as to what is included in a good mitigation
project. I am proud to say that because of the work the council authorized for inclusion of the
energy assurance plan, Ferndale was chosen as a plan that the rest of the planning partners
should use to complete their plans. We will not have a meeting in October as we consolidate all of
our partners plans into the main plan and go through a process of review before we release it to
the public for public review. At the end of this process we will have each jurisdiction bring it to
their board for approval and then we will send it to the state for their approval. We are hoping
that this process will be accomplished sometime around the beginning of the year.

 I had a number of conversations with Ann Maurice from Occidental regarding our wastewater
facility and how we went through the process to get an appropriate facility that produced
high quality effluent at an affordable price. They seemed thankful for the information and
interested in the process we chose.

 Meetings with staff to go over workload and efficiency. We have also begun the process of
developing a job description of our deputy city clerk position so that we can advertise for the
position. Remember that the council approved a short term 90 day agreement with Planwest to
cover the clerking position while we develop the new job description. They also approved and
understand that I will be filling the position of City Clerk for an undetermined amount of time

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 93



while we sort out the organizational structure. I have conducted a number of interviews and 
have more scheduled. We have received a good response for the position.  

 Numerous meetings with Mayor Titus and Council to go over a myriad of City issues on an individual
basis.

 Numerous meetings with Melanie Rheaume regarding the draft Sign Ordinance and Planwest’s
progress. We have arrived at a draft of the Ordinance and the Sign Ordinance Committee is
meeting on  October 4th to go over the changes. Melanie and I met with Sign Ordinance
Committee to go over draft Ordinance. There were a number of items that we discussed and the
committee approved moving the draft to a study session with PC. I attended the PC study session
with the Sign Ordinance Committee and went over the SO with the PC and the Council. The
Council conducted the first reading at our October meeting and will look at the second
reading at the November meeting which includes changes recommended by PC, CC and SO
committee.

 Number of conversations and meetings with Rio Dell CM and Fortuna CM to discuss common
issues.

 HMP Steering Committee agenda development, minutes review and meeting preparation.
 Several discussions with Gerald Silva regarding Russ Park LLA agreement. I believe it is about time for

the Council to have a study session on the potential Lot-line Adjustment with Russ Park and the Silva
Ranch. Remember the discussion includes a transfer of some of our property for an equitable part of
the Silva parcel. This process would require surveying as well as county and city planning
procedures. There are a number of benefits to the City and the property owner that makes this
transfer worth considering.

 Numerous conversations with City Attorney Russ Gans to go over personnel policy, procurement
policy, and public information requests. We still have items in the personnel policy manual
that we have not completed and will get back to when we can. Numerous conversations
regarding 580 Main Street. We are still ready to process a building permit that would allow
applicant to put the already approved wood siding on the exterior of the building.

 Numerous meetings with Elias and Rick Souza regarding the SRRF and their participation. I have
also  been involved in talks with them regarding staging areas on their property for the SRRP
and the  agreement with them to take the City’s effluent during the months we do not go to
the Francis Creek.

 Check signing and invoice review for the City.
 Conversations with John Driscoll, Jared Huffman’s representative.
 Many people have complimented us on the landscaping improvements in City green. Dane Cowens

has finished our new City Hall sign, and it turned out beautiful. Dane volunteered a good portion
of his time and the City paid for the materials. Rotary has donated the cost of the paint and we
have been trying to finish before the rain sets in.  The weekend before the council meeting should
see the job completed.

 Sarah Turner and the Garden Club are moving forward on the little pocket park at the end of
Francis Creek. You may have seen the big rock that has been strategically placed by the creek. A
short distance in front of the rock they placed a bench in Shirley Walker’s memory and are working
on the landscaping now. This little park area is where we propose to put the first walking bridge
across Francis Creek as the entrance to Russ Park. You will cross to the area between the Scout
building and the Community Center, go past the Bocce Courts and Children’s Center, past the
baseball field, enter the children’s playground and then cross a duplicate walking bridge and cross
over to Cleveland. You would then continue to Eugene Street and eventually up to Russ Park.

 Numerous meetings with individual councilmen and the mayor regarding City issues, and updates

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 94



about representation on the various joint power authorities and issues that relate to our 
membership on those organizations. Councilmen Sweeney began representing us on the RCEA 
board at the October 16th meeting. 

 Many discussions and conversations with our Planner and City Inspector and staff about the
Kinetic  building downtown where stucco was removed.  The project was given the green light to
put siding on at the January PC meeting. The property has gone through an owner transfer, but it is
unclear what is  holding up any construction by the new owner. Staff will be contacting new owner
to make sure the timeline is in compliance. Our attorney is putting together information to notify
the present owner of their  responsibilities. We hope to move them to put siding on soon. The
council has asked our attorney to work with applicant’s attorney in an effort to find resolution. I will
report to council at our next meeting to give an update on any progress.

 Several discussions with Jo Ann Rennie, executive director of Parsac, related to risk management
issues, and programs instituted through them, and grants that are available through them.
Notified them that we received a new piece of property and made sure it is included in our
coverage. We are hoping to bring the updated Personnel Policy Manual so we can get reimbursed
by a grant through them.

 We have continued to take steps to determine a consensus on best use of newly acquired
property next to City Parking lot. I have had numerous meeting with community members,
business leaders, Chamber president, as well as council-members. I have secured the grounds and
obtained insurance. We have continued to retain the fencing surrounding area with fencing and
are installing appropriate signage. It is staff’s intension to begin public meetings with Chamber and
Council to develop a plan that we can begin to implement as soon as possible.

 Salt River Watershed Council Update from Doreen:

The Humboldt County Resource Conservation District is excited to announce that in the following days, Phase 
1 of the Salt River Project is coming to a close.   

During the second week of October, the three coffer dams on the Salt River were removed; allowing fresh 
and tidal waters to flow into the restored lower section of Salt River and the newly-created 300-acre tidal 
marsh area. The new tidal area will help maintain the width and depth of the Salt River channel and enhance 
rearing habitat and migration conditions for Coho salmon, Chinook salmon, steelhead trout, and coastal 
cutthroat trout. 

Work on the first phase of the Salt River Ecosystem Restoration Project started in May, 2013. Now, just a 
little over five months later, slightly over two miles of setback berm has been built, two miles of the lower 
Salt River channel have been restored, and a 300-acre tidal marsh area constructed.  As work on the first 
phase started to wrap up, work began on the next phase of the project; removing the vegetation that is 
choking the Salt River channel upstream of phase 1.  

Congratulations and thanks to the many, many project partners and proponents. A special thanks goes to 
Anderson Dragline for completing the work on time and on budget; to Ducks Unlimited for construction 
management and oversight services; to SHN Engineering for construction inspection services; to GHD for 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 95



environmental and permit compliance services; to all of the subcontractors; and to the landowners and 
residents along Port Kenyon Road and Riverside Road for their patience and tolerance during construction. 

DEPUTY CITY CLERK: 

Meetings  

 Daily Meetings with City Manager/City Clerk regarding work schedule.
 Attended conference calls with City Manager/City Clerk to City attorney, City Engineer and City

Planner regarding City Council meeting agenda items.
 Attended:

o City Council Meeting 10/03/13
 Wrote agenda items and compiled packets for:

o Regular City Council Meeting 10/03/13
o Special City Council Meeting 10/17/13

 Transcribed meeting minutes and uploaded meeting videos for:
o Regular City Council Meeting 10/03/13
o Special City Council Meeting 10/17/13 (no video recording)

 Posted all meeting agendas and public notices on City Hall and Post Office bulletin boards.
 Uploaded meeting packets to City website.

Projects 

 Started initial testing of a Ferndale GIS system and geodatabase at City Hall.
 Wrote Waste Water Treatment Plant Operator in Training (OIT) job advertisement.  Sent to

Times Standard for price quote.  Received authorization from City Manager/City Clerk and
directed the Times Standard to run the advertisement for 5 days.  The posting was also sent to
the Ferndale Enterprise and published on the City’s website.

 Received and filed applications for the Deputy City Clerk/City Clerk and OIT positions.
 Completed and faxed parade letter to Caltrans.  Filed in parade binder, ‘Ferndale High School

Homecoming Parade’, and sent copy to Ferndale Police Dept.
 Created a step-by-step procedure for processing parade permits and filed in parade binder,

“How To” binder and saved a copy electronically.
 Created a Certificate of Occupancy for City Building Official  Arnie Kemp.
 Daily work with front counter and telephones:  assisted the public with questions, rentals,

permits and licenses.
 Sent and received emails daily (cityclerk@ci.ferndale.ca.us).
 Wrote and processed City correspondence daily.
 Picked up paint for City Hall multiple times.
 Worked with Joe Mellet from the County to correct sewer charges.
 Completed and filed Form 700 Statement of Economic Interest.

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 96



 Processed rental applications and fees for City Hall and Community Center.  Updated City
Calendar daily.  Made copies of the City Calendar and distributed to Public Works.

 Returned cleaning deposits to Community Center and City Hall rental applicants.
 Completed and returned new housing report.
 Completed and returned Strong-Motion Instrumentation and Seismic Hazard Mapping Report.
 Processed dog licenses: mail and over the counter.  Made copy of Dog License worksheet for

Ferndale Police Department.
 Processed yearly business licenses: mail and over the counter.
 Organized and filed paperwork from Deputy City Clerk’s office and hallway.
 Created sample file directory for Deputy City Clerk’s office filing cabinets.
 Organized and scanned documents from 580 file in preparation for the Special City Council

Meeting.  There is now a chronological, electronic record of all correspondence.
 Received and typed staff reports from Public Works Department.
 Processed building permits for the following addresses:

o 1289 Madison – Encroachment Permit
o 389 Berding – Encroachment Permit & Re-roof
o 450 Berding – Install Tankless Water Heater
o 632 Main – Re-roof

CITY PLANNER: 

Task 1 – General Planning 
 Attended 10/3 City Council Meeting and Study Session.  Prepared and presented First Reading of

Ordinance 2013-02 Sign Ordinance and General Plan Noise & Air Quality Element Scope of Work.

 Responded to inquiries regarding sign regulations for the Ferndale Repertory Theatre.

 Responded to public inquiries regarding zoning regulations pertaining to livestock density and
pasturing horses for compensation at 1057 5th Street in the Agricultural Exclusive Zone.

 Coordinated with City Manager and City Staff in response to public inquiry regarding fencing over
Stormwater drainage easement at 511 Shamsi Court.

 Continued coordination with City Manager, City Attorney and City Staff on siding project at 580
Main Street.  Prepared correspondence, collated files, attended 10/17 Special Closed Session City
Council Meeting, assembled documentation for City Attorney.

 Researched Electric Rule 20A, including process, requirements, and findings. Coordinated with City
Manager and PG&E representative Lizette Burtis to prepare PG&E Undergrounding Continuation &
Progress Report for 10/3 City Council Meeting.

 Responded to public inquiry regarding parking requirements in the C2D zone.

 Coordinated with City Attorney to prepare authorization to update the Nuisance Ordinance.

Task 2 – Reimbursable Fee Planning 
 Westfall Witham Minor Subdivision and Lot Line Adjustment:  Coordinated with City Engineers

Office on revisions to the Conditions of Approval. Prepared and sent Letter of Planning Commission
Action and Letter of City Engineer Action.

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 97



 989 Milton – AT&T Generator Use Permit:  Reviewed Use Permit application for backup generator
installation at 989 Milton.  Sent applicant letter outlining requirements to complete application.

Task 3 – Special Projects 
 Sign Ordinance Update

 Coordinated with Deputy City Clerk to post draft Sign Ordinance on City website. 

 Incorporated input from 9/18 Study Session and Planning Commission meeting. 

 Advertised Sign Ordinance Study Session via flyers and newspaper. 

 Prepared and presented First Reading at 10/3 City Council Study Session and meeting.  
Council unanimously approved.  Incorporated input from public and Council, sent to City 
Attorney for legal review.  Initiated preparation of Second Reading.  Initiated preparation of 
accompanying Zoning Ordinance amendments.      

 Coordinated with Chief of Police, City Manager, and City Attorney to prepare First Reading of
Ordinance 2013-03 Medical Marijuana Dispensary and Cultivation Ordinance.

 Prepared sample Zoning Ordinance amendments to parking regulations to increase affordability.

 Researched zoning regulations on potential properties for senior housing project.  Coordinated with
City Manager and Coalition for Senior Housing to determine viability of sites.  Attended 10/2
meeting with a working group of A1AA, Lytle Foundation, Ferndale Senior Resource Center, DCI
Builders and City of Ferndale representatives to discuss need for senior housing in Ferndale and
possible solutions.  Prepared Access, Parking, Zoning and Incentive Plan for 11/13 meeting.

Task 4 – General Plan Review Fund 
 Initiated preparation of Noise & Air Quality Element according to Planning Commission and City

Council approved Scope of Work.

ADMINISTRATION ASSISTANT/DEPUTY CITY CLERK: 

Meetings 

 Meeting with City Manager on Office Issues
 Attended Design Review Meeting
 Meeting with Phil Aycock and Stacey Edgmon
 Meeting with Joseph Arch CPA

Projects 

 2013-14 Budget
 2012-13 Closing
 Payroll
 Accounts Payable
 Accounts Receivable
 Processed Deposit
 Answer Phones
 Purchase Various Supplies

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 98



 Assisted at front counter
 Put Design Review Packets together
 Posted Agenda Items
 Organized files for 2012-13
 Fill CPA requests for documentation

CITY ENGINEER: 

Sewer Projects 

o Working on a proposed capital improvement report (sewer)
 The draft document has been prepared and waiting for additional input regarding the

sewer priorities.

o Working with Steve to determine the problems with the sewer line on Main St (in front of
the High School).
 Potential locations for future cleanouts are being considered. Once these locations are

determined, cost estimates and correspondence with adjacent property owners will
take place to determine feasibility.

o Wastewater Treatment Facility – Wetland Maintenance, Monitoring and Reporting
 The first year conditions were surveyed. The report and maintenance plan is prepared

and ready for submittal.

Pedestrian Improvement Project 

o Rose Street: (Phase 2)
 The project has been advertised and bids have been opened. The project was awarded

to V & C Construction. The contracts are being executed however, the construction was
placed on hold until the summer of 2014.

Applications 

o Hadley Merger –The applicant has paid the outstanding project fees and signed the
Notice of Merger and Certificate of Subdivision Compliance.  We are in the process of 
collecting the recording fees to record the document at the Humboldt County Recorder's 
Office.  The project is anticipated to be complete during November 2013. 

o 2nd Hadley Merger (7 parcels) –The applicant provided the requested additional
information. The application will remain incomplete while the City Engineer's Office waits 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 99



for Department of Fish & Wildlife approval on Parcel 'C' for the drainage improvements.  
Additionally, the City Engineer's Office is requesting additional information related to the 
legal descriptions.  Once the application is complete, the City Engineer's Office will move 
forward with referring the project and completing the staff report before scheduling a 
hearing with the City Council. 

o Westfall/Witham Lot Line Adjustment/Subdivision -  This project included a two parcel
subdivision and lot line adjustment located off Rose Avenue.  On September 18, 2013,
the Planning Commission approved the Lot Line Adjustment for Assessor Parcel
Numbers (APNs) 031-241-09 and 031-241-10.  The Notice of Lot Line Adjustment and
Certificate of Subdivision Compliance for both parcels were recorded on August 2, 2013,
at the Humboldt County Recorder's Office.  The applicant has completed all of the
conditions of approval for this project.  This project is complete.

o At the same hearing, the Planning Commission approved a minor subdivision of APN 031-
241-09.  The Conditions of Approval were modified during the hearing by the Planning
Commission.  The Commission requested to remove Condition of Approval 3 related to
recording a new deed to establish the appropriate ownerships.  The City Engineer's Office
recognized this was unnecessary as both parcels will remain under the same ownership
and waived Condition of Approval Number 3.  Condition of Approval Number 9 originally
required that new water service for each parcel be installed at the same time.  Because
the new parcel will not be developed immediately, the City Engineer's Office, at the
request of the Planning Commission, modified Condition Number 9 to allow the applicant
to defer the installation of water service to Parcel Number 2 until which time an
application for any structures or earthwork activity is proposed to the City of Ferndale.
The City Planning and Engineering Offices are currently working with the applicant to
satisfy the Conditions of Approval for this project.  We anticipate the Conditions of
Approval will be satisfied sometime during 2014.

o Mr.  Willis Hadley - Francis Street Project:  A letter has been forwarded to the owner
regarding the requirements that need to be met in order for the application to be 
approved. Additional information has been submitted and is under review. 

o Mr. Willis Hadley – Building Permit Application (Fence) – The application has been
submitted and a conditional approval letter has been returned to the applicant. 
Additional information has been received regarding a new landscape/flood barrier wall. 
The request has been forwarded to the Drainage Committee for comment. 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 100



o Carl Havener Grading Permit Application – The application submittal information was
incomplete. The applicant was notified and asked to provide the necessary information.

General Engineering 
o 5th Street Flooding in front of Ferndale Housing –

 Initial work (pipe, inlet and rip rap installed) completed in December. In January, the
roadwork and paving was also completed. Work for Phase 2 has been completed. Final
retainage payment will be authorized once vegetation has become established.

o Working on a proposed capital improvement report (roads and drainage)
 Met with Tim and discussed scope of projects to be included but still need to prioritize

and prepare estimated for the work. Draft CIP submitted for review.

o Cal Trans Maintenance on SR 211 (Review of SHOPP drawings)
 Continued coordination and inspections (as needed) will take place until the projects

are completed.

o Misc. Document review.
 Prepared a project description for a new PSR project to do a safety and ADA

accessibility study for the pedestrian corridors throughout the City. We have prepared
a may and are in the process of reviewing the existing facilities (sidewalks, curb ramps,
handicap parking, crosswalks, etc...). Once completed, we will prepare a report and
then prioritize the deficiencies based on expected use and recommendations from the
City. The request was discussed at the TAC meeting and the HCAOG board approved
the use of $7,500 for this study.

Meetings and Committees 
o City Council

 Attended October Meeting
o HCAOG Meeting

 Attended October Meeting

Reporting and Correspondence 
o Prepared monthly staff report
o General correspondence and meetings with City Staff

WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 

 Monthly samples prepared and sent to North Coast Labs 
 General maintenance performed around facility by CPO and OITs; i.e. clean bar screen, grease equipment,

wash and clean vehicles, tractor and gator
 Moved irrigation pipes to west side of Sousa Dairy

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 101



 CPO and OITs Thrap and Ivey prepared and poured slab extension at sludge drying facility at old site
 Weekly safety meetings held, including public works employees
 Filed online SSO report
 Scheduled Hach Co. to perform mandatory cleaning and calibration of onsite equipment for Wednesday Oct.

23 
 OIT Ivey weedeat around facility and old site
 OIT Ivey turned in 3 week notice. Last day of work was Oct. 17. Sent out advertisement for new OIT position.

Interviews scheduled for Tuesday Oct. 22.
 Dewater throughout the month for approximately 30 total hours
 OITs Thrap and Ivey perform lab tests daily to measure efficiency of plant
 Gave tour of facility to HSU students
 Monthly eSMR (electronic State Monthly Report) prepared and submitted
 Coliform tests to Fortuna each Tuesday and BOD/TSS samples to Fortuna on 2nd Thursday of the month
 OITs Thrap and Ivey cleaned influent filters on disc filter
 No biosolids were shipped off site due to good drying conditions ensuring plenty of storage capacity
 Turn sludge at drying facility
 OIT Thrap attended grade 2 test prep class at Bear River Hotel for two days
 OIT Ivey cleaned walls and catwalks
 The facility received a total of 18 septic dumps from Roto Rooter & Wyckoff’s totaling 30,100 gallons and

generating $5,418 in revenue for the facility.
 Total flows through the collection system were 3.59 MG. Of that, .23 MG was pumped to the equalization

pond.
 Influent flows that were treated through the facility totaled 3.37 MG for the month of August. 3.36 MG was

irrigated to Sousa ranch. The average irrigation flow was .112 MGD

PUBLIC WORKS: 

JOHNNY’S PROJECTS 

 Community Center: routine landscaping, replaced light bulbs.
 City Hall:  routine watering, mowing and landscaping, picked up brush, hung picture behind

counter, picked up plastic roofing for painting project, removed stumps and replaced sprinklers
in front flower beds, replaced receptacle cover, bought new vacuum.

 Fireman’s Park:  landscaping, trimmed weeds and mowed lawns, refinished sign.
 Russ Park: landscaping, and tree trimming.
 Scout’s Hall:  landscaping, tree trimming and tree removal.
 Library: picked up wood for the flag pole collars, painted flag pole collars, pressure washed and

painted flag pole column.
 Police Station: landscaping, and mowing, cleaned out garage.
 Park Bathroom: replaced trim boards.
 Removed debris from 370 Schuler Avenue.
 Cleaned out drainage inlets and drains around town.
 Trimmed trees at the bridge on Van Ness Street.
 Mowed lawns in alley behind the Library, under Petrolia sign, Washington Street, and Eugene

Street.
 Purchased and restocked supplies for bathrooms.

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 102



 Dropped off electronic waste and picked up paint for City Hall.
 Swept Main Street.
 Assisted sewer plant with pouring concrete.
 City Parking Lot: routine landscaping.
 Removed tree from Francis Creek.
 Picked up trash at Wildcat and Ocean.
 Replaced stop signs on Rose and Berding and Rose Herbert.

TIM’S PROJECTS 

 Spread wood chips out under the swings at the park.
 Removed materials from gutter clean out.
 Replumbed sprinklers in front of the Children’s Center.
 Tested back flow at City Hall and Sewer Department with Brian McNiel (Certified Tech).
 Called Sequoia Gas about leak in Community Center kitchen.
 Filled potholes with gravel o 4th Street alley.
 Picked up supplies from Bay West.
 Removed tree that was blocking creek at 20 Wildcat.
 Pulled out hedge stumps at City Hall and replumbed the new sprinkler system.  Hauled out old

bark chips from flower beds.
 Replaced broken vacuum at Community Center.
 Closed road on Bluff Street to cut trees.
 Put asphalt around walking path at City Hall by the propane tank.
 Worked with a Community Center client to hang ceiling hooks for upcoming event.

POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

 Officer Dmitriy Gavryush has completed his field training program.  He is patrolling on his own.

 Officer Lindsey Frank has been hired by Fortuna Police Department.  Officer Frank’s last patrol
shift will be sometime November 16th.  Congratulations to Officer Frank.  Her service and
dedication to the residents, the city and the department has played an instrumental role in
helping keep the city safe for the last six years.

 Chief Smith is in the process of replacing Officer Frank’s position with an academy graduate
from the College of the Redwoods Police Academy. The process is nearly completed.

 We have been placing the radar trailer at various locations where we have received speeding
complaints from local residents.

 Officer Stricker was promoted to the rank of Police Sergeant.

 Chief Smith attended Kiwanis meetings/functions.

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 103



 Chief Smith attended the monthly LECAH meeting.

Police Statistics – October 2013 

SERIOUS CRIMES Number Cleared 
Homicide 0 
Rape 0 
Robbery 0 
Larceny 3 
Assault 0 
Burglary 1 
Vehicle Theft 0 

TOTAL 4 
SECONDARY CRIMES 16 

Calls for Service 81 

Reports Written 31 

Traffic Citations 5 
Other Citations 0 
Parking Citations 1 
Warnings 52 
ARRESTS 15 
AGENCY ASSISTS 11 
TRAFFIC COLLISIONS 2 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 104



Section 14b: Commissions, Committees and Other 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 105



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Jack Thompson, Rio Dell, Chair 
Mike Newman, City of Eureka, Vice Chair 

HUMBOLDT WASTE  Lana Manzanita, , City of Blue Lake 

MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY Shane Brinton, City of Arcata 

John Maxwell, City of Ferndale 
Rex Bohn, County of Humboldt  

Minutes 
Thursday, September 12, 2013 5:30 PM 
Eureka City Council Chambers 
531 K Street, Eureka, CA 

Present: Rex Bohn, Alex Stillman (alternate for Shane Brinton), Lana Manzanita, 

Mike Newman, John Maxwell, Jack Thompson 

Staff:  Jill Duffy, Tyler Egerer, Patrick Owen, Brent Whitener, Karen Sherman 

Legal Counsel: Nancy Diamond 

1) Call to Order and Roll Call
Chairman Thompson called the meeting to order at 5:37 p.m. A quorum was present 

and acting.  

2) Approve the Agenda
3) Consent Calendar

a) Approve Minutes from the July 11, 2013 HWMA Board of Directors Meeting.

b) Receive June FY 2012/13 and July 2013/14 Financials

c) Consider Approval of Agreement between HWMA and County of Humboldt to Provide

California Integrated Waste Management Act Compliance and Waste Reduction Services

d) Consider Approval of Agreement with California Electronic Asset Recovery (CEAR) for

Processing of HWMA-Collected Electronic Waste

e) Consider Approval of Golder Associates Project Addendum dated August 8, 2013

f) Consider Approval of Temporary Reclassification Policy to HWMA Personnel Handbook

g) Accept CalRecycle Zone Incentive Fund Grant in the Amount of $10,000

Chairman Thompson Pulled Item 3g). 

Chairman Thompson Opened the Floor to Public Comment regarding the Agenda and 

Consent Calendar. No comment was received. 

Chairman Thompson Closed the Floor to Public Comment. 

Motion: Director Newman Motioned and Director Maxwell Seconded to Approve 

the Agenda and Consent Calendar with Item 3g) pulled for discussion. 

Action: Adopt motion by Director Newman as seconded by Director Maxwell by 

the following vote. 

Ayes:  Bohn, Maxwell, Manzanita, Newman, Thompson. 

Noes: None 

Absent:  Stillman 

4) Oral and Written Communications
Chairman Thompson Opened the Floor to Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda. 

No comment was received. 

Chairman Thompson Closed the Floor to Public Comment. 

Director Stillman joined the Meeting at 5:50 p.m. 

October 10, 2013

Printed on Recycled Paper

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 106



5) Review and Approve Draft RFP’s and Agreements for Transportation and Disposal of
Municipal Solid Waste
Discussion of this item begins at approximately 00:02:15 of the meeting video.
The Board discussed options for the time table to completion of the RFP process, including

additional time for further Board review of the draft documents. The basic layout and intent

of the RFP was presented along with the requirements placed on the successful proposer.

Legal Counsel indicated that the agreement accompanying the RFP would be finalized such

that it accurately reflects the various elements of the RFP document prior to publishing.

Chairman Thompson Opened the Floor to Public Comment regarding the draft RFP.

Garry Penning, of Rogue Way Systems/Dry Creek Landfill, spoke about issues of financial

confidentiality. Mr. Penning’s comments begin at approximately 00:41:26 of the meeting
video.

Chairman Thompson adjourned the meeting to a seven minute break at 7:13 p.m. 

Chairman Thompson called the meeting to order from break at 7:20 p.m. 

The Board discussed Mr. Penning’s concerns, and reviewed each section of the RFP, with 

questions pertaining to the review committee; evaluation scoring, operational logistics faced 

by the successful proposer; and anti-collusion activities aimed at easing proposer’s concerns. 

The Board directed that a final draft incorporating all of the night’s changes be brought to 

the Board in October. To facilitate this, a special meeting was set for the afternoon of October 

24

th

, to allow staff and Intelliwaste to full incorporate the necessary changes. 

6) Consideration to hold a Special Meeting in October and Cancellation of the
Regularly Scheduled October 10, 2013 Board Meeting
Discussion of this item begins at approximately 02:05:00 of the meeting video.
Executive Director Duffy restated the intention outlined in discussion of Item 5 to hold the

regular meeting of the Board on October 10

th

 to discuss regular business, and to hold a

special meeting on October 24

th

 to review the final draft RFP, and other special business of

the Board.

Motion: Director Stillman Motioned and Director Newman Seconded to Retain the 

October 10

th

 Meeting Date and Set a Special Meeting of the Board for 

October 24

th

 to Commence at 1:30 p.m. 

Action: Adopt motion by Director Stillman as seconded by Director Newman by 

the following vote. 

Ayes:  Bohn, Maxwell, Manzanita, Newman, Stillman, Thompson. 

Noes: None 

Abstain: None 

7) Receive and Discuss Proposed Legislative Guideline Process
Discussion of this item begins at approximately 02:05:55 of the meeting video.
Executive Director Duffy outlined the general intent of the Legislative Guideline Process.

Primarily, the goal is to start a two-year process for the research and tracking of important

legislation, rather than maintain a state of urgency on upcoming bills.

The Board discussed further issues with establishing a Legislative Guideline, including

possible reliance on other organizations for bill tracking; the need to efficiently cull 5,000

plus bills introduced each cycle for proposed bills most important to the Authority’s guiding

principles; and the potential costs to the Authority to devote staff time to these endeavors.

October 10, 2013

Printed on Recycled Paper

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 107



The Board appointed Directors Manzanita and Newman to a committee designated to assist 

the Executive Director in establishing the first stages of a Legislative Guideline Process, and 

return to the Board with further information for discussion at the November meeting. 

8) Items Pulled from Consent Calendar
Item 3g):
Discussion of this item begins at approximately 02:27:25 of the meeting video.
Chairman Thompson pulled the item to discuss concerns over the extent of the RMDZ

program, including worries about a lack of contract and reporting guidelines to the Board.

The Board further discussed the merits of the RMDZ program, and asked for success stories

that have been produced through the program. Executive Director Duffy indicated a desire to

speak in more detail about the RMDZ, and indicated that discussion would take place at

another meeting.

Motion: Director Stillman Motioned and Director Maxwell Seconded to Accept 

CalRecycle Zone Incentive Funds in the amount of $10,000 and Authorize 

the Executive Director to Pass Funds Through to North Coast RMDZ 

Consultant in Accordance with Activity Metrics 

Action: Adopt motion by Director Stillman as seconded by Director Maxwell by 

the following vote. 

Ayes:  Bohn, Maxwell, Manzanita, Newman, Stillman, Thompson. 

Noes: None 

Abstain: None 

9) Board Member Reports
Discussion of this item begins at approximately 02:40:30 of the meeting video.

Chairman Thompson reported on the ongoing success of the Rio Dell sewer plant, 

which has received multiple awards for its construction and environmentally conscious 

design. 

10) Executive Director’s Report
Discussion of this item begins at approximately 02:42:35 of the meeting video.

Executive Director Duffy reported on payments to Authority Member Agencies for 

cardboard recycling revenues earned through processing at the HWMA Transfer Station. 

The City of Eureka will be receiving approximately $20,000, while the City of Arcata 

will receive $23,000. 

A spreadsheet issue with Resolution 2014-01, the Fee Resolution for Fiscal Year 2014, 

resulted in a line item specific to Franchise Bulky Item fees getting blanked out in the 

approved document. Staff will return at the special meeting on October 24 with a 

resolution amending the original document. 

Executive Director Duffy touched on upcoming Household Hazardous Waste mobile 

events, including another pharmaceuticals collection to be held in October. She thanked 

participating agencies for these events for their assistance. In addition, Tiffany Ibbs, 

Senior HHW Technician, has once again assisted in winning the Hazardous Materials 

Continuing Challenge, marking back to back wins for the Humboldt County Hazardous 

Materials Response team. 

October 10, 2013

Printed on Recycled Paper

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 108



Motion:  Director Newman Motioned and Director Stillman Seconded to Continue the 

Meeting beyond 8:30 p.m. 

Action:  Adopt motion by Director Newman as seconded by Director Stillman by the 

following vote. 

Ayes:  Bohn, Maxwell, Manzanita, Newman, Stillman, Thompson. 

Noes: None 

Abstain: None 

11) Closed Session/Report Out: : It is the intention of the Board of Directors to meet in closed

session to consider the Public Employee Performance Evaluation for the position of the

Executive Director pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.5 and 54957

Chairman Thompson Opened the Floor to Public Comment regarding Closed Session. 

No comment was received. 

Chairman Thompson Closed the Floor to Public Comment. 

Chairman Thompson Adjourned the meeting to Closed Session at 8:30 p.m. 

No Report Out was made from Closed Session. 

12) Adjourn
Chairman Thompson Adjourned the meeting following Closed Session 

Next Meeting: October 10, 2013 at 5:30 p.m. at Eureka City Hall Council Chambers. 

October 10, 2013

Printed on Recycled Paper

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 109



Section 14c: Council Reports and Comments

Section 15

ADJOURN 

November 7, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 110


	9.12.13 HWMA Minutes.pdf
	HWMABoardpacket101013 3
	HWMABoardpacket101013 4
	HWMABoardpacket101013 5
	HWMABoardpacket101013 6

	11 7 13 CC - Ordinance 2013-02 Sign Ord 2nd reading.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION:  Accept changes to, approve the second reading of, and adopt Ordinance 2013-02 Sign Ordinance.
	BACKGROUND: The City Council approved the first reading of the Sign Ordinance during its October meeting and directed staff to bring it back to the November meeting for a second reading and possible adoption.  During a study session prior to the regul...
	DISCUSSION:  During the October 3rd Sign Ordinance study session and regular meeting, Council members and public raised questions and suggested revisions to the draft Ordinance.  The following discussion addresses considerations and revisions made in ...
	FISCAL IMPACT: Staff time and materials authorized on June 6, 2013.
	Insert Draft Sign Ordinance
	Ferndale Draft Sign Ord - Second Reading - changes marked.pdf
	Article 1 Adoption, Short Title,  and Purpose and Repeal
	§1.1 Adoption: There is hereby adopted a Sign Ordinance for the City of Ferndale, State of California, pursuant to California Government Code §65000 et seq., §65850(b), §38774, §38775, Business and Professions Code §5200 et seq. and §5490 et seq., Civ...
	§1.2 Short Title: This Ordinance shall be known and cited as the “Sign Ordinance.” In any administrative action taken by any public official under the Authority set forth in the Ordinance, the use of the term “Sign Ordinance,” unless further modified,...
	§1.3 Purpose: This Ordinance is adopted to protect community safety and values through the regulation of signs and sign structures. The regulations established by this Ordinance are intended to appropriately limit the placement, type, size, and number...
	1.3.1 Promote historic preservation of contributing structures and downtown Ferndale;
	1.3.2 Ensure that Ferndale signage conforms to the purposes and objectives of the Design Review Combining Zone as per Zoning Ordinance 02-02;
	1.3.3 Promote the community’s aesthetic and economic values by providing for signs that do not impair the attractiveness of the City as a place to live, work, shop, and visit;
	1.3.4 Provide for signs as an effective channel of communication, while ensuring that signs are designed in a manner consistent with Ferndale’s historical styles and aesthetically proportioned to the structures to which they are associated;
	1.3.5 Safeguard and protect the public health, safety and general welfare by allowing safe and effective signage while avoiding visual clutter, distractions and obstructions; and
	1.3.6 Defend and preserve the rights of freedom of association, speech and expression in all matters pertaining to signage.

	§1.4 Repeal: The adoption of this ordinance shall repeal Ordinance 02-02 §3.66, §5.10.1f, §7.23 and §7.27.4.

	Article 2 Statutory Authority / Enforcement Authority
	§2.1 The statutory authority for this Ordinance is California Government Code §65000 et seq., §65850(b), §38774, §38775, Business and Professions Code §5200 et seq. and §5490 et seq., Civil Code §713, and other applicable State laws.
	§2.2 All departments, officers and public employees vested with the duty or authority to issue permits shall issue no sign permit within the City in conflict with these regulations, and any such permit issued in conflict with these regulations shall b...
	§2.3 Any person whether principal, agent, employee or otherwise, violating or causing or permitting the violation of any one of the provisions of these regulations shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be punishable by a ...
	§2.4 Any sign installed or maintained contrary to the provisions of these regulations shall be a public nuisance subject to injunction and abatement.
	§2.5 The remedies provided herein shall be cumulative and not exclusive.
	§2.6 The City Manager (or in his/her absence the Mayor), or his/her designee shall be responsible for the enforcement of the provisions of these regulations.
	§2.7 In the event that any fee or charge is not paid within the time period specified by the City, the City shall retain the right to seek enforcement and/or collection in court, at the expense of the responsible party. Expenses shall be recoverable b...

	Article 3 Applicability
	§3.1 Signs Regulated. Any alteration to the structure, area, height, or placement of an existing regulated sign, shall require that the existing sign be modified to comply with all applicable provisions of this Ordinance. The requirements of this Ordi...
	3.1.1 Art and Decorations. A display designed and intended as a decorative or ornamental feature that does not contain advertising text or identifying symbols such as numbers, address, registered trademarks, or registered logos.
	3.1.2 Government and Required Signs. Signs required and/or installed by a Federal or State governmental agency, the City, County, or local agency, including but not limited to the following. Such signs shall not require a Design Review Use Permit.
	3.1.2.1 Emergency and warning signs necessary for public safety or homeland security;
	3.1.2.2 Traffic control, directional, and street name signs erected and maintained by an authorized public agency;
	3.1.2.3 Signs showing the location of public facilities (e.g., civic buildings and facilities, public telephones, restrooms, and underground utilities);
	3.1.2.4 Any sign, posting, public notice, or similar sign placed by or required by a governmental agency in carrying out its responsibility to protect public health, safety, and general welfare;
	3.1.2.5 Notices, licenses, permits, and other signs required by law; and
	3.1.2.6 Service station fuel price signs no larger than required by State law.

	3.1.3 Historical Signs. An existing sign shown by an applicant to be older than 50 years or found to be of historical significance by the Planning Commission is exempt from the provisions of this Ordinance. The applicant for this exemption shall incur...
	3.1.4 Sign Content. The provisions of this Ordinance do not regulate the message content of signs (sign copy), regardless of whether the message content is commercial or noncommercial. Nothing contained in this Ordinance is intended to favor commercia...
	3.1.5 Sign Location. Signs located on the interior of buildings or structures are not regulated by this Ordinance, unless such signs are located within five feet of a street facing window and oriented towards the window and not primarily designed for ...


	Article 4 Definitions
	§4.1 ABANDONED OR OBSOLETE SIGN:  A sign that no longer advertises a business, lessor, owner, product, service or activity on the premises where the sign is displayed.
	§4.2 AFFILIATION SIGN:  A sign identifying membership in an association or network.
	§4.3 ANIMATED SIGN:   A sign which uses movement, blinking, flashing, change or fluctuation of lighting intensity, color, motion or sense of motion, or sound to depict action or create a special effect, including programmable displays and rotating sig...
	§4.4 AWNING, CANOPY OR MARQUEE SIGN:  A sign displayed on or attached flat against the surface or surfaces of an awning, canopy, or marquee.
	§4.5 BANNER, FLAG OR PENNANT:   Cloth, bunting, plastic, paper, or similar non-rigid material used for advertising purposes attached to a structure, staff, pole, line, framing, or vehicle, not including official flags of the United States, the State o...
	§4.6 BILLBOARD:  Any freestanding off-site outdoor advertising sign and or panel independent of a building to attract the attention of those passing by.
	§4.7 BULLETIN BOARD: A permanent sign with posted messages that relay community information.
	§4.8 CITY MANAGER: The City Manager for the City of Ferndale.
	§4.9 CITY STAFF:  The City Manager for the City of Ferndale or his/her designee.
	§4.10 CONSTRUCTION SIGN:  A sign advertising or identifying the persons or firms associated with a construction or development project.
	§4.11 COPY: The graphic content of a sign surface in either permanent or removable letters, images, symbols, figures or message format.
	§4.12 DERELICT SIGN:  A sign that is dilapidated or in such condition as to create a hazard or nuisance, or to be unsafe or fail to comply with the applicable Building or Electrical Codes.
	§4.13 DESIGN CONTROL COMBINING ZONE: “Design Control Combining Zone” is defined in Article VI, §6.05 of Zoning Ordinance 02-02.
	§4.14 DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE: That Committee which is appointed pursuant to Article VI, §6.05.4 of Zoning Ordinance 02-02.
	§4.15 DESIGN REVIEW USE PERMIT: Shall mean those permits issued pursuant to Article VI, §6.05.4 of Zoning Ordinance 02-02.
	§4.16 DIRECTIONAL SIGN:   A sign designed and erected solely for the purpose of directing those passing by.
	§4.17 FLASHING SIGN:  A sign having a conspicuous and intermittent variation in lighting; a sign incorporating intermittent electrical impulses from a source of light or a light revolving in a manner which creates the illusion of flashing.
	§4.18 FREESTANDING SIGN:  A sign permanently attached to the ground which is supported by one or more uprights, braces, poles or other similar structural components that is not attached to a building or buildings, nor has a building as its primary str...
	§4.19 GARAGE AND YARD SALE SIGNS:  A sign with a message advertising the resale of personal property.
	§4.20 GASOLINE PRICE SIGN:  A sign that announces the price of fuel to those passing by.
	§4.21 HISTORIC SIGNIFICANCE PLAQUE:  A sign announcing the location of a feature, place or building found to be historically significant and authorized or erected by a state or nationally recognized historical preservation society, the City Council, o...
	§4.22 ILLUMINATED SIGN: A sign with an artificial light source for the purpose of lighting the sign.
	4.22.1 INDIRECTLY ILLUMINATED SIGN:  A sign whose light source is exterior to the sign and which casts light onto the sign from some distance.
	4.22.2 INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED SIGN:  A sign that houses an internal lighting system.

	§4.23 INCIDENTAL SIGN: A small sign, emblem, or decal providing only information to those passing by regarding aspects of service available on the premises, such as credit cards accepted or open hours.
	§4.24 INFLATABLE SIGN:  Any sign that is or can be enlarged with three cubic feet or more of air, liquid or gas.
	§4.25 LOGO: An established identifying trademark or symbol of an organization, business or business entity.
	§4.26 MOVING SIGN: Any sign or device which has any visible moving part, visible revolving part, or visible mechanical movement, including wind-driven signs but not including banners, flags, or pennants.
	§4.27 MULTI-FACED SIGN:  A sign that has two or more sign faces.
	§4.28 MURAL:  A display painted directly on a wall which is designed and intended as a decorative or ornamental feature. Murals do not contain advertising text, numbers, address, registered trademarks, or registered logos. A mural is generally not con...
	§4.29 NAMEPLATE: An on-site wall sign which gives only the name of the building or the name, contact information, address and/or occupation of an occupant or group of occupants.
	§4.30 OFF-SITE SIGN:  A sign which directs attention to a business, product, service, industry or other activity not sold, offered or conducted on the premises upon which the sign is located.
	§4.31 ON-SITE SIGN:  A sign which directs attention to a business, product, service, industry or other activity sold, offered or conducted on the premises upon which the sign is located.
	§4.32 OPINION SIGN:  A temporary sign that directly relates to a candidate for public office or to a ballot issue, proposition, or a party in an election conducted by a governmental entity or a sign expressing political, social, religious, or other id...
	§4.33 PORTABLE SIGN:  A sign located on or off a business premises which is intended to be moved or capable of being moved, whether or not on a motor vehicle, wheels or other special supports, including, but not limited to, "A-frame" type signs, placa...
	§4.34 PRODUCT SIGN: A sign using logos, icons, shapes, or symbols to inform the public that a particular product or brand is sold at that location.
	§4.35 PROJECTING SIGN:  A sign other than a wall sign that is suspended from, attached to, or projects more than 12 inches from a building face or wall or from a structure whose primary purpose is other than the support of the sign.
	§4.36 REAL ESTATE SIGN:  A temporary sign announcing the offer to build on, sell, lease or rent real property and identifying the entity handling such sale, lease or rental. Includes signs announcing an open house for the property.
	§4.37 ROOF SIGN:  A sign that is mounted on the roof of a building or which is wholly dependent upon a building for support and which projects above the point of a building with a flat roof, the eave line of a building with a gambrel, gable or hip roof .
	§4.38 SANDWICH BOARD SIGN:  A temporary portable A-Frame sign placed outside a business.
	§4.39 SEASONAL SIGNS AND DECORATIONS:  Temporary seasonal, holiday and cultural observance decorations which do not include commercial advertising messages.
	§4.40 SIGN: Any device, structure, fixture, or placard displaying graphics, symbols, and/or written copy for the primary purpose of communicating with the public, when such image is visible from any public right-of-way, except the following:
	4.40.1 Personal appearance. Items or devices of personal apparel, decoration or appearance, including tattoos, makeup, wigs, costumes, masks, etc.;
	4.40.2 Manufacturers’ marks. Marks on tangible products, which identify the maker, seller, provider or product, and which customarily remain attached to the product even after sale;
	4.40.3 Mass transit graphics. Graphic images mounted on duly licensed mass transit vehicles that legally pass through the City;
	4.40.4 Vehicle and vessel insignia. On street legal vehicles and properly licensed watercraft: license plates, license plate frames, registration insignia, non-commercial messages, messages relating to the business of which the vehicle or vessel is an...
	4.40.5 Grave stones and grave markers;
	4.40.6 News racks and newsstands;
	4.40.7 Shopping carts, golf carts, and horse drawn carriages; and
	4.40.8 Vending machines which do not display off-site commercial messages or general advertising messages.

	§4.41 SPECIAL EVENT SIGN: A temporary sign used to announce community wide events which are not conducted in connection with the operation of a commercial enterprise.
	§4.42 STREET ADDRESS:   Any series of numbers and/or letters used for describing the location of a building, apartment, or other structure or a plot of land on a street.
	§4.43 SUBDIVISION SIGN:  A temporary sign advertising a subdivision and providing travel directions to properties therein offered for sale or lease.
	§4.44 TEMPORARY SIGN:  A sign intended to display either commercial or noncommercial messages of a transitory or temporary nature.
	§4.45 TIME AND/OR TEMPERATURE SIGN:  Any sign or portion of a sign which displays only the current time and/or temperature that carries no other copy.
	§4.46 WALL SIGN:  A sign which is attached to or painted on the exterior wall of a structure with the display surface of the sign approximately parallel to the building wall.
	§4.47 WIND-DRIVEN SIGN:  A sign that moves freely in the wind.
	§4.48 WINDOW SIGN:  A sign which is attached to or painted on a window or door.
	§4.49 ZONE: A distinct and separate district within which certain uniform regulations and requirements or combinations thereof apply under the provisions of Ordinance 02-02.

	Article 5 Sign Permits
	§5.1 Sign Permit Required:  No sign shall be constructed, installed, or modified, unless a sign permit is first obtained in compliance with this Section, or the sign is allowed without a sign permit by Article 6 (Exemptions from Sign Permit Requiremen...
	5.1.1 Criteria for Approval:  No sign permit shall be approved for an existing or proposed sign unless the sign is in compliance with all applicable requirements of this Ordinance.
	5.1.2 Effect of Approval:  An approved sign shall be installed and maintained only in compliance with its sign permit.
	5.1.3 Design Review Use Permit:  A proposed sign may require a Design Review Use Permit in addition to a sign permit.
	5.1.4 Building Permit:  A proposed sign may require a Building Permit in addition to a sign permit.

	§5.2 Review Authority.
	5.2.1 City Staff: City Staff, as directed by the City Manager, shall review and decide sign permit applications in compliance with the findings required by §5.4 (Findings for approval), except as provided by §5.2.2. City Staff may, in its sole discret...
	5.2.2 Design Review: In addition to signs within the Design Control Combining Zone, a Design Review Use Permit as provided for by Ordinance 02-02 shall be required for:
	5.2.2.1 Sign permit applications in any zone proposing signs over 20 square feet in area, or proposing a sign that will increase the total sign area on a site to over 20 square feet; and
	5.2.2.2 All signs for nonresidential uses in residential zones unless exempt from sign permit requirements per Article 6.

	5.2.3 Conditions of Approval:  The review authority may require conditions of approval that it determines are necessary to achieve the purpose, intent, and objectives of this Ordinance.

	§5.3 Sign Permit Procedures.
	5.3.1 Application Requirements:  Each application shall include all of the following:
	5.3.1.1 A site plan and building elevations, drawn to scale, accurately showing the proposed location of each sign in relation to other signs on the site and building, including each present and planned sign of any type, whether or not requiring a per...
	5.3.1.2 Plans for the sign, drawn to scale, accurately detailing the design and proposed appearance of the sign, including mounting and lighting details;
	5.3.1.3 A complete color scheme for the sign;
	5.3.1.4 Sufficient other details of the proposed sign to show that it complies with the provisions of this Ordinance;
	5.3.1.5 Written permission from the property owner for the placement of the proposed sign on the site;
	5.3.1.6 Computation of the total sign area, the area of each individual sign, the height of each sign, and the total number of existing and proposed signs on the parcel; and
	5.3.1.7 Other information as required by the review authority.


	§5.4 Findings for Approval. The approval of a sign permit shall require that the review authority make the following findings, as applicable:
	5.4.1 The proposed sign complies with the standards of this Ordinance and is in substantial conformance with the design criteria in §8.7 of this Ordinance.

	§5.5 Expiration and Extension of Sign Permit or Approval.
	5.5.1 Sign permit and sign plan approval shall expire 12 months from the date of approval unless the sign has been erected or a different expiration date is stipulated at the time of approval. Before the expiration of a sign permit, the applicant may ...
	5.5.2 The expiration date of the sign permit shall be automatically extended to concur with the expiration date of the companion Building Permit or other applicable permits.

	§5.6 Administrative Appeals.
	5.6.1 Administrative decisions, including determinations relative to application completeness, may be appealed to the City Council within 10 calendar days of City Staff’s determination, or, where referred by City Staff to the Design Review Committee f...


	Article 6 Exemptions from Sign Permit Requirements
	§6.1 Nonstructural Modifications and Maintenance. Nonstructural modifications and maintenance of conforming signs, including modifications to sign copy or changes to the face or copy of changeable copy signs;
	§6.2 Permanent Signs.
	6.2.1 Historic Significance Plaque and Nameplate. Nameplates, building cornerstones when cut or carved into a masonry surface or when made of noncombustible material and made an integral part of the building or structure, and historic plaques erected ...
	6.2.1.1 Each building or structure shall bear only one such sign;
	6.2.1.2 Nameplates shall not exceed two square feet in area;
	6.2.1.3 Historic Significance Plaques shall not exceed four square feet in area;
	6.2.1.4 Signs shall be constructed of historically significant and durable materials; and
	6.2.1.5 The sign shall not be illuminated.

	6.2.2 Incidental and Affiliation. Incidental and Affiliation signs are allowed without a sign permit provided that the signs do not exceed one square foot each in area and are attached to a window pane, transom or door. These signs shall not be illumi...
	6.2.3 Official Flags. Flags of national, State, or local governments, fraternal, or public service agencies, provided:
	6.2.3.1 Only one flag pole is permitted per parcel;
	6.2.3.2 A maximum of three flags shall be flown on one pole;
	6.2.3.3 The length of the flag shall not exceed one-third the height of the flag pole;
	6.2.3.4 The height to width ratio of the flag shall not exceed 1:1;
	6.2.3.5 The height of the flag pole shall not exceed 20 feet within a residential zone, and 30 feet within a nonresidential zone; and
	6.2.3.6 No private flag pole shall be located within a public right-of-way or required setback.

	6.2.4 Parking Information Signs. Signs identifying accessible parking spaces, tenant parking, customer parking only, etc., and/or noting that unauthorized vehicles may be towed or any other parking restriction, provided that:
	6.2.4.1 Such signs shall not be illuminated;
	6.2.4.2 A maximum of four signs shall be permitted per parcel;
	6.2.4.3 Each sign shall pertain to parking space(s) located on private property;
	6.2.4.4 No such sign shall exceed two square feet in area; and
	6.2.4.5 Such signs shall be exempt from Design Review.

	6.2.5 “No Trespassing” or similar signs regulating the use of property, provided the signs  do not exceed two square feet or a total aggregate area of four square feet.
	6.2.6 Street Address. As required by the California Building Code, all buildings must have street address numbers, building numbers or building identification placed in a position that is plainly legible and visible from the street or road fronting th...
	6.2.6.1 The address sign shall meet the requirements of the adopted California Building Code.
	6.2.6.2 The address numbers shall:
	6.2.6.2.1 Contrast with their background;
	6.2.6.2.2 Be Arabic numbers and/or alphabetical letters;
	6.2.6.2.3 Not exceed 12 inches in height; and
	6.2.6.2.4 Shall not be smaller than four inches in height nor have a stroke of less than one-half inch.

	6.2.6.3 Where access is by means of a private road and the building address cannot be viewed from the public way, a monument, pole, or other sign or means shall be used to identify the structure.

	6.2.7 Time and Temperature Signs and Barber Poles not exceeding 10 square feet in area.
	6.2.8 Window Signs. In all zones except residential zones, (R- zones), window signs in compliance with §10.10 of this Ordinance are allowed without a sign permit and are exempt from design review provided the signs do not exceed two square feet per si...

	§6.3 Temporary Signs. The following do not require a sign permit or Design Review:
	6.3.1 Banners and Pennants. Banners or pennants may be used for a period not to exceed 30 days per year after submitting a signed and dated notice to City Hall including dates of use, business name and address, and applicant name and contact informati...
	6.3.2 Construction Signs. Construction signs, provided that the signs:
	6.3.2.1 Are erected no sooner than the date of Building Permit issuance and are removed within 30 days of Building Permit finalization;
	6.3.2.2 Shall not exceed a total aggregate area of ten square feet for individual lots or 32 square feet for a subdivision frontage. Sign height shall not exceed six feet for a single lot or eight feet for a subdivision;
	6.3.2.3 Shall be placed at minimum ten feet from any public right-of-way or 15 feet of any intersection;
	6.3.2.4 One such sign shall be allowed per public entrance to the site or subdivision;
	6.3.2.5 Shall not advertise for employment or other services; and
	6.3.2.6 Shall not be illuminated.

	6.3.3 Garage and Yard Sale Signs. Garage and yard sale signs, provided that the signs:
	6.3.3.1 Shall not exceed five square feet in area and 48 inches in height;
	6.3.3.2 Shall not be illuminated;
	6.3.3.3 Shall not be placed on public property;
	6.3.3.4 No more than four off-site and one on-site sign shall be posted; and
	6.3.3.5  Garage and yard sale signs shall be allowed for up to 48 hours before and after the sale.

	6.3.4 Opinion and Special Event Signs. Opinion or special event signs shall not be prohibited by development restrictions (i.e., CC&R’s), provided that the signs:
	6.3.4.1 Shall not be illuminated;
	6.3.4.2 Shall be placed on private property with the property owner's consent;
	6.3.4.3 Shall not exceed a total aggregate area of 12 square feet on a site within a residential zone, and 32 square feet within a nonresidential zone;
	6.3.4.4 Shall not be placed within 15 feet of a fire hydrant, street sign, or traffic signal, or interfere with, confuse, obstruct, or mislead traffic; and
	6.3.4.5 Shall be placed no more than 60 120 days prior to the event or, if the event constitutes a regular or special election, upon official announcement of candidacy for a public office or announcement of a ballot initiative/proposition, and are rem...

	6.3.5 Real Estate Signs. Real estate signs in compliance with California Civil Code §713, subject to the following requirements:
	6.3.5.1 All Zones. Real estate signs shall not be illuminated and shall be removed upon sale or rental of the property and/or close of escrow.
	6.3.5.2 Commercial Zones. A site within a commercial zone (C- zone) shall be allowed one on-site freestanding real estate sign and one off-site freestanding real estate sign for each parcel frontage. Signs shall not exceed 32 square feet, with a maxim...
	6.3.5.3 Residential Zones. A site within a residential zone (R- zone) shall be allowed one on-site freestanding real estate sign and one off-site freestanding real estate sign for each parcel frontage. Signs shall not exceed six square feet, with a ma...

	6.3.6 Seasonal Signs and Decorations.  Seasonal signs and decorations provided the signs are erected no sooner than 45 calendar days prior to the holiday and removed within 10 days following the holiday.


	Article 7 Prohibited Signs
	§7.1 Abandoned or derelict signs, sign structures or empty frames;
	§7.2 Animated and moving signs, including electronic message display signs, and variable intensity, blinking, or flashing signs, exposed illumination exceeding 15 watts or 1000 lumens, the use of flame as illumination or as a design feature, or signs ...
	§7.3 Signs that emit odor, noise, smoke, flame or visible matter other than light;
	§7.4 A sign attached to or suspended from a boat, vehicle, or other movable object that is parked within a public right-of-way, or located on private property but visible from a public right-of-way; except a sign painted directly upon, magnetically af...
	§7.5 Signs containing obscene matter in violation of California Penal Code §311 et seq.;
	§7.6 Signs supported in whole or in part by cables or guy wires;
	§7.7 Billboards;
	§7.8 Inflatable signs;
	§7.9 Roof Signs;
	§7.10 Internally illuminated signs except product signs;
	§7.11 Signs that simulate in color, size, or design, any traffic control sign or signal, or that make use of words, symbols, or characters in a manner that interferes with, misleads, or confuses pedestrian or vehicular traffic, or creates a safety haz...
	§7.12 Any sign not established and maintained in compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws in effect at the time of original installation; and
	§7.13 Temporary and portable signs, except as specifically allowed elsewhere in this Ordinance.

	Article 8 General Requirements for All Signs
	§8.1 Sign Height Measurement. The height of a sign shall be computed as the vertical distance from the lowest point of the base of the sign at normal grade, to the top of the highest attached component of the sign.
	8.1.1 Grade. Normal grade shall be construed to be the lower of either the:
	8.1.1.1 Existing grade before construction; or
	8.1.1.2 Newly established grade after construction, exclusive of any berming, filling, mounding, or excavating solely for the purpose of locating the sign.

	8.1.2 Where Normal Grade Cannot be Determined. If normal grade cannot reasonably be determined, sign height shall be computed on the assumptions that the elevation of the normal grade at the base of the sign is equal to the elevation of the nearest po...

	§8.2 Sign Height Limits. Sign height shall not exceed the limit established for the applicable zone by Article 9 (Sign Standards by Zone), or as required for a specific sign type by Article 10 (Standards for Specific Sign Types). Where maximum height ...
	§8.3 Sign Area Measurement. The measurement of sign area to determine compliance with the sign area limitations of this Ordinance shall occur as follows.
	8.3.1 Surface Area. The surface area of a sign shall be calculated by enclosing the extreme limits of all framing, emblem, logo, representation, writing, or other display within a single continuous perimeter composed of squares or rectangles with no m...
	8.3.2 Sign Structure. Supporting bracing or framework that is clearly incidental to the display itself shall not be computed as sign area.
	8.3.3 Multi-faced Signs. The sign area for a sign with more than one face shall include only the area of the largest side.
	8.3.4 Three-dimensional Objects. Where a sign consists of one or more three-dimensional objects (e.g., balls, cubes, clusters of objects, sculpture, or statue-like trademarks), the sign area shall be measured as their maximum projection upon a vertica...

	§8.4 Sign Area and Quantity Limits. Sign area and quantity shall not exceed the limit established for the applicable zone by Article 9 (Sign Standards by Zone), or as required for a specific sign type by Article 10 (Standards for Specific Sign Types)....
	8.4.1 Frontage. In the case of a building with frontage on more than one public way, each frontage shall be considered separately. For aggregate sign area, the total allowed per frontage may be distributed between the frontages (a building may use its...
	8.4.2 Unless otherwise specified in this Ordinance, signs exempt from permit requirements per Article 6 and Temporary signs per §10.8 of this Ordinance shall not be counted toward the aggregate area and quantity limit.
	8.4.3 Window signs shall not be counted toward aggregate area and quantity limits.
	8.4.4 A maximum of three permanent signs, one of which may be multi-faced, shall be allowed per business.
	8.4.5 A building with multiple businesses served by an interior mall shall be limited to one sign at each building entry identifying the building name and a directory not to exceed one square foot per business listed within the building. Individual bu...
	8.4.6 On any single parcel, temporary signs not including banners or pennants shall not exceed an aggregate area of 12 square feet within a residential zone or 32 square feet within a nonresidential zone.

	§8.5 Location Requirements. Each sign location shall meet the following requirements, and all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance.
	8.5.1 Each sign shall be located on the same site as the subject of the sign, except as otherwise allowed in this Ordinance;
	8.5.2 Each sign location shall comply with setback requirements of the applicable zone, except where a different requirement is established in this Ordinance;
	8.5.3 All signs shall comply with Americans with Disabilities Act restrictions for access;
	8.5.4 No sign shall be placed so as to interfere with the operation of or obscure a door, fire escape, stairway, standpipe, window, or building design element including a cornice or other decorative detail;
	8.5.5 Signs placed on private property shall have written permission from the property owner;
	8.5.6 No sign shall be marked on or affixed to a rock, tree, or other natural landscape feature;
	8.5.7 No sign shall be placed within 15 feet of a fire hydrant, on utility poles, traffic control signs or in the public right-of-way, except as allowed by this ordinance or government authority; and
	8.5.8 No sign shall be placed where it will interfere with visibility or safety.

	§8.6 Signs Placed Within the Public Right-of-Way.
	8.6.1 No sign shall be allowed in the public right-of-way, including sidewalks, except for:
	8.6.1.1 Signs with an encroachment permit from the appropriate agency.
	8.6.1.2 Signs on structures located within the right-of-way which by tradition or designation are used for the purpose of communication by the general public. Such structures shall include kiosks, bulletin boards, benches upon which advertisement is a...
	8.6.1.3 Public signs erected by or on behalf of a governmental agency to convey public information, identify public property, post legal notices, or direct or regulate pedestrian or vehicular traffic;
	8.6.1.4 Bus stop signs installed by a public transit company;
	8.6.1.5 Informational signs of a public utility regarding lines, pipes, poles, or other facilities; or
	8.6.1.6 Emergency warning signs installed by a governmental agency, public utility company, or contractor doing authorized work within the public right-of-way.

	8.6.2 Any sign installed or placed within the public right-of-way other than in compliance with this Section shall be forfeited to the public and be subject to confiscation.
	8.6.3 In addition to other remedies identified in Article 13 (Abatement and Removal), the City shall have the right to recover from the owner, or person placing the sign, the full costs related to the removal and disposal of any sign not complying wit...

	§8.7 Design Criteria. The following design criteria shall be used in reviewing the design of individual signs. Substantial conformance with each of the following design criteria shall be required before a sign permit can be approved.
	8.7.1 Design and Construction.
	8.7.1.1 A proposed permanent sign should be designed by a professional (e.g., architect, building designer, landscape architect, interior designer, or one whose principal business is the design, manufacture, or sale of signs), or others who are capabl...
	8.7.1.2 Signs that could potentially create a public hazard shall require plans signed by an engineer prior to permit approval, and may require inspection by the City Building Inspector.

	8.7.2 Materials and Structure.
	8.7.2.1 Materials for permanent signs shall be durable and capable of withstanding weathering over the life of the sign with reasonable maintenance.
	8.7.2.2 The size of the structural members (e.g. columns, crossbeams, and braces) shall be proportional to the sign panel they are supporting. In general, fewer larger supporting members are preferable to many smaller supports.
	8.7.2.3 Materials for signs within the Design Control Combining Zone shall be consistent in appearance to materials of surrounding historic structures.

	8.7.3 Color. Colors on signs and structural members should be harmonious with one another and relate to the dominant colors of the other structures on the site. Contrasting colors may be used if the overall effect of the sign is still compatible with ...

	§8.8 Copy and Typeface Guidelines. The City does not regulate the message content (copy) of signs; however, the basic principles of copy design and layout can enhance the readability and attractiveness of signs. Copy design and layout consistent with ...
	8.8.1 For business signs, copy should relate only to the name and/or nature of the business or commercial center.
	8.8.2 Permanent signs that advertise continuous sales, special prices, make claims, or include phone numbers, etc. should be avoided.
	8.8.3 Information should be conveyed briefly or by logo, symbol, or other graphic manner. The intent should be to increase the readability of the sign and thereby enhance the identity of the business.

	§8.9 Lighting. Sign lighting shall be designed to minimize light and glare on surrounding rights-of-way and properties. Illuminated signs are allowed provided they comply with all other provisions of this Ordinance, including the following:
	8.9.1 External light sources shall be directed and shielded so that they do not produce glare on any object other than the sign. A maximum of 15 watts or 1000 lumens is allowed;
	8.9.2 Lighting from any sign shall not exceed one half (0.5) lumen per square foot measured at the nearest property line.Lighting shall not be of an intensity or brightness that will interfere with the reasonable enjoyment of residential properties;
	8.9.3 Lighting shall not blink, flash, flutter, or change intensity, brightness, or color;
	8.9.4 The use of mirrors or highly reflective surfaces that direct or reflect natural or artificial light onto a public right-of-way or adjoining property shall be prohibited;
	8.9.5 Neither the direct nor reflected light from primary light sources shall create hazards for pedestrians or operators of motor vehicles; and
	8.9.6 Indirect light sources shall utilize hard-wired fluorescent, LED, or compact fluorescent lamps, or other lighting technology that is of equal or greater energy efficiency. Incandescent, xenon, metal halide, mercury vapor, and sodium vapor lamps ...

	§8.10 Sign Maintenance.
	8.10.1 Each sign and supporting hardware, including temporary signs, shall be maintained in good repair and functioning properly at all times.
	8.10.2 Any repair to a sign shall be of equal or better in the quality of materials and design as the original sign.
	8.10.3 A sign that is not properly maintained and is dilapidated shall be deemed a public nuisance, and may be abated in compliance with the Nuisance Ordinance.
	8.10.4 When an existing sign is removed or replaced, all brackets, poles, and other supports that are no longer required shall be removed, and unpainted areas shall be painted to match the adjacent portion of the structure.


	Article 9 Sign Standards by Zone
	Article 10 Standards for Specific Sign Types
	§10.1 Awning, Canopy or Marquee Signs. These signs are limited to first or second story and shall not project beyond the face of the awning, canopy, or marquee.
	§10.2 Bulletin Board Signs. One bulletin board may be permitted on the site of an institution, subject to the following;
	10.2.1 Sign shall not exceed 20 square feet and not more than ten feet in height; and
	10.2.2 Sign content must relate to an activity conducted at or sponsored by the institution.

	§10.3 Directional Signs. Directional signs shall not be used for off-site advertising or advertising for hire and shall comply with all the following requirements:
	10.3.1 Content. Directional signs shall not contain advertising copy. Business name or logo shall not exceed 20 percent of the total sign area.
	10.3.2 Sign Area. Directional signs may not exceed an area of six square feet or height of 48 inches.
	10.3.3 Off-site Directional Signs. An off-site directional sign may be approved only for sites where the review authority determines that a property owner has considered all permanent signs allowed by this Ordinance, and site visibility still remains ...
	10.3.3.1 A maximum of two such signs, limited one per street, shall be allowed per use.
	10.3.3.2 Such signs shall be placed only on private property.
	10.3.3.3 Sign content shall be limited to name and directional arrow.

	10.3.4 On-site Directional Signs. No more than two shall be permitted per public road entrance. Entities sharing an access may be permitted one on-site directional sign each along the access road.

	§10.4 Freestanding Signs.
	10.4.1 Location Requirements. A freestanding sign may be located within a required front or street side setback provided that it complies with the vision clearance area requirements of Ordinance 02-02 §7.08.1.
	10.4.2 Height Limit. A freestanding sign shall not exceed a height of eight feet.
	10.4.3 Sign Area. Sign area shall not exceed 24 square feet, with base structure area not exceeding 3/4 of the sign area.
	10.4.4 Other Requirements.
	10.4.4.1 The bottom edge of a freestanding sign shall be no more than three feet above ground level.
	10.4.4.2 Freestanding signs without a solid base shall be either hung from a bar cantilevered off one post or supported by two wood, metal, or granite posts that are generally square in cross section.


	§10.5 Product Signs. Businesses may be permitted a maximum of three Product signs, with a maximum of two per window, provided the signs:
	10.5.1 Shall be located in the building interior but not on doors or second story windows;
	10.5.2 Shall not exceed four square feet; and
	10.5.3 May be illuminated only during business hours.

	§10.6 Projecting Signs.
	10.6.1 Shall project perpendicularly from the building to which they are mounted;
	10.6.2 Shall have a ground clearance of no less than eight feet from the bottom of the sign to the finished grade below;
	10.6.3 Shall project no more than 48 inches from the building face nor closer than 12 inches to the vertical plane of the street curb line;
	10.6.4 Shall not exceed an area of 33nine square feet individually or 18 66 square feet per building in aggregate;
	10.6.5 Shall require an Encroachment Permit if projecting over a public right-of-way;
	10.6.6 Shall not extend higher than the lesser of 14 feet, eave height, parapet height, or sill height of a second floor window;
	10.6.7 Shall not be permitted on the same frontage as a freestanding sign; and
	10.6.8 Creative shapes, three-dimensional signs, and signs using icons, shapes, symbols uniquely suited to the business are encouraged.

	§10.7 Sandwich Board Signs. These signs may be permitted annually when necessary to direct traffic to a location and are not covered by the restrictions in §10.3 (Directional Signs). These signs are highly discouraged, but may be permitted subject to ...
	10.7.1 Such signs must be removed daily at the close of normal business hours;
	10.7.2 A renewal application for such signs shall be submitted with annual business license renewal; and
	10.7.3 A maximum of one such sign, not to exceed six square feet in area and 48 inches in height, may be allowed per business.

	§10.8 Temporary Signs. Temporary signs are allowed in all zones subject to the following:
	10.8.1 Banners and Pennants. A licensed business may be permitted to use a banner or pennants subject to the following requirements (see also Article 6 for exemption):
	10.8.1.1 The use of a banner or pennants may be allowed for up to 120 days;
	10.8.1.2 Horizontally oriented banners or pennants shall have a maximum height of four feet and a maximum length of 50 feet. Vertically oriented banners shall have a maximum size as determined by the Design Review Committee.
	10.8.1.3 The application for a sign permit for banners or pennants shall include the dates proposed by the applicant for scheduled use.

	10.8.2 Subdivision Signs. Subdivision signs may be allowed subject to the following:
	10.8.2.1 A maximum of two off-site signs per subdivision may be located on private property;
	10.8.2.2 One on-site sign per street frontage, with a maximum of two separated by a minimum of 75 feet, may be located within a subdivision;
	10.8.2.3 The area of each sign shall not exceed 24 square feet for an on-site sign and 12 square feet for an off-site sign;
	10.8.2.4 The height of each sign shall not exceed six feet;
	10.8.2.5 The signs shall not be illuminated; and
	10.8.2.6 The signs may be displayed only 12 months following recordation of the final map, or until all of the units have been sold, whichever occurs first.


	§10.9 Wall Signs.
	10.9.1 A maximum of two wall signs per building frontage shall be permitted.
	10.9.2 Wall signs shall not exceed the lesser of 32 60 square feet or 0.250.75 square feet for each foot of frontage plus 0.1250.25 square feet for each foot of building façade height.
	10.9.3 The aggregate area of all wall signs on a building shall not exceed 80 175 square feet.
	10.9.4 Wall signs shall not project more than six inches from the wall.

	§10.10 Window Signs.
	10.10.1 Maximum Sign Area. Window signs shall not exceed 24 square feet individually or an aggregate area of 25 percent of the total window area. Window panels separated by muntins or mullions shall be considered as one continuous window area.
	10.10.2 Sign Location. Signs shall be allowed only on windows located on the ground level and second story of a structure frontage.
	10.10.3 Second Story Window Signs. The number of second story window signs shall not exceed 50 percent of the number of second story windows fronting on the same street (i.e., a building with six windows on a side may have three of those windows with ...


	Article 11 Exceptions
	Article 12 Nonconforming Signs
	§12.1 General Requirements. A nonconforming sign shall not be:
	12.1.1 Changed to another nonconforming sign with a greater degree of nonconformity;
	12.1.2 Structurally altered;
	12.1.3 Reestablished after on-premises business operations are discontinued for six months; or
	12.1.4 Reestablished after damage or destruction to more than 50 percent of the replacement cost of the sign or components as determined by the Building Official.

	§12.2 Maintenance and Changes. Nonstructural modifications and maintenance (e.g., painting, rust removal) of nonconforming signs are allowed without a sign permit. Changes shall not exceed 50 percent of the replacement cost as determined by the Buildi...

	Article 13 Abatement and Removal
	Article 14 Amendment
	Article 15 Enactment
	§15.1 Severability. If any section, sub-section, paragraph, sentence, or word of this ordinance shall be held to be invalid, either on its face or as applied, the invalidity of such provision shall not affect the other sections, sub-sections, paragrap...
	§15.2 Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective 30 days after the date of its enactment.



	11 7 13 CC - Ordinance 2013-02 Sign Ord 2nd reading.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION:  Accept changes to, approve the second reading of, and adopt Ordinance 2013-02 Sign Ordinance.
	BACKGROUND: The City Council approved the first reading of the Sign Ordinance during its October meeting and directed staff to bring it back to the November meeting for a second reading and possible adoption.  During a study session prior to the regul...
	DISCUSSION:  During the October 3rd Sign Ordinance study session and regular meeting, Council members and public raised questions and suggested revisions to the draft Ordinance.  The following discussion addresses considerations and revisions made in ...
	FISCAL IMPACT: Staff time and materials authorized on June 6, 2013.
	Insert Draft Sign Ordinance
	Ferndale Draft Sign Ord - Second Reading - changes marked.pdf
	Article 1 Adoption, Short Title,  and Purpose and Repeal
	§1.1 Adoption: There is hereby adopted a Sign Ordinance for the City of Ferndale, State of California, pursuant to California Government Code §65000 et seq., §65850(b), §38774, §38775, Business and Professions Code §5200 et seq. and §5490 et seq., Civ...
	§1.2 Short Title: This Ordinance shall be known and cited as the “Sign Ordinance.” In any administrative action taken by any public official under the Authority set forth in the Ordinance, the use of the term “Sign Ordinance,” unless further modified,...
	§1.3 Purpose: This Ordinance is adopted to protect community safety and values through the regulation of signs and sign structures. The regulations established by this Ordinance are intended to appropriately limit the placement, type, size, and number...
	1.3.1 Promote historic preservation of contributing structures and downtown Ferndale;
	1.3.2 Ensure that Ferndale signage conforms to the purposes and objectives of the Design Review Combining Zone as per Zoning Ordinance 02-02;
	1.3.3 Promote the community’s aesthetic and economic values by providing for signs that do not impair the attractiveness of the City as a place to live, work, shop, and visit;
	1.3.4 Provide for signs as an effective channel of communication, while ensuring that signs are designed in a manner consistent with Ferndale’s historical styles and aesthetically proportioned to the structures to which they are associated;
	1.3.5 Safeguard and protect the public health, safety and general welfare by allowing safe and effective signage while avoiding visual clutter, distractions and obstructions; and
	1.3.6 Defend and preserve the rights of freedom of association, speech and expression in all matters pertaining to signage.

	§1.4 Repeal: The adoption of this ordinance shall repeal Ordinance 02-02 §3.66, §5.10.1f, §7.23 and §7.27.4.

	Article 2 Statutory Authority / Enforcement Authority
	§2.1 The statutory authority for this Ordinance is California Government Code §65000 et seq., §65850(b), §38774, §38775, Business and Professions Code §5200 et seq. and §5490 et seq., Civil Code §713, and other applicable State laws.
	§2.2 All departments, officers and public employees vested with the duty or authority to issue permits shall issue no sign permit within the City in conflict with these regulations, and any such permit issued in conflict with these regulations shall b...
	§2.3 Any person whether principal, agent, employee or otherwise, violating or causing or permitting the violation of any one of the provisions of these regulations shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be punishable by a ...
	§2.4 Any sign installed or maintained contrary to the provisions of these regulations shall be a public nuisance subject to injunction and abatement.
	§2.5 The remedies provided herein shall be cumulative and not exclusive.
	§2.6 The City Manager (or in his/her absence the Mayor), or his/her designee shall be responsible for the enforcement of the provisions of these regulations.
	§2.7 In the event that any fee or charge is not paid within the time period specified by the City, the City shall retain the right to seek enforcement and/or collection in court, at the expense of the responsible party. Expenses shall be recoverable b...

	Article 3 Applicability
	§3.1 Signs Regulated. Any alteration to the structure, area, height, or placement of an existing regulated sign, shall require that the existing sign be modified to comply with all applicable provisions of this Ordinance. The requirements of this Ordi...
	3.1.1 Art and Decorations. A display designed and intended as a decorative or ornamental feature that does not contain advertising text or identifying symbols such as numbers, address, registered trademarks, or registered logos.
	3.1.2 Government and Required Signs. Signs required and/or installed by a Federal or State governmental agency, the City, County, or local agency, including but not limited to the following. Such signs shall not require a Design Review Use Permit.
	3.1.2.1 Emergency and warning signs necessary for public safety or homeland security;
	3.1.2.2 Traffic control, directional, and street name signs erected and maintained by an authorized public agency;
	3.1.2.3 Signs showing the location of public facilities (e.g., civic buildings and facilities, public telephones, restrooms, and underground utilities);
	3.1.2.4 Any sign, posting, public notice, or similar sign placed by or required by a governmental agency in carrying out its responsibility to protect public health, safety, and general welfare;
	3.1.2.5 Notices, licenses, permits, and other signs required by law; and
	3.1.2.6 Service station fuel price signs no larger than required by State law.

	3.1.3 Historical Signs. An existing sign shown by an applicant to be older than 50 years or found to be of historical significance by the Planning Commission is exempt from the provisions of this Ordinance. The applicant for this exemption shall incur...
	3.1.4 Sign Content. The provisions of this Ordinance do not regulate the message content of signs (sign copy), regardless of whether the message content is commercial or noncommercial. Nothing contained in this Ordinance is intended to favor commercia...
	3.1.5 Sign Location. Signs located on the interior of buildings or structures are not regulated by this Ordinance, unless such signs are located within five feet of a street facing window and oriented towards the window and not primarily designed for ...


	Article 4 Definitions
	§4.1 ABANDONED OR OBSOLETE SIGN:  A sign that no longer advertises a business, lessor, owner, product, service or activity on the premises where the sign is displayed.
	§4.2 AFFILIATION SIGN:  A sign identifying membership in an association or network.
	§4.3 ANIMATED SIGN:   A sign which uses movement, blinking, flashing, change or fluctuation of lighting intensity, color, motion or sense of motion, or sound to depict action or create a special effect, including programmable displays and rotating sig...
	§4.4 AWNING, CANOPY OR MARQUEE SIGN:  A sign displayed on or attached flat against the surface or surfaces of an awning, canopy, or marquee.
	§4.5 BANNER, FLAG OR PENNANT:   Cloth, bunting, plastic, paper, or similar non-rigid material used for advertising purposes attached to a structure, staff, pole, line, framing, or vehicle, not including official flags of the United States, the State o...
	§4.6 BILLBOARD:  Any freestanding off-site outdoor advertising sign and or panel independent of a building to attract the attention of those passing by.
	§4.7 BULLETIN BOARD: A permanent sign with posted messages that relay community information.
	§4.8 CITY MANAGER: The City Manager for the City of Ferndale.
	§4.9 CITY STAFF:  The City Manager for the City of Ferndale or his/her designee.
	§4.10 CONSTRUCTION SIGN:  A sign advertising or identifying the persons or firms associated with a construction or development project.
	§4.11 COPY: The graphic content of a sign surface in either permanent or removable letters, images, symbols, figures or message format.
	§4.12 DERELICT SIGN:  A sign that is dilapidated or in such condition as to create a hazard or nuisance, or to be unsafe or fail to comply with the applicable Building or Electrical Codes.
	§4.13 DESIGN CONTROL COMBINING ZONE: “Design Control Combining Zone” is defined in Article VI, §6.05 of Zoning Ordinance 02-02.
	§4.14 DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE: That Committee which is appointed pursuant to Article VI, §6.05.4 of Zoning Ordinance 02-02.
	§4.15 DESIGN REVIEW USE PERMIT: Shall mean those permits issued pursuant to Article VI, §6.05.4 of Zoning Ordinance 02-02.
	§4.16 DIRECTIONAL SIGN:   A sign designed and erected solely for the purpose of directing those passing by.
	§4.17 FLASHING SIGN:  A sign having a conspicuous and intermittent variation in lighting; a sign incorporating intermittent electrical impulses from a source of light or a light revolving in a manner which creates the illusion of flashing.
	§4.18 FREESTANDING SIGN:  A sign permanently attached to the ground which is supported by one or more uprights, braces, poles or other similar structural components that is not attached to a building or buildings, nor has a building as its primary str...
	§4.19 GARAGE AND YARD SALE SIGNS:  A sign with a message advertising the resale of personal property.
	§4.20 GASOLINE PRICE SIGN:  A sign that announces the price of fuel to those passing by.
	§4.21 HISTORIC SIGNIFICANCE PLAQUE:  A sign announcing the location of a feature, place or building found to be historically significant and authorized or erected by a state or nationally recognized historical preservation society, the City Council, o...
	§4.22 ILLUMINATED SIGN: A sign with an artificial light source for the purpose of lighting the sign.
	4.22.1 INDIRECTLY ILLUMINATED SIGN:  A sign whose light source is exterior to the sign and which casts light onto the sign from some distance.
	4.22.2 INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED SIGN:  A sign that houses an internal lighting system.

	§4.23 INCIDENTAL SIGN: A small sign, emblem, or decal providing only information to those passing by regarding aspects of service available on the premises, such as credit cards accepted or open hours.
	§4.24 INFLATABLE SIGN:  Any sign that is or can be enlarged with three cubic feet or more of air, liquid or gas.
	§4.25 LOGO: An established identifying trademark or symbol of an organization, business or business entity.
	§4.26 MOVING SIGN: Any sign or device which has any visible moving part, visible revolving part, or visible mechanical movement, including wind-driven signs but not including banners, flags, or pennants.
	§4.27 MULTI-FACED SIGN:  A sign that has two or more sign faces.
	§4.28 MURAL:  A display painted directly on a wall which is designed and intended as a decorative or ornamental feature. Murals do not contain advertising text, numbers, address, registered trademarks, or registered logos. A mural is generally not con...
	§4.29 NAMEPLATE: An on-site wall sign which gives only the name of the building or the name, contact information, address and/or occupation of an occupant or group of occupants.
	§4.30 OFF-SITE SIGN:  A sign which directs attention to a business, product, service, industry or other activity not sold, offered or conducted on the premises upon which the sign is located.
	§4.31 ON-SITE SIGN:  A sign which directs attention to a business, product, service, industry or other activity sold, offered or conducted on the premises upon which the sign is located.
	§4.32 OPINION SIGN:  A temporary sign that directly relates to a candidate for public office or to a ballot issue, proposition, or a party in an election conducted by a governmental entity or a sign expressing political, social, religious, or other id...
	§4.33 PORTABLE SIGN:  A sign located on or off a business premises which is intended to be moved or capable of being moved, whether or not on a motor vehicle, wheels or other special supports, including, but not limited to, "A-frame" type signs, placa...
	§4.34 PRODUCT SIGN: A sign using logos, icons, shapes, or symbols to inform the public that a particular product or brand is sold at that location.
	§4.35 PROJECTING SIGN:  A sign other than a wall sign that is suspended from, attached to, or projects more than 12 inches from a building face or wall or from a structure whose primary purpose is other than the support of the sign.
	§4.36 REAL ESTATE SIGN:  A temporary sign announcing the offer to build on, sell, lease or rent real property and identifying the entity handling such sale, lease or rental. Includes signs announcing an open house for the property.
	§4.37 ROOF SIGN:  A sign that is mounted on the roof of a building or which is wholly dependent upon a building for support and which projects above the point of a building with a flat roof, the eave line of a building with a gambrel, gable or hip roof .
	§4.38 SANDWICH BOARD SIGN:  A temporary portable A-Frame sign placed outside a business.
	§4.39 SEASONAL SIGNS AND DECORATIONS:  Temporary seasonal, holiday and cultural observance decorations which do not include commercial advertising messages.
	§4.40 SIGN: Any device, structure, fixture, or placard displaying graphics, symbols, and/or written copy for the primary purpose of communicating with the public, when such image is visible from any public right-of-way, except the following:
	4.40.1 Personal appearance. Items or devices of personal apparel, decoration or appearance, including tattoos, makeup, wigs, costumes, masks, etc.;
	4.40.2 Manufacturers’ marks. Marks on tangible products, which identify the maker, seller, provider or product, and which customarily remain attached to the product even after sale;
	4.40.3 Mass transit graphics. Graphic images mounted on duly licensed mass transit vehicles that legally pass through the City;
	4.40.4 Vehicle and vessel insignia. On street legal vehicles and properly licensed watercraft: license plates, license plate frames, registration insignia, non-commercial messages, messages relating to the business of which the vehicle or vessel is an...
	4.40.5 Grave stones and grave markers;
	4.40.6 News racks and newsstands;
	4.40.7 Shopping carts, golf carts, and horse drawn carriages; and
	4.40.8 Vending machines which do not display off-site commercial messages or general advertising messages.

	§4.41 SPECIAL EVENT SIGN: A temporary sign used to announce community wide events which are not conducted in connection with the operation of a commercial enterprise.
	§4.42 STREET ADDRESS:   Any series of numbers and/or letters used for describing the location of a building, apartment, or other structure or a plot of land on a street.
	§4.43 SUBDIVISION SIGN:  A temporary sign advertising a subdivision and providing travel directions to properties therein offered for sale or lease.
	§4.44 TEMPORARY SIGN:  A sign intended to display either commercial or noncommercial messages of a transitory or temporary nature.
	§4.45 TIME AND/OR TEMPERATURE SIGN:  Any sign or portion of a sign which displays only the current time and/or temperature that carries no other copy.
	§4.46 WALL SIGN:  A sign which is attached to or painted on the exterior wall of a structure with the display surface of the sign approximately parallel to the building wall.
	§4.47 WIND-DRIVEN SIGN:  A sign that moves freely in the wind.
	§4.48 WINDOW SIGN:  A sign which is attached to or painted on a window or door.
	§4.49 ZONE: A distinct and separate district within which certain uniform regulations and requirements or combinations thereof apply under the provisions of Ordinance 02-02.

	Article 5 Sign Permits
	§5.1 Sign Permit Required:  No sign shall be constructed, installed, or modified, unless a sign permit is first obtained in compliance with this Section, or the sign is allowed without a sign permit by Article 6 (Exemptions from Sign Permit Requiremen...
	5.1.1 Criteria for Approval:  No sign permit shall be approved for an existing or proposed sign unless the sign is in compliance with all applicable requirements of this Ordinance.
	5.1.2 Effect of Approval:  An approved sign shall be installed and maintained only in compliance with its sign permit.
	5.1.3 Design Review Use Permit:  A proposed sign may require a Design Review Use Permit in addition to a sign permit.
	5.1.4 Building Permit:  A proposed sign may require a Building Permit in addition to a sign permit.

	§5.2 Review Authority.
	5.2.1 City Staff: City Staff, as directed by the City Manager, shall review and decide sign permit applications in compliance with the findings required by §5.4 (Findings for approval), except as provided by §5.2.2. City Staff may, in its sole discret...
	5.2.2 Design Review: In addition to signs within the Design Control Combining Zone, a Design Review Use Permit as provided for by Ordinance 02-02 shall be required for:
	5.2.2.1 Sign permit applications in any zone proposing signs over 20 square feet in area, or proposing a sign that will increase the total sign area on a site to over 20 square feet; and
	5.2.2.2 All signs for nonresidential uses in residential zones unless exempt from sign permit requirements per Article 6.

	5.2.3 Conditions of Approval:  The review authority may require conditions of approval that it determines are necessary to achieve the purpose, intent, and objectives of this Ordinance.

	§5.3 Sign Permit Procedures.
	5.3.1 Application Requirements:  Each application shall include all of the following:
	5.3.1.1 A site plan and building elevations, drawn to scale, accurately showing the proposed location of each sign in relation to other signs on the site and building, including each present and planned sign of any type, whether or not requiring a per...
	5.3.1.2 Plans for the sign, drawn to scale, accurately detailing the design and proposed appearance of the sign, including mounting and lighting details;
	5.3.1.3 A complete color scheme for the sign;
	5.3.1.4 Sufficient other details of the proposed sign to show that it complies with the provisions of this Ordinance;
	5.3.1.5 Written permission from the property owner for the placement of the proposed sign on the site;
	5.3.1.6 Computation of the total sign area, the area of each individual sign, the height of each sign, and the total number of existing and proposed signs on the parcel; and
	5.3.1.7 Other information as required by the review authority.


	§5.4 Findings for Approval. The approval of a sign permit shall require that the review authority make the following findings, as applicable:
	5.4.1 The proposed sign complies with the standards of this Ordinance and is in substantial conformance with the design criteria in §8.7 of this Ordinance.

	§5.5 Expiration and Extension of Sign Permit or Approval.
	5.5.1 Sign permit and sign plan approval shall expire 12 months from the date of approval unless the sign has been erected or a different expiration date is stipulated at the time of approval. Before the expiration of a sign permit, the applicant may ...
	5.5.2 The expiration date of the sign permit shall be automatically extended to concur with the expiration date of the companion Building Permit or other applicable permits.

	§5.6 Administrative Appeals.
	5.6.1 Administrative decisions, including determinations relative to application completeness, may be appealed to the City Council within 10 calendar days of City Staff’s determination, or, where referred by City Staff to the Design Review Committee f...


	Article 6 Exemptions from Sign Permit Requirements
	§6.1 Nonstructural Modifications and Maintenance. Nonstructural modifications and maintenance of conforming signs, including modifications to sign copy or changes to the face or copy of changeable copy signs;
	§6.2 Permanent Signs.
	6.2.1 Historic Significance Plaque and Nameplate. Nameplates, building cornerstones when cut or carved into a masonry surface or when made of noncombustible material and made an integral part of the building or structure, and historic plaques erected ...
	6.2.1.1 Each building or structure shall bear only one such sign;
	6.2.1.2 Nameplates shall not exceed two square feet in area;
	6.2.1.3 Historic Significance Plaques shall not exceed four square feet in area;
	6.2.1.4 Signs shall be constructed of historically significant and durable materials; and
	6.2.1.5 The sign shall not be illuminated.

	6.2.2 Incidental and Affiliation. Incidental and Affiliation signs are allowed without a sign permit provided that the signs do not exceed one square foot each in area and are attached to a window pane, transom or door. These signs shall not be illumi...
	6.2.3 Official Flags. Flags of national, State, or local governments, fraternal, or public service agencies, provided:
	6.2.3.1 Only one flag pole is permitted per parcel;
	6.2.3.2 A maximum of three flags shall be flown on one pole;
	6.2.3.3 The length of the flag shall not exceed one-third the height of the flag pole;
	6.2.3.4 The height to width ratio of the flag shall not exceed 1:1;
	6.2.3.5 The height of the flag pole shall not exceed 20 feet within a residential zone, and 30 feet within a nonresidential zone; and
	6.2.3.6 No private flag pole shall be located within a public right-of-way or required setback.

	6.2.4 Parking Information Signs. Signs identifying accessible parking spaces, tenant parking, customer parking only, etc., and/or noting that unauthorized vehicles may be towed or any other parking restriction, provided that:
	6.2.4.1 Such signs shall not be illuminated;
	6.2.4.2 A maximum of four signs shall be permitted per parcel;
	6.2.4.3 Each sign shall pertain to parking space(s) located on private property;
	6.2.4.4 No such sign shall exceed two square feet in area; and
	6.2.4.5 Such signs shall be exempt from Design Review.

	6.2.5 “No Trespassing” or similar signs regulating the use of property, provided the signs  do not exceed two square feet or a total aggregate area of four square feet.
	6.2.6 Street Address. As required by the California Building Code, all buildings must have street address numbers, building numbers or building identification placed in a position that is plainly legible and visible from the street or road fronting th...
	6.2.6.1 The address sign shall meet the requirements of the adopted California Building Code.
	6.2.6.2 The address numbers shall:
	6.2.6.2.1 Contrast with their background;
	6.2.6.2.2 Be Arabic numbers and/or alphabetical letters;
	6.2.6.2.3 Not exceed 12 inches in height; and
	6.2.6.2.4 Shall not be smaller than four inches in height nor have a stroke of less than one-half inch.

	6.2.6.3 Where access is by means of a private road and the building address cannot be viewed from the public way, a monument, pole, or other sign or means shall be used to identify the structure.

	6.2.7 Time and Temperature Signs and Barber Poles not exceeding 10 square feet in area.
	6.2.8 Window Signs. In all zones except residential zones, (R- zones), window signs in compliance with §10.10 of this Ordinance are allowed without a sign permit and are exempt from design review provided the signs do not exceed two square feet per si...

	§6.3 Temporary Signs. The following do not require a sign permit or Design Review:
	6.3.1 Banners and Pennants. Banners or pennants may be used for a period not to exceed 30 days per year after submitting a signed and dated notice to City Hall including dates of use, business name and address, and applicant name and contact informati...
	6.3.2 Construction Signs. Construction signs, provided that the signs:
	6.3.2.1 Are erected no sooner than the date of Building Permit issuance and are removed within 30 days of Building Permit finalization;
	6.3.2.2 Shall not exceed a total aggregate area of ten square feet for individual lots or 32 square feet for a subdivision frontage. Sign height shall not exceed six feet for a single lot or eight feet for a subdivision;
	6.3.2.3 Shall be placed at minimum ten feet from any public right-of-way or 15 feet of any intersection;
	6.3.2.4 One such sign shall be allowed per public entrance to the site or subdivision;
	6.3.2.5 Shall not advertise for employment or other services; and
	6.3.2.6 Shall not be illuminated.

	6.3.3 Garage and Yard Sale Signs. Garage and yard sale signs, provided that the signs:
	6.3.3.1 Shall not exceed five square feet in area and 48 inches in height;
	6.3.3.2 Shall not be illuminated;
	6.3.3.3 Shall not be placed on public property;
	6.3.3.4 No more than four off-site and one on-site sign shall be posted; and
	6.3.3.5  Garage and yard sale signs shall be allowed for up to 48 hours before and after the sale.

	6.3.4 Opinion and Special Event Signs. Opinion or special event signs shall not be prohibited by development restrictions (i.e., CC&R’s), provided that the signs:
	6.3.4.1 Shall not be illuminated;
	6.3.4.2 Shall be placed on private property with the property owner's consent;
	6.3.4.3 Shall not exceed a total aggregate area of 12 square feet on a site within a residential zone, and 32 square feet within a nonresidential zone;
	6.3.4.4 Shall not be placed within 15 feet of a fire hydrant, street sign, or traffic signal, or interfere with, confuse, obstruct, or mislead traffic; and
	6.3.4.5 Shall be placed no more than 60 120 days prior to the event or, if the event constitutes a regular or special election, upon official announcement of candidacy for a public office or announcement of a ballot initiative/proposition, and are rem...

	6.3.5 Real Estate Signs. Real estate signs in compliance with California Civil Code §713, subject to the following requirements:
	6.3.5.1 All Zones. Real estate signs shall not be illuminated and shall be removed upon sale or rental of the property and/or close of escrow.
	6.3.5.2 Commercial Zones. A site within a commercial zone (C- zone) shall be allowed one on-site freestanding real estate sign and one off-site freestanding real estate sign for each parcel frontage. Signs shall not exceed 32 square feet, with a maxim...
	6.3.5.3 Residential Zones. A site within a residential zone (R- zone) shall be allowed one on-site freestanding real estate sign and one off-site freestanding real estate sign for each parcel frontage. Signs shall not exceed six square feet, with a ma...

	6.3.6 Seasonal Signs and Decorations.  Seasonal signs and decorations provided the signs are erected no sooner than 45 calendar days prior to the holiday and removed within 10 days following the holiday.


	Article 7 Prohibited Signs
	§7.1 Abandoned or derelict signs, sign structures or empty frames;
	§7.2 Animated and moving signs, including electronic message display signs, and variable intensity, blinking, or flashing signs, exposed illumination exceeding 15 watts or 1000 lumens, the use of flame as illumination or as a design feature, or signs ...
	§7.3 Signs that emit odor, noise, smoke, flame or visible matter other than light;
	§7.4 A sign attached to or suspended from a boat, vehicle, or other movable object that is parked within a public right-of-way, or located on private property but visible from a public right-of-way; except a sign painted directly upon, magnetically af...
	§7.5 Signs containing obscene matter in violation of California Penal Code §311 et seq.;
	§7.6 Signs supported in whole or in part by cables or guy wires;
	§7.7 Billboards;
	§7.8 Inflatable signs;
	§7.9 Roof Signs;
	§7.10 Internally illuminated signs except product signs;
	§7.11 Signs that simulate in color, size, or design, any traffic control sign or signal, or that make use of words, symbols, or characters in a manner that interferes with, misleads, or confuses pedestrian or vehicular traffic, or creates a safety haz...
	§7.12 Any sign not established and maintained in compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws in effect at the time of original installation; and
	§7.13 Temporary and portable signs, except as specifically allowed elsewhere in this Ordinance.

	Article 8 General Requirements for All Signs
	§8.1 Sign Height Measurement. The height of a sign shall be computed as the vertical distance from the lowest point of the base of the sign at normal grade, to the top of the highest attached component of the sign.
	8.1.1 Grade. Normal grade shall be construed to be the lower of either the:
	8.1.1.1 Existing grade before construction; or
	8.1.1.2 Newly established grade after construction, exclusive of any berming, filling, mounding, or excavating solely for the purpose of locating the sign.

	8.1.2 Where Normal Grade Cannot be Determined. If normal grade cannot reasonably be determined, sign height shall be computed on the assumptions that the elevation of the normal grade at the base of the sign is equal to the elevation of the nearest po...

	§8.2 Sign Height Limits. Sign height shall not exceed the limit established for the applicable zone by Article 9 (Sign Standards by Zone), or as required for a specific sign type by Article 10 (Standards for Specific Sign Types). Where maximum height ...
	§8.3 Sign Area Measurement. The measurement of sign area to determine compliance with the sign area limitations of this Ordinance shall occur as follows.
	8.3.1 Surface Area. The surface area of a sign shall be calculated by enclosing the extreme limits of all framing, emblem, logo, representation, writing, or other display within a single continuous perimeter composed of squares or rectangles with no m...
	8.3.2 Sign Structure. Supporting bracing or framework that is clearly incidental to the display itself shall not be computed as sign area.
	8.3.3 Multi-faced Signs. The sign area for a sign with more than one face shall include only the area of the largest side.
	8.3.4 Three-dimensional Objects. Where a sign consists of one or more three-dimensional objects (e.g., balls, cubes, clusters of objects, sculpture, or statue-like trademarks), the sign area shall be measured as their maximum projection upon a vertica...

	§8.4 Sign Area and Quantity Limits. Sign area and quantity shall not exceed the limit established for the applicable zone by Article 9 (Sign Standards by Zone), or as required for a specific sign type by Article 10 (Standards for Specific Sign Types)....
	8.4.1 Frontage. In the case of a building with frontage on more than one public way, each frontage shall be considered separately. For aggregate sign area, the total allowed per frontage may be distributed between the frontages (a building may use its...
	8.4.2 Unless otherwise specified in this Ordinance, signs exempt from permit requirements per Article 6 and Temporary signs per §10.8 of this Ordinance shall not be counted toward the aggregate area and quantity limit.
	8.4.3 Window signs shall not be counted toward aggregate area and quantity limits.
	8.4.4 A maximum of three permanent signs, one of which may be multi-faced, shall be allowed per business.
	8.4.5 A building with multiple businesses served by an interior mall shall be limited to one sign at each building entry identifying the building name and a directory not to exceed one square foot per business listed within the building. Individual bu...
	8.4.6 On any single parcel, temporary signs not including banners or pennants shall not exceed an aggregate area of 12 square feet within a residential zone or 32 square feet within a nonresidential zone.

	§8.5 Location Requirements. Each sign location shall meet the following requirements, and all other applicable provisions of this Ordinance.
	8.5.1 Each sign shall be located on the same site as the subject of the sign, except as otherwise allowed in this Ordinance;
	8.5.2 Each sign location shall comply with setback requirements of the applicable zone, except where a different requirement is established in this Ordinance;
	8.5.3 All signs shall comply with Americans with Disabilities Act restrictions for access;
	8.5.4 No sign shall be placed so as to interfere with the operation of or obscure a door, fire escape, stairway, standpipe, window, or building design element including a cornice or other decorative detail;
	8.5.5 Signs placed on private property shall have written permission from the property owner;
	8.5.6 No sign shall be marked on or affixed to a rock, tree, or other natural landscape feature;
	8.5.7 No sign shall be placed within 15 feet of a fire hydrant, on utility poles, traffic control signs or in the public right-of-way, except as allowed by this ordinance or government authority; and
	8.5.8 No sign shall be placed where it will interfere with visibility or safety.

	§8.6 Signs Placed Within the Public Right-of-Way.
	8.6.1 No sign shall be allowed in the public right-of-way, including sidewalks, except for:
	8.6.1.1 Signs with an encroachment permit from the appropriate agency.
	8.6.1.2 Signs on structures located within the right-of-way which by tradition or designation are used for the purpose of communication by the general public. Such structures shall include kiosks, bulletin boards, benches upon which advertisement is a...
	8.6.1.3 Public signs erected by or on behalf of a governmental agency to convey public information, identify public property, post legal notices, or direct or regulate pedestrian or vehicular traffic;
	8.6.1.4 Bus stop signs installed by a public transit company;
	8.6.1.5 Informational signs of a public utility regarding lines, pipes, poles, or other facilities; or
	8.6.1.6 Emergency warning signs installed by a governmental agency, public utility company, or contractor doing authorized work within the public right-of-way.

	8.6.2 Any sign installed or placed within the public right-of-way other than in compliance with this Section shall be forfeited to the public and be subject to confiscation.
	8.6.3 In addition to other remedies identified in Article 13 (Abatement and Removal), the City shall have the right to recover from the owner, or person placing the sign, the full costs related to the removal and disposal of any sign not complying wit...

	§8.7 Design Criteria. The following design criteria shall be used in reviewing the design of individual signs. Substantial conformance with each of the following design criteria shall be required before a sign permit can be approved.
	8.7.1 Design and Construction.
	8.7.1.1 A proposed permanent sign should be designed by a professional (e.g., architect, building designer, landscape architect, interior designer, or one whose principal business is the design, manufacture, or sale of signs), or others who are capabl...
	8.7.1.2 Signs that could potentially create a public hazard shall require plans signed by an engineer prior to permit approval, and may require inspection by the City Building Inspector.

	8.7.2 Materials and Structure.
	8.7.2.1 Materials for permanent signs shall be durable and capable of withstanding weathering over the life of the sign with reasonable maintenance.
	8.7.2.2 The size of the structural members (e.g. columns, crossbeams, and braces) shall be proportional to the sign panel they are supporting. In general, fewer larger supporting members are preferable to many smaller supports.
	8.7.2.3 Materials for signs within the Design Control Combining Zone shall be consistent in appearance to materials of surrounding historic structures.

	8.7.3 Color. Colors on signs and structural members should be harmonious with one another and relate to the dominant colors of the other structures on the site. Contrasting colors may be used if the overall effect of the sign is still compatible with ...

	§8.8 Copy and Typeface Guidelines. The City does not regulate the message content (copy) of signs; however, the basic principles of copy design and layout can enhance the readability and attractiveness of signs. Copy design and layout consistent with ...
	8.8.1 For business signs, copy should relate only to the name and/or nature of the business or commercial center.
	8.8.2 Permanent signs that advertise continuous sales, special prices, make claims, or include phone numbers, etc. should be avoided.
	8.8.3 Information should be conveyed briefly or by logo, symbol, or other graphic manner. The intent should be to increase the readability of the sign and thereby enhance the identity of the business.

	§8.9 Lighting. Sign lighting shall be designed to minimize light and glare on surrounding rights-of-way and properties. Illuminated signs are allowed provided they comply with all other provisions of this Ordinance, including the following:
	8.9.1 External light sources shall be directed and shielded so that they do not produce glare on any object other than the sign. A maximum of 15 watts or 1000 lumens is allowed;
	8.9.2 Lighting from any sign shall not exceed one half (0.5) lumen per square foot measured at the nearest property line.Lighting shall not be of an intensity or brightness that will interfere with the reasonable enjoyment of residential properties;
	8.9.3 Lighting shall not blink, flash, flutter, or change intensity, brightness, or color;
	8.9.4 The use of mirrors or highly reflective surfaces that direct or reflect natural or artificial light onto a public right-of-way or adjoining property shall be prohibited;
	8.9.5 Neither the direct nor reflected light from primary light sources shall create hazards for pedestrians or operators of motor vehicles; and
	8.9.6 Indirect light sources shall utilize hard-wired fluorescent, LED, or compact fluorescent lamps, or other lighting technology that is of equal or greater energy efficiency. Incandescent, xenon, metal halide, mercury vapor, and sodium vapor lamps ...

	§8.10 Sign Maintenance.
	8.10.1 Each sign and supporting hardware, including temporary signs, shall be maintained in good repair and functioning properly at all times.
	8.10.2 Any repair to a sign shall be of equal or better in the quality of materials and design as the original sign.
	8.10.3 A sign that is not properly maintained and is dilapidated shall be deemed a public nuisance, and may be abated in compliance with the Nuisance Ordinance.
	8.10.4 When an existing sign is removed or replaced, all brackets, poles, and other supports that are no longer required shall be removed, and unpainted areas shall be painted to match the adjacent portion of the structure.


	Article 9 Sign Standards by Zone
	Article 10 Standards for Specific Sign Types
	§10.1 Awning, Canopy or Marquee Signs. These signs are limited to first or second story and shall not project beyond the face of the awning, canopy, or marquee.
	§10.2 Bulletin Board Signs. One bulletin board may be permitted on the site of an institution, subject to the following;
	10.2.1 Sign shall not exceed 20 square feet and not more than ten feet in height; and
	10.2.2 Sign content must relate to an activity conducted at or sponsored by the institution.

	§10.3 Directional Signs. Directional signs shall not be used for off-site advertising or advertising for hire and shall comply with all the following requirements:
	10.3.1 Content. Directional signs shall not contain advertising copy. Business name or logo shall not exceed 20 percent of the total sign area.
	10.3.2 Sign Area. Directional signs may not exceed an area of six square feet or height of 48 inches.
	10.3.3 Off-site Directional Signs. An off-site directional sign may be approved only for sites where the review authority determines that a property owner has considered all permanent signs allowed by this Ordinance, and site visibility still remains ...
	10.3.3.1 A maximum of two such signs, limited one per street, shall be allowed per use.
	10.3.3.2 Such signs shall be placed only on private property.
	10.3.3.3 Sign content shall be limited to name and directional arrow.

	10.3.4 On-site Directional Signs. No more than two shall be permitted per public road entrance. Entities sharing an access may be permitted one on-site directional sign each along the access road.

	§10.4 Freestanding Signs.
	10.4.1 Location Requirements. A freestanding sign may be located within a required front or street side setback provided that it complies with the vision clearance area requirements of Ordinance 02-02 §7.08.1.
	10.4.2 Height Limit. A freestanding sign shall not exceed a height of eight feet.
	10.4.3 Sign Area. Sign area shall not exceed 24 square feet, with base structure area not exceeding 3/4 of the sign area.
	10.4.4 Other Requirements.
	10.4.4.1 The bottom edge of a freestanding sign shall be no more than three feet above ground level.
	10.4.4.2 Freestanding signs without a solid base shall be either hung from a bar cantilevered off one post or supported by two wood, metal, or granite posts that are generally square in cross section.


	§10.5 Product Signs. Businesses may be permitted a maximum of three Product signs, with a maximum of two per window, provided the signs:
	10.5.1 Shall be located in the building interior but not on doors or second story windows;
	10.5.2 Shall not exceed four square feet; and
	10.5.3 May be illuminated only during business hours.

	§10.6 Projecting Signs.
	10.6.1 Shall project perpendicularly from the building to which they are mounted;
	10.6.2 Shall have a ground clearance of no less than eight feet from the bottom of the sign to the finished grade below;
	10.6.3 Shall project no more than 48 inches from the building face nor closer than 12 inches to the vertical plane of the street curb line;
	10.6.4 Shall not exceed an area of 33nine square feet individually or 18 66 square feet per building in aggregate;
	10.6.5 Shall require an Encroachment Permit if projecting over a public right-of-way;
	10.6.6 Shall not extend higher than the lesser of 14 feet, eave height, parapet height, or sill height of a second floor window;
	10.6.7 Shall not be permitted on the same frontage as a freestanding sign; and
	10.6.8 Creative shapes, three-dimensional signs, and signs using icons, shapes, symbols uniquely suited to the business are encouraged.

	§10.7 Sandwich Board Signs. These signs may be permitted annually when necessary to direct traffic to a location and are not covered by the restrictions in §10.3 (Directional Signs). These signs are highly discouraged, but may be permitted subject to ...
	10.7.1 Such signs must be removed daily at the close of normal business hours;
	10.7.2 A renewal application for such signs shall be submitted with annual business license renewal; and
	10.7.3 A maximum of one such sign, not to exceed six square feet in area and 48 inches in height, may be allowed per business.

	§10.8 Temporary Signs. Temporary signs are allowed in all zones subject to the following:
	10.8.1 Banners and Pennants. A licensed business may be permitted to use a banner or pennants subject to the following requirements (see also Article 6 for exemption):
	10.8.1.1 The use of a banner or pennants may be allowed for up to 120 days;
	10.8.1.2 Horizontally oriented banners or pennants shall have a maximum height of four feet and a maximum length of 50 feet. Vertically oriented banners shall have a maximum size as determined by the Design Review Committee.
	10.8.1.3 The application for a sign permit for banners or pennants shall include the dates proposed by the applicant for scheduled use.

	10.8.2 Subdivision Signs. Subdivision signs may be allowed subject to the following:
	10.8.2.1 A maximum of two off-site signs per subdivision may be located on private property;
	10.8.2.2 One on-site sign per street frontage, with a maximum of two separated by a minimum of 75 feet, may be located within a subdivision;
	10.8.2.3 The area of each sign shall not exceed 24 square feet for an on-site sign and 12 square feet for an off-site sign;
	10.8.2.4 The height of each sign shall not exceed six feet;
	10.8.2.5 The signs shall not be illuminated; and
	10.8.2.6 The signs may be displayed only 12 months following recordation of the final map, or until all of the units have been sold, whichever occurs first.


	§10.9 Wall Signs.
	10.9.1 A maximum of two wall signs per building frontage shall be permitted.
	10.9.2 Wall signs shall not exceed the lesser of 32 60 square feet or 0.250.75 square feet for each foot of frontage plus 0.1250.25 square feet for each foot of building façade height.
	10.9.3 The aggregate area of all wall signs on a building shall not exceed 80 175 square feet.
	10.9.4 Wall signs shall not project more than six inches from the wall.

	§10.10 Window Signs.
	10.10.1 Maximum Sign Area. Window signs shall not exceed 24 square feet individually or an aggregate area of 25 percent of the total window area. Window panels separated by muntins or mullions shall be considered as one continuous window area.
	10.10.2 Sign Location. Signs shall be allowed only on windows located on the ground level and second story of a structure frontage.
	10.10.3 Second Story Window Signs. The number of second story window signs shall not exceed 50 percent of the number of second story windows fronting on the same street (i.e., a building with six windows on a side may have three of those windows with ...


	Article 11 Exceptions
	Article 12 Nonconforming Signs
	§12.1 General Requirements. A nonconforming sign shall not be:
	12.1.1 Changed to another nonconforming sign with a greater degree of nonconformity;
	12.1.2 Structurally altered;
	12.1.3 Reestablished after on-premises business operations are discontinued for six months; or
	12.1.4 Reestablished after damage or destruction to more than 50 percent of the replacement cost of the sign or components as determined by the Building Official.

	§12.2 Maintenance and Changes. Nonstructural modifications and maintenance (e.g., painting, rust removal) of nonconforming signs are allowed without a sign permit. Changes shall not exceed 50 percent of the replacement cost as determined by the Buildi...

	Article 13 Abatement and Removal
	Article 14 Amendment
	Article 15 Enactment
	§15.1 Severability. If any section, sub-section, paragraph, sentence, or word of this ordinance shall be held to be invalid, either on its face or as applied, the invalidity of such provision shall not affect the other sections, sub-sections, paragrap...
	§15.2 Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective 30 days after the date of its enactment.



	11 7 13 CC -  Ordinance 2013-03 Medical Marijuana 2nd reading.pdf
	Ordinance 2013-03 Medical Marijuana Ordinance.pdf
	Article 1. Short Title, Findings, and Purpose
	§1.1 Short Title. This Ordinance shall be known and cited as the “Medical Marijuana Dispensary and Cultivation Ordinance” (hereinafter this “Ordinance”).
	§1.2 Findings.
	1.2.1 The City Council of the City of Ferndale, based on evidence presented to it in the proceedings leading to the adoption of this Ordinance hereby finds that the cultivation, processing and distribution of medical cannabis has the potential to caus...
	1.2.2 The City Council of the City of Ferndale also acknowledges that the voters of the State of California have provided a criminal defense to the cultivation, possession and use of cannabis for medical purposes under the Compassionate Use Act, but t...

	§1.3 Purpose. The purpose and intent of this Ordinance is to regulate the cultivation and dispensing of medical marijuana in a manner that protects the health, safety and welfare of the community. This Ordinance is not intended to interfere with a pat...

	Article 2. Statutory Authority
	§2.1 The statutory authority for this Ordinance is California Health and Safety Code Section  §11362.5 et seq., and California law recognizing the authority of municipalities to regulate  land uses within its jurisdiction in order to protect the healt...

	Article 3. Applicability
	§3.1 The provisions adopted in this Ordinance shall not be exclusive but shall be cumulative and complementary to any other provisions of City of Ferndale regulations and State and Federal laws. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be read, interpreted or ...
	§3.2 No part of this Ordinance shall be deemed to conflict with federal law as contained in the Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. Section 800 et seq., nor to otherwise permit any activity that is prohibited under that Act or any other local, state ...
	§3.3 Nothing in this Ordinance is intended, nor shall it be construed, to burden any defense to criminal prosecution otherwise afforded by California law.
	§3.4 Nothing in this Ordinance is intended, nor shall it be construed, to preclude a landlord from limiting or prohibiting cannabis cultivation, smoking or other related activities by tenants.
	§3.5 Nothing in this Ordinance is intended, nor shall it be construed, to exempt any cannabis related activity from any and all applicable local and state construction, electrical, plumbing, land use, or any other building or land use standards or per...
	§3.6 Nothing is this Ordinance is intended, nor shall it be construed, to make legal any cultivation, transportation, sale, or other use of cannabis that is otherwise prohibited under California law.
	§3.7 All cultivation, processing and distribution of medical cannabis within city limits shall be subject to the provisions of this Ordinance and its subparts, regardless if the cultivation, processing or distribution existed or occurred prior to adop...

	Article 4. Administration and Enforcement
	§4.1 The Chief of Police of the City of Ferndale, or his/her designee, shall be responsible for the administration and enforcement of the provisions of this Ordinance.
	§4.2 Any violation of this Ordinance is subject to administrative, civil, or criminal penalties, in addition to being subject to other remedies provided by law, including but not limited to, injunctive relief, a nuisance abatement action, summary abat...
	§4.3 This is an Ordinance adopted to address public health and safety issues, and as such, carries with it an express legislative intent to be interpreted and enforced with an emphasis on public and community safety, and enforced rigorously in a manne...

	Article 5. Definitions
	§5.1 Medical Marijuana Cultivation: The planting, growing, harvesting, drying, or processing of marijuana plants, or any part thereof.
	§5.2 Medical Marijuana Dispensary (“Dispensary”): Any profit or not-for-profit facility or location, whether permanent or temporary, where the owner(s) or operator(s) intends to or does possess and distribute marijuana for any purpose. A Dispensary in...

	Article 6. Medical Marijuana Requirements and Regulations
	§6.1 Medical Marijuana Dispensaries and outdoor Medical Marijuana Cultivation shall be prohibited in any zoning district of the City, even if located within an otherwise permitted use.
	§6.2 An individual qualified patient shall be allowed to cultivate medical marijuana within his/her private residence. A primary caregiver shall only cultivate medical marijuana at the residence of a qualified patient for whom he/she is the primary ca...
	§6.2.1 Cultivation of medical cannabis for personal use shall occur only on the parcel either within the residence occupied by the qualified patient, or in a self-contained accessory building that is secured, locked, and fully enclosed and which is fo...
	§6.2.2 Cultivation of medical cannabis for personal use shall not displace required off-street parking;
	§6.2.3 The Medical Marijuana Cultivation area shall not exceed thirty-two (32) square feet measured by the canopy and not exceed ten feet (10') in height per residence. This limit applies regardless of the number of qualified patients or persons with ...
	§6.2.4 Medical Marijuana Cultivation lighting shall not exceed one thousand two hundred (1,200) watts;
	§6.2.5 The use of gas products (CO2, butane, etc.) for medical marijuana cultivation or processing is prohibited;
	§6.2.6 Medical Marijuana Cultivation and sale shall be prohibited as a home occupation;
	§6.2.7 Medical Marijuana Cultivation and sales shall not be considered a permitted accessory use of property;
	§6.2.8 The sale or dispensing of medical marijuana for personal use shall be prohibited;
	§6.2.9 From a public right of way, there shall be no exterior evidence of Medical Marijuana Cultivation either within or outside the residence;
	§6.2.10 The qualified patient shall not participate in Medical Marijuana Cultivation at any other location within the City of Ferndale;
	§6.2.11 The residence shall maintain kitchen, bathrooms, and primary bedrooms for their intended use and not be used primarily for Medical Marijuana Cultivation;
	§6.2.12 A copy of a qualified patient physician recommendation or identification card shall be posted in a conspicuous place in the cultivation area for each patient residing in the residence that is cultivating medical marijuana. For rental propertie...
	§6.1.13 The Medical Marijuana Cultivation area shall be in compliance with the current, adopted edition of the California Building Code § 1203.4 Natural Ventilation or § 402.3 Mechanical Ventilation (or its equivalent(s)); and
	§6.2.14 The Medical Marijuana Cultivation area shall not adversely affect the health or safety of the nearby residents by creating dust, glare, heat, noise, noxious gasses, odor, smoke, traffic, vibration, or other impacts,  or be hazardous due to use...

	§6.3 Any proposed Medical Marijuana Cultivation by an individual qualified patient or primary caregiver that does not meet the grow area standard of Section 6.2.3 shall require a Variance pursuant to this Section 6.3. Documentation, such as a physicia...
	§6.3.1 The Medical Marijuana Cultivation area shall not exceed an additional fifty (50) square feet for the total of eighty-two square feet (82’) and not exceed ten feet (10’) in height per residence; and
	§6.3.2 At a minimum, the Medical Marijuana Cultivation area shall be constructed with a 1-hour firewall assembly of green board; and
	§6.3.3 Cultivation of medical marijuana for personal use is limited to detached single family residential properties, or the Medical Marijuana Cultivation area shall be limited to a garage or self-contained outside accessory building that is secured, ...


	Article 7. Non-Medical Use
	§7.1 Personal use cultivation, processing, and distributing. The personal cultivation, processing  and distributing of cannabis or marijuana for non-medical purposes, to the extent provided  by law, shall comply with the Requirements and Regulations p...

	Article 8. Amendment
	§8.1 This Ordinance may be amended from time to time by duly authorized action by the City Council  for the City of Ferndale.

	Article 9. Enactment and Effective Date
	§9.1 Enactment. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the final decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such a decision shall not affect t...
	§9.2 Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective 30 days after the date of its enactment.

	Article 10. Posting Requirement
	§10.1 The City Clerk shall cause publication of this ordinance within 15 days after passage in a  newspaper of general circulation published and circulated in the city, and posted in at least  three public places in the city.



	Ferndale Agenda Calendar 9.2013-1.2013 (1).pdf
	Nov 2013

	11 7 13 CC - Reso 2013-38 Auth for Nuisance Ord for 11 7 2103 CC.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 2013-38 Authorization of City Attorney and City Planner Time and Materials to Update Nuisance Ordinance 06-04.
	DISCUSSION:    The City of Ferndale’s Nuisance Ordinance was last updated in 2006.  After discussing the existing Ordinance with the City’s retained consultants and the City Attorney, Staff recommends that the Nuisance Ordinance be revised and updated...
	FISCAL IMPACT: City Attorney and City Planner time and materials not to exceed $2,500.00.

	11 7 13 CC - Reso 2013-39 Auth for HE Implementation.pdf
	BACKGROUND: The certified General Plan Housing Element Update contains programs for a balanced supply of housing, serving all socioeconomic groups and household types . At their April 4th meeting, the City Council approved Resolution 2013-09 authorizi...
	DISCUSSION: The General Plan Housing Element Implementation Plan 2013 organizes Housing Element policies and programs into three phases.  The first phase encompasses all Zoning Ordinance amendments, the second contains City actions, and the third outl...
	FISCAL IMPACT: City Planner time and materials not to exceed $2,000

	HE Implementation Plan.pdf
	City of Ferndale General Plan Housing Element
	Implementation Plan 2013
	Part 1: Amend the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Ferndale
	Task 1.1 Prepare Zoning Ordinance Amendments
	Task 1.2 Propose and Adopt Zoning Ordinance Amendments

	Part 2: City Actions
	Task 2.1 Identify Adequate Sites
	Task 2.2:  Develop Incentives for Affordability and Accessibility
	Task 2.3: Explore Incentives & Assistance for Preservation, Rehabilitation, and Energy Efficiency.

	Part 3: Ongoing Activities
	Ongoing Task 3.1 Maintain Adequate Sites
	Ongoing Task 3.2 Maintain Equal Access
	Ongoing Task 3.3 Promote Preservation, Restoration, and Energy Efficiency






